Public Document Pack

CITY
LONDON

Equality, Diversity & Inclusion Sub-Committee

Date: WEDNESDAY, 26 JUNE 2024
Time: 10.00 am
Venue: COMMITTEE ROOMS, WEST WING, GUILDHALL

Members: Deputy Andrien Meyers (Chair) Caroline Haines (Ex-Officio Member)

Joanna Tufuo Abeyie (Deputy Florence Keelson-Anfu
Chairman) Gregory Lawrence

Deputy Randall Anderson Deputy Charles Edward Lord
Alderman Sir Charles Bowman Deputy Ann Holmes

Deputy Peter Dunphy Judith Pleasance

Mary Durcan

Enquiries:  Kate Doidge
Kate.Doidge@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Accessing the virtual public meeting
Members of the public can observe all virtual public meetings of the City of London
Corporation by following the below link:
https://www.youtube.com/@ CityofL ondonCorporation/streams

A recording of the public meeting will be available via the above link following the end of
the public meeting for up to one civic year. Please note: Online meeting recordings do not
constitute the formal minutes of the meeting; minutes are written and are available on the
City of London Corporation’s website. Recordings may be edited, at the discretion of the
proper officer, to remove any inappropriate material.

Whilst we endeavour to livestream all of our public meetings, this is not always possible
due to technical difficulties. In these instances, if possible, a recording will be uploaded
following the end of the meeting.

lan Thomas CBE
Town Clerk and Chief Executive



https://www.youtube.com/@CityofLondonCorporation/streams

AGENDA

Part 1 - Public Agenda

APOLOGIES

MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF
ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

MINUTES

To approve the public minutes and non-public summary of the meeting held on 21
March 2024.

For Decision
(Pages 5 - 10)

EQUITY, EQUALITY, DIVERSITY, AND INCLUSION (EEDI) WORK AND
PRIORITIES

Report of the Chief Strategy Officer.

For Information
(Pages 11 - 16)

CITY BELONGING

Executive Director of Corporate Communications and External Affairs to be heard.

For Information
(Verbal Report)

SOCIAL MOBILITY INDEX REPORT
Report of the Chief Strategy Officer.

For Information
(Pages 17 - 138)

GENDER, ETHNICITY, AND DISABILITY PAY GAPS (MARCH 2023 SNAPSHOT)

Report of the Executive Director of Human Resources and Chief People Officer.

For Information
(Pages 139 - 260)

QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE SUB
COMMITTEE



10.

11.

12.

13.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

MOTION: That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be
excluded from the meeting for the following item(s) on the grounds that they involve
the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part | of Schedule 12A of the
Local Government Act.

For Decision

Part 2 - Non Public Iltems
NON PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE
COMMITTEE

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND
WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE
PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

Part 3 - Confidential Iltems

CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES

To approve the confidential minutes of the meeting held on 21 March 2024.

For Decision



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 5

Agenda Iltem 3

EQUALITY, DIVERSITY & INCLUSION SUB-COMMITTEE
Thursday, 21 March 2024

Minutes of the meeting of the Equality, Diversity & Inclusion Sub-Committee held at
Committee Rooms, West Wing, Guildhall on Thursday, 21 March 2024 at 10.00 am

Present

Members:

Joanna Tufuo Abeyie (Deputy Chair, in the Chair)
Deputy Randall Anderson

Alderman Sir Charles Bowman

Deputy Peter Dunphy

Mary Durcan

Deputy Charles Edward Lord

Deputy Ann Holmes

Officers:

Dionne Corradine - Chief Strategy

Shelagh Prosser - Interim Director of Equality, Diversity &
Inclusion

Micah Mclean - Town Clerk’s Department

Genine Whitehorne - Commercial Director

Cindy Vallance - People and Human Resources

Olivia Larkin - Innovation & Growth

Kate Doidge - Town Clerk’s Department

Public Items

1. APOLOGIES
Apologies were received from Deputy Andrien Meyers (Chair), Caroline Haines,
Florence Keelson-Anfu, Deputy Alastair Moss, Deputy Brian Mooney, and
Catherine McGuinness.

Judith Pleasance observed the meeting virtually.

2. MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN
RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THE AGENDA
There were no declarations.

3. MINUTES
RESOLVED - That the public minutes and non-public summary of the previous
meeting, held on 11 December 2023, be approved as a correct record.

4. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC
The Deputy Chair (in the Chair) informed Members that she would like to
consider Item 14, Confidential Minutes, and Item 15, EDI Transition 2.0,



Page 6

immediately following Item 3, Minutes, as it concerned information which was
relevant to the agenda.

The Committee agreed to go into confidential session.

RESOLVED - That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in Part | of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

Confidential Items

CONFIDENTIAL MINUTES

RESOLVED - That the Confidential Minutes of the previous meeting, held on
11 December 2023, be approved as a correct record.

EDI TRANSITION 2.0
The Committee received a confidential report of the Chief Strategy Officer,
concerning an update on EDI Transition 2.0.

Following conclusion of this item, the Committee agreed to consider the public
section of the agenda, with the public being re-admitted into the meeting.

Public Items

CITY CORPORATION EQUALITY OBJECTIVES - 2024-2029

The Committee received a report of the Chief Strategy Officer, concerning the
approval to publish the updated Equality Objectives to meet the City
Corporation’s responsibilities under the Public Sector Equality Duty.

RESOLVED - That Members:

e Endorse the revised Equality Objectives to enable their publication (on
our website and intranet) in March 2024, thereby fulfilling our
responsibility under the Public Sector Equality Duty.

¢ Note the Equality Objectives (2024-2029) will cover a five-year period to
coincide with the Corporation Plan and People Strategy. However, there
will be a review in 2028 to comply with the duty of publishing every four
years.

¢ Note that activity to develop relevant equity, equality, diversity, and
inclusion (EEDI) datasets for the Objectives is required to develop robust
performance metrics.

TACKLING RACISM TASKFORCE UPDATE

The Committee received a report of the Chief Strategy Officer, concerning an
update on the recommendations of the Tackling Racism Taskforce (TRT) and
to close the recommendations that were outstanding. The other
recommendations had either been completed, were ‘business as usual’, or had
been integrated into work across the City Corporation to tackle racism and
advance race equality.

A concern was raised on those objectives which had not yet been met, and
uncertainty on whether the ‘business as usual’ would not meet the aims of the



Page 7

10.

11.

TRT. The response was that at the highest level, the Corporate Plan had EEDI
targets including race equality, the progress of which would be published
annually. These would also reference the TRT’s recommendations. The People
Strategy had targeted projects within its programmatic structure. The
Committee would be sighted on its activities at a future meeting. With regards
to the work with schools, this was owned by the Executive Director of
Community and Children’s Services, recognising that this was broader than
COLAT, but the officer would be the single point of contact.

Members raised that they were concerned of accountability during the
transitional period, and if there could be any work to address this during this
period. Officers would report back on this at the next Committee meeting.

RESOLVED - That Members endorse the recommendation to close the TRT as
a discreet activity as all recommendations have been completed or progressed
by departments as part of wider activities to advance race equality.

CITY OF LONDON CORPORATION EQUALITIES INFORMATION REPORT
2023

The Committee received a report of the Chief Strategy Officer, concerning
approving the City Corporation’s 2023 Equality Information Report for the
period 15t April 2022 to 31t March 2023.

RESOLVED - That Members:

e Endorse the 2023 Equality Information report provided at Appendix 1 to
enable its publication (on our website and intranet) by 30" March
thereby fulfilling our legislative responsibility.

¢ Note that improving the quality of the equality data for employees and
service users will be a priority activity going forward.

¢ Note that Gender Pay Gap information for the Corporation will be
published on the Government portal by 30" March 2024, as required by
legislation, with a report to the Corporate Services Committee in April.

COMPLIANCE HEALTH CHECK

The Committee received a report of the Chief Strategy Officer, concerning a
Compliance Health Check to ensure that the City Corporation was compliant at
a strategic level in its equality duties and commitments, and to set out initial
priorities for action and vulnerabilities.

RESOLVED - That the report be received, and its contents noted.

SOCIAL MOBILITY INDEX REPORT

The Committee received a report of the Chief Strategy Officer, concerning the
Social Mobility Index (SMI) annual benchmarking and assessment for
performance in eight areas on social mobility outcomes and the drivers behind
social mobility.

Members noted that the City Corporation had declined in ranking since 2022
and queried how the City Corporation aimed to improve that ranking. The
Committee heard that the Social Mobility Foundation, who worked with the City



Page 8

12.

Corporation on the SMI, had a higher number of organisations join in recent
years, who often undertook targeted and holistic work which improved their
ranking. However, the City Corporation could have provided a stronger case
covering all the work undertaken across the organisation. It was noted that the
Socio-Economic Taskforce (2020-22) had recommendations for a 5-point
pathway for organisations to boost socio-economic diversity and for these to be
undertaken under Progress Together. The City Corporation had access to
these resources to learn best practices from other firms to improve ranking. The
actions suggested in the report aimed to improve the City Corporation’s ranking
within the Index.

It was noted that the Appendices detailed the feedback and scores on
performance for each of the eight areas, which included more specific actions.
Some of the actions were achievable whilst others were more challenging, and
it was wished to focus on the areas in which the City Corporation scored lower,
and to produce a clear action plan.

RESOLVED - That the report be received, and its contents noted, including:
e City Corporation SMI rankings from 2018-2023.
e The 2023 Social Mobility Employer Index report (Appendix 1).
e The SMI suggested areas of focus for the Corporation to explore in
response to the 2023 submission (Appendix 2).

DIVERSITY CALENDAR 2024-2025

The Committee received a report of the Chief Strategy Officer, concerning a
Diversity Calendar 2024-2025, an internal resource highlighting significant
dates, facilitating awareness, understanding, and planning around team
members’ specific needs and special occasions.

A Member queried how the City Corporation determined which occasions to
celebrate. The response was that some events were the responsibility of the
Civic Affairs Sub-Committee under its annual calendar, which had some staff
training budgets. The action now was to look at where there were gaps, and to
clarify the source of funding, but noting that the Civic Affairs Sub-Committee
were aiming to have a strategic overview approach to events. It was noted that
a representation would be made to the Civic Affairs Sub-Committee in relation
to Easter.

The Committee noted that there was an officer working group which had an
action to look at events, including attendance, criteria, purpose, and outcomes.
The Civic Affairs Sub-Committee would be made aware of this officer working
group at its next meeting.

It was further noted that duplication should be avoided with events held by staff
networks. The Committee heard that a staff Social Mobility Network would
formally launch in June 2024.

RESOLVED - That the report be received, and its contents noted.



Page 9

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE SUB
COMMITTEE

The Committee received one public question. A Member raised that they had
recently attended a meeting of the City of London School for Girls Board of
Governors meeting. At this meeting, a survey was circulated on the Board of
Governors, which only had a focus on race to the exclusion of other protected
characteristics. The Member had raised the exclusion of other protected
characteristics as a concern and agreed to query this at a meeting of the
Equality, Diversity, & Inclusion Sub-Committee. It was agreed that this question
would be taken away and the Member would be followed up with outside of the
meeting.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR CONSIDERS URGENT
There were no public items of urgent business.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED - That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in Part | of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

Non Public Iltems

NON PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF
THE COMMITTEE

There were no non-public questions.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT
AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

There were no other non-public items of urgent business.

The meeting ended at 11.13 am

Chairman

Contact Officer: Kate Doidge
Kate.Doidge@cityoflondon.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Page 11

Agenda Item 4

Committee(s):
Equality, Diversity & Inclusion Sub-Committee

Dated:
26" June 2024

Subject: Equity, Equality, Diversity, and Inclusion (EEDI)
Work and Priorities

Public

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate

All Corporate Plan

Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly? Outcomes
Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or N

capital spending?

If so, how much? N/A

What is the source of Funding? N/A

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the N/A

Chamberlain’s Department?

Report of: Dionne Corradine, Chief Strategy Officer

Report author: Sacha Than, EDI Governance &
Coordination Lead, Corporate Strategy and Performance

For Information

Summary

This report provides an overview of current priorities and work that has taken place
since the March 2024 meeting of the EDI Sub Committee to stabilise the EEDI
function. Highlights include the creation of a hub and spoke governance model to
engage EEDI stakeholders across the organisation, the prioritisation of a review of

EEDI policies, a review of the Corporation’s Equality Impact Assessment guidance

and training provision, the submission of information to the Social Mobility Employer

Index, and an All Staff event led by the Town Clerk focussing on Inclusion.

Recommendation

Members are asked to note the report.

Main Report

Background

1. In November 2023, organisational structural changes saw the Equity, Equality,
Diversity, and Inclusion (EEDI) portfolio move to the remit of the Chief Strategy
Officer, Dionne Corradine. In a confidential session at the EDI Sub Committee on
11 December 2023, Members agreed that to address immediate challenges and
to prioritise activity, the corporate EDI team should focus on four areas:

a) Support to the EDI Team.

b) Ensure the Corporation is compliant in its equality duties and

commitments.




Page 12

c) Take stock of and prioritise the three political EDI commitments; deliver
the Equality Objectives; complete and embed the Tackling Racism
Taskforce recommendations; and address EEDI data gaps.

d) Scope and agree the Terms of Reference with Members for an EEDI
Review.

2. Four stages were subsequently identified to establish key infrastructure for the
Corporation’s EEDI ambitions with associated workstreams. To align with the
Corporate Plan and People Strategy, these stages spread over a five-year
period, from 2024-2029. We are currently in the first stage and all work taking
place is intended to stabilise the function. The four stages are:

e Stabilise

e Strengthen
e Sustain

e Soar

Current Position

3. Activities under the stabilise banner are happening at pace, however there is still
a significant amount of work to do in order to realise our ambitions. Since the
Committee’s meeting in March, activity has focused on:

EDI Team Support and Officer Governance

e Reestablishing internal EEDI connections across the City Corporation e.g.
staff networks, EEDI Institutional leads, Equality Representatives.

e Mapping out EEDI officer governance structures, establishing new
structures to engage all Corporation departments and Institutions.

e Presenting the new structure and associated thinking to the Town Clerk
and Senior Leadership Team for their support and sign off.

e The establishment of a staff EEDI Forum with the first meeting taking
place in June.

e Working with the Governance team to ensure the new Committee Report
template adequately captures EEDI implications.

e The development of a forward plan for 2024/25 EDI Sub Committee
agendas.

e Support to the EDI Team through the transfer of line management of the
team from the previous EDI Director to the Interim EDI Director,
establishing new processes and ways of working, and providing training
opportunities to help the team deliver against their objectives.

¢ Recruitment of the Equalities Director which is now underway and due to
complete end July 2024.

Compliance
e Publication of the Equality Information Report on the Corporation’s
website.
e Publication of the Equality Objectives on the Corporation’s website.
e A review of our processes in relation to Equality Impact Assessments, the
creation of new materials and testing those with relevant officers.



Page 13

4.

e Working with HR to develop approaches to review EEDI policies and
guidance.

Political Priorities

e Development of appropriate measures and metrics in relation to the
Equality Objectives.

e Preparation and final submission of the Social Mobility Employer Index

e Consideration of reporting mechanisms for the Tackling Racism Taskforce
recommendations and associated activities re race equality e.g. through
corporate risk reporting, staff survey action plans,

e The creation of an All Staff event focussing on Inclusion.

e Consideration of our approach to EEDI data and initial scoping of a plan.

EEDI Review

e The EEDI Review is closely linked to the officer governance piece. To
begin work on the EEDI Review, it is crucial that the officer governance
function has been stabilised. With this now in progress and officers within
the EEDI Team identifying gaps and areas for improvement, a first draft of
the Terms of Reference will be worked up over the summer for discussion
with Members.

Below is a short summary of the key areas of work from March to June 2024:

EEDI policies

5.

In March, a HR Policy Manager joined the Corporation and began developing a
framework for HR policy creation and review, with a focus on stakeholder
engagement. In addition, the Corporation currently has 72 HR policies which are
currently being assessed to develop a policy prioritisation matrix. Both the
framework and prioritisation matrix will be presented to the Corporate Services
Committee in September for approval. Committee approval will initiate review and
updates to all HR policies, produces and guidelines with a focus on those that have
the greatest impact on managers and employees.

In the interim, amendments were made to flexible working, paternity leave,
sickness absence, redeployment, redundancy, and special leave policies to ensure
legislative compliance in April 2024.

To complement this work, the EDI Team has identified seven EEDI-driven policies
and are collaborating with HR to determine required updates, urgency, involved
officer groups and Staff Networks, and industry best practice. The policies under
review are:

Policy Last updated
Health and wellbeing policy December 2018
Carers policy March 2019
Gender Identity Policy June 2019
Maternity leave policy September 2019
Paternity leave policy October 2021
Equal opportunity policy July 2022




Page 14

Flexible working policy April 2024

Equality Impact Assessments

8. A review of our current EQIA form and guidance is underway. The EDI Team have
created user-friendly templates and guidance accommodating activities of varying
sizes and scope, outlining the requirements for conducting an EQIA and setting out
the relevant legislation such as the Public Sector Equality Duty.

9. The EDI Team is consulting with stakeholders, examining good practice from other
Local Authorities and institutions for EQIAs. Officers from across the Corporation
are part of a test group reviewing the new materials. They were given opportunities
to provide feedback both virtually and in person. The team will work with L&D to
conduct training sessions on EQIAs throughout the summer and into the autumn
of 2024.

Officer Governance Mapping and EEDI Forum

10.A mapping exercise took place to understand scope, identify duplication,
opportunities for collaboration, and to break down siloes. Alongside the corporate
initiatives, there is a significant amount of voluntary work taking place through the
Staff Networks, Departmental EEDI Working Groups, and informal
interdepartmental partnerships.

11.The mapping exercise revealed a lack of a unified method to bring all this activity
together, for officers to showcase their work, and to collaborate on shared goals.
This gap prevents identifying intersections and interconnections, determining
corporate versus local initiatives and optimising time and resources. Additionally,
a better mechanism is needed to work with staff on delivering and embedding the
Equality Objectives throughout the departments and Institutions.

12.The EDI Team proposed a new governance structure, which was presented to the
Town Clerk and Senior Leadership Team (SLT) in May. This hub and spoke model,
featuring a bi-monthly officer Forum at its core, aims to capture staff input, ensure
two-way communication between officers, senior leaders, and Members, and
provide opportunities for engagement in EEDI work. The structure is designed to
be collaborative and engaging, with clear communication channels to guide the
direction of EEDI initiatives. Following SLT's support, the EDI Team has begun
trialling this new structure, with the first Forum meeting scheduled for 17 June.

Town Clerk & Chief Executive Live: Let’s talk about Equality and Inclusion

13.In late 2023, the Town Clerk hosted an All Staff event entitled Let’'s Talk about
Race covering racism and race inequalities. A second All Staff has been organised
for 25 June to look at Inclusion more broadly.

14.The event will highlight our EEDI activities, ambitions, and areas for improvement.
Sandi Wassmer, CEO of the Employers Network for Equality and Inclusion will host
a fireside chat to provide an external perspective.



Page 15

15.1t is anticipated that this is the start of a regular series of engagements to provide
staff with the opportunity to meaningfully discuss EEDI with senior leaders both
internal and external to the Corporation.

EEDI Review

16. At the December 2023 EDI Sub Committee, Members agreed to an EEDI
Review with the Terms of Reference to be developed (July 2024). Completion of
the officer governance mapping, identification of EEDI groups and practitioners
across the Corporation and creation of a mechanism to engage internally, has
improved understanding of EEDI challenges and good practise within and across
the Corporation. This input alongside others will enable us to commence scoping
the EEDI Review Terms of Reference working with Members to ensure these are
relevant, proportionate and forward thinking.

Corporate & Strategic Implications

Strategic implications — The approach and focus are to better understand, grip and address
strategic EEDI priorities now and in the future with particular emphasis on delivering the
Equality Objectives 2024-2029, Corporate Plan 2024-2029 and People Strategy 2024-2029.

Financial implications — Funding is required to carry out this activity. The ask is cognisant of
the financial challenges facing the Corporation, balance with delivering the political EEDI
priorities and meeting our statutory obligations. Work has taken place with Chamberlains to
review the policy budget, and funds have been agreed to prioritise recruitment of an
Equalities Director.

Resource implications — The resourcing of the work outlined has been carried out by officers
within the EDI Team.

Legal implications — A compliance health check was carried out and presented to Members
of the EDI Sub Committee at the March 2024 meeting. It was concluded that the Corporation
is compliant with its duties under the Equality Act 2010.

Risk implications — The work taking place seeks to minimise and mitigate risks within the
EEDI portfolio. Further work is being undertaken and will be advanced over the coming
months to articulate and assess potential EEDI Corporate or cross cutting strategic risks.

Equalities _implications — The work taking place seeks to improve and enhance the
Corporation’s EEDI offer.

Climate implications - None

Security implications — Ensuring the Corporation remains safe and secure from an EEDI
perspective is one of the driving forces behind the work detailed throughout this report.

Conclusion

17.Work has continued at pace to stabilise and enhance the EEDI function within the
Corporation. The review of our governance model with new processes being
trialled, the creation of a new EQIA form and guidance which makes clear our
responsibilities as a Local Authority whilst having due regard for the Public Sector



Equality Duty, and the commencement of work updating our EEDI policies have
provided the foundations for rebuilding a portfolio that is robust, evidence-based,
and compliant with legislation. As we move into the next phase, we will begin
working with Members to scope out the Terms of Reference for the EEDI Review.

Appendices
None
Sacha Than

EDI Governance Lead, Corporate Strategy and Performance
E: sacha.than@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 16


mailto:sacha.than@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Agenda Iltem 6

Committee(s): Dated

Equality Diversity & Inclusion Sub-Committee 26 June 2024

Subject: Social Mobility Index Report Public

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate | All Corporate Plan

Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly? Outcomes are supported by
this work

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or N/A

capital spending?

If so, how much? N/A

What is the source of Funding? N/A

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the N/A

Chamberlain’s Department?

Report of: Dionne Corradine, Chief Strategy Officer For Information

Report author: Siyka Radilova, EDI Officer

Summary

Improving social mobility is one pillar of our Equality Objectives 2024-29 and part of
our Corporate Plan 2024-29 and People Strategy 2024-29. Our annual
benchmarking efforts via the Social Mobility Employer Index allow us to learn and
improve how we enable social mobility. This year officers have taken a radically
different approach to compiling the submission, working across City Corporation to
gather as much input as available, while being cognisant of feedback from previous
years. Consequently, our 2024 submission (appended) covers a range of internal
and external social mobility related activity. This was submitted to the Social
Mobility Foundation by the deadline of 7 June.

Recommendation(s)
Members are asked to:

Note this report and annex: City Corporation’s 2024 Social Mobility
Employer Index Submission

Main Report
Background

1. The City Corporation worked with The Social Mobility Foundation to set up
the Social Mobility Index (SMI) in 2017. The Social Mobility Employer Index
is an annual benchmarking and assessment tool for employers. The Index
shows how employers perform on eight areas of employer-led social
mobility. In addition, it sets out a vision for measuring and monitoring social
mobility outcomes over the next 30 years.

Page 17



Page 18

2. In 2018, the City Corporation was ranked 66th on the index, and rose to 56th
in 2019, 50th in 2020 and 40th in 2021. However, rankings declined to 67th
and 87th in 2022 and 2023 respectively. Competition has grown as
employers are increasing social mobility initiatives and benchmarking
themselves. However, attempts to collate information fell short last year. For
the current cycle major efforts have been made to engage across the
organisation to gather evidence, resulting in approximately 120 pages
(annex 1) documenting our social mobility activities.

3. The Social Mobility Employer Index 2024 has eight areas of assessment. We
have contributed substantial information under each section.
e School outreach and work with young people
e Attraction and university outreach
Recruitment and Selection
Routes into the employer
Data collection
Pay, progression and retention
Progression, culture and experiences hire
External Advocacy

4. To meet the 7 June deadline, the Chair and Deputy Chair of the Equality,
Diversity and Inclusion sub-Committee had the opportunity to review the
submission. A draft was also shared with the City Corporation Executive
Leadership Board chaired by the Town Clerk. Our full submission (see annex
1) includes extensive information on social mobility initiatives across City
Corporation.

5. The format of our submission at annex 1 is challenging, and some content
appears clunky and repetitive. It has been completed this way to allow for
collaboration across the organisation and editing to meet word counts before
uploading it question by question to the Social Mobility Foundation website.
This means there are a few inconsistencies that will not appear in the final
product. To ensure the Social Mobility Foundation has our full submission
(noting some online sections contained word limit restrictions), with their
permission, we have completed their form and submitted our full return in a
PDF document.

Current Position

6. Social mobility remains a concern globally, with implications extending from
individual opportunities to societal cohesion and economic prosperity. City
Corporation recognises its responsibility to foster an environment conducive
to upward mobility for all. Social mobility is one of our four published Equality
Objectives reflecting the commitment to diversity, equity, and inclusion, and
sets out our ambition as follows:

Someone’s socio-economic background should not limit their potential to flourish.
Activities (cognisant with the Social Mobility Index recommendations for
improvement) may include:



Page 19

« Continue to use our influence to advance socio-economic diversity
across the City, building on the success of the Socio-Economic
Diversity Taskforce report and its recommendations.

o Collaborate with a variety of communities to enable opportunities
for those from lower socio-economic backgrounds to get in, get on,
and belong in the City Corporation.

« Continue to measure our performance as an employer across the
eight areas set out in the Social Mobility Index.

o Closer working across the City of London Corporation family to
tackle barriers collectively and holistically for underrepresented
groups.

7. Progress has been made in advancing social mobility within City Corporation
during past year. In addition to the Equality Objectives 2024-29, the
Corporate Plan 2024-29 commits us to improving social mobility and reduce
inequalities; the People Strategy 2024-29 provides structures to improve
social mobility via internal mechanisms — all set out in the submission.
Together, these are the framework to embed organisational outcomes to
achieve an inclusive and diverse culture and articulate our focus on socio-
economic diversity and intersectionality with both staff and external
communities — achieving our ambition to be a world-class organisation.

8. In addition, the new staff Social Mobility Network launched this year. The
purpose of the network is to represent and advocate for colleagues from
less-privileged backgrounds to achieve their development goals, collectively
share their experiences and support one another to make a difference and
build a stronger, more inclusive, and socio-economically diverse culture at
City Corporation. As well as these, the submission contains a round-up of
social mobility initiatives by our family of schools (who provide an extensive
offering), our green spaces, the Barbican Centre, GSMD, Innovation &
Growth and much more.

9. Once in post, the new EEDI Director will be taking forward collaborative
endeavours with HR and all other relevant areas within the organisation to
continue to drive forward initiatives aimed at achieving our social mobility
ambitions both internally and externally.

Corporate & Strategic Implications

Strateqic implications -_All Corporate Plan 2024-29 Outcomes are impacted (directly
and indirectly) by this work, as well as outcomes in the People Strategy and
Equality Objectives. This is a continuation and development of the activity originally
set out in the Social Mobility Strategy (2018-28) that stalled during pandemic and
following the TOM.

Resource implications — £1200+VAT covered by the EEDI budget

Legal implications — none

Risk implications — Potential reputational risk mitigated by the actions in train to
address the feedback from the SMI report.

Equalities implications — This proposal is a core part of our commitment to equality;
it supports City Corporation’s commitment to be an organisation where people feel




Page 20

respected, and they belong - going beyond the protected characteristics (as set at
the Equality Act 2010) to include to social mobility.

Climate implications — none

Security implications — none

Conclusion
10. Officers have collaborated extensively to improve our 2024 submission to the
Social Mobility Employer Index. Members will be updated as this work
progresses once we have received feedback on our input — expected later
this year. At this stage results will be presented alongside next steps.
Appendices

Annex 1 — 2024 City Corporation Social Mobility Employer Index Submission



Social Mobility
Employer Index 2024

Index questionnaire

S_CIAL EMPLOYER

MOBILITY INDEX

F_UNDATION —-2024

Page 21



Page 22

Organisation information........ e 3

Section 1: Schools outreach and work with young people................. 10
Section 2: Attraction and University outreach.......ccorrccreccreccceeneee. 32
Section 3: Recruitment and selection........ccoieriinccrnrcnncsnscssissesssssnniens 44
Section 4: Routes into the employer ... 59
Section 5: Data collection ... s 75
Section 6: Pay, progression and retention........cccccvrverrrcccerrcccerscccenennns 85
Section 7: Culture and internal advocacy ......cccccrrccerrccerrcerrscnssceeseenns 28
Section 8: External advoCacy .....cccccvivcerrinnecesrrnnsseeesrsssssse s sssssssseesses 106

Please note that this document is only for reference — all Index submissions must be
submitted through the online portal.




Page 23

Your name: *

Dionne Corradine

Job title: *

Chief Strategy Officer

Email address: *

cspt.edi@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Telephone
number *

02076063030 Click or tap here to enter
text.

Organisation: *

City of London Corporation

We are aware that there is a £1200 +VAT charge to enter
the 2024 Employer Index




Page 24

Organisation information

1. What is your organisation's address?

Guildhall, PO Box 270 London, EC2P 2E]

[This contact will only be used if your organisation is eligible to pay the entrant fee
and is paying via invoice]
2a. What is the name of your finance contact?

Niki Jago/ Mark Jarvis

[This contact will only be used if your organisation is eligible to pay the entrant fee
and is paying via invoice]
2b. What is the email address of your finance contact?

CityProc. AP@cityoflondon.gov.uk

[To enable us to share the advocacy pack and collect your logo please share:]
2c. Name of your communications contact

Ryan Jones

[To enable us to share the advocacy pack and collect your logo please share:]
2d. Email address of your communications contact

Ryan.Jones@cityoflondon.gov.uk

3a. Is your organisation in the:

O Private sector

Public sector

Third sector, including charities, social enterprises, and not-for-profit organisations

[If 3a = ‘Private sector’]
3b. Please select the main sector your organisations:

] Arts and entertainment O Management consultancy
L] Automotive O Marketing

] Banking, financial services and O Media

] Broadcasting O Pharmaceuticals

L] Construction ] Product design



mailto:CityProc.AP@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 25

Leisure, tourism and sport

Telecommunications

Life Sciences

Transport and logistics

Other, please specify

] Energy, water or utility O Professional services

U] Engineering or industrial ] Public relations and communications
U] Facilities management ] Publishing

] Fast-moving consumer goods ] Real Estate

U] Gaming O Retail

] Hospitality O Recruitment

U] Housing ] Social and market research

] Law ] Technology, software and computer
U O

0 O

O

Click or tap here to enter text.

[If 3a = ‘Public sector’]
3c. What type of public sector organisation is it?

O Central government
Local government
O A health authority or NHS trust

X

Other - please specify in comments box below

4. Total number of UK employees:

4340

5. Please confirm if you are submitting data for:

The whole UK workforce

O

A section of the UK workforce
(please give details):

Click or tap here to enter text.

6. Please indicate below which regions and or nations of the UK your

organisation has offices in:

(Please click all that apply)

East of England

South East




O East Midlands O South West

London O Yorkshire and the Humber
O North East O Wales

U North West U West Midlands

[ Northern Ireland O No Central Office

U Scotland

7a. Do you have workforce based outside the UK?

Yes O No

[If 7a = ‘Yes']
7b. If yes, which of the following best describes your organisation

We already collect data on some or all of our workforce outside of the UK
O] We are considering how we might collect data from our workforce outside of the UK
Ol We are not considering how data might be collected from this population

8. Employers are required to use a 12-month reporting period for the data
submitted to the Index - please indicate below which you are using:

Ol Calendar year (Jan 2023 - Dec 2023)

Ol Academic year (Sept 2022 - Aug 2023)

Financial year (please specify dates): 01/04/2023-31/03/2024.

9. Does your organisation want to submit to the Employer Index anonymously?

Once you have received your ranking in the Index, we will contact you to confirm if
you wish to remain anonymous or not.

O Yes No

10a. Has your organisation submitted to the Employer Index previously?

Yes O No

Page 26



Page 27

[If 10a = ‘Yes’]
10b. Please select all years that apply:

2023 2019
2022 2018
2021 2017
2020

[If 10b 2023 = ‘Yes']

11. If you entered the Index in 2023, please provide a short summary of any
changes you have made to your practices because of the advice we provided in
your feedback report. (300 words)

We launched a new Corporate Plan 2024-29 and Equality Objectives in April. The latter
makes a firm public commitment to socio-economic diversity as a specific objective.

Our People Strategy 2024 — 2029 publication followed. Together, these commitments set a
more robust framework to embed organisational outcomes and an inclusive and diverse
culture, and articulate our focus on socio-economic diversity and intersectionality with our
external communities and with our own staff.

Our Social Mobility Network launched this year, representing and advocating for colleagues
from less privileged backgrounds. Members lead the way in their vocal and passionate
advocacy of socio-economic diversity and attention to EEDI including all elements of
intersectionality.

Our Members lead the way in their vocal and passionate advocacy of socio-economic
diversity and attention to EEDI including all elements of intersectionality.

Socio-economic diversity is a priority for City Corporation. We want all our work in this area
to have impact. In our ambition to truly be a world-class organisation, we are seeking
reality, not rhetoric. We are still early on this journey in many respects, and we have made
radical adjustments to our entire organisational approach. Our 2023 results provided
helpful feedback to highlight the significance of this work we have begun.

We have developed a much more collaborative corporate approach to EEDI, exemplified by
the writing of this submission where we sought input from colleagues across the
organisation. Our EEDI team is restructuring including recruiting an Equalities Director
responsible for progressing and reporting on our activities. Our recently appointed
permanent Chief People Officer has enhanced our People and HR team to better support
our organisational commitment to EEDL.

We look forward to using the process of this submission to continue to prioritise and hold
ourselves accountable in the work we have begun.




Page 28

12. How did your organisation first hear about the Employer Index.

(Please click all that apply)

Through your organisation’s work with the Social
Mobility Foundation on one of our student
Programmes

Through direct contact from a Social Mobility
Foundation employee (not related to your
organisation’s work on one of our Programmes)

Through your organisation's engagement with our
advocacy and campaigning work

Via the Social Mobility Foundation’s social media

From another employer who had previously
submitted to the Social Mobility Employer Index

Through a trade association, please state which:

Through a professional body: please state which:

O

Through a diversity & inclusion consultancy,
please state which:

Through a regulatory body, please state which:

o | d

At a webinar or event, please state which:

X

Your organisation’s own research

Somewhere else, please write in:

OO

Don't know

13. Why did you decide to enter the Index in 2024?

(Tick all that apply)
To help meet our diversity goals
The feedback helps to improve our organisation
] We use our ranking in our publicity
] We use our ranking to win business or contracts

X

Other:

Commitment to socio-economic diversity is a core corporate objective
in its own right; this will help us improve what we do




Page 29

14. Are there ways in which you operate as an employer that feel distinct, and
which are helpful for us to understand as we consider the information you
have shared? This might include, for example, organisational ownership (in the
private sector), leadership structures, recent mergers/acquisitions, information
about the clients or communities that you serve.

City Corporation looks after the City of London (‘the City’ or ‘Square Mile’) on behalf
of all who live, study, work, and visit; providing modern, efficient, and high-quality
local services and policing for all.

We have a long history, a unique constitution, our own Lord Mayor, and a dedicated
police service keeping the City safe.

Our independent and non-partisan political voice of 125 elected Members,
Aldermen and Alderwomen and convening power enables us to promote the
interests of people and organisations across London and the UK, and play a valued
role on the world stage.

We aim to support our communities through responsible business, charitable
giving, improving the capital’s air quality, providing education and skills for young
people, and delivering affordable housing across London.

The City Corporation provides residents, students, businesses, workers and tourists
with a variety of essential day-to-day services. We have a number of very different
departments that provide a wide range of services, from libraries and open spaces,
through to schools and cultural institutions, alongside our own business support
departments.

We protect and conserve 19 major green spaces in London and South East England
— including Hampstead Heath and Epping Forest — and approximately 180 smaller
ones in the Square Mile. They include important wildlife habitats, sites of scientific
interest and national nature reserves. They are protected from being built on by
special legislation.

We are the port health authority for London, the largest port health authority in the
UK. We protect public health by preventing infectious disease, ensuring water
quality, making vessel inspections, and enforcing environmental controls.

Further members of the City Corporation family are world leading institutions such
at the Barbican Centre, City Bridge Foundation, City of London Police, City of
London Freemen’s school, City of London school for girls, City of London school,
Guildhall School of Music and Drama, the Old Bailey, and the London Metropolitan
Archives.



https://corpoflondon.sharepoint.com/sites/Intranet/SitePages/our-business.aspx

Page 30

The City Corporation provides local government services for our 8,600 residents
(Census 2021) and 614,500 City workers (Office for National Statistics 2022) based
in the Square Mile. To be truly representative of its population, businesses and
other organisations registered in the Square Mile are entitled to nominate voters to
City elections so that, alongside registered residents, they can have a say on the
way the City Corporation is run.

City of London Corporation is closely linked to the livery companies. All livery
companies come under an element of control by the City of London's Court of
Aldermen and play a role in electing the Lord Mayor.

The livery companies and the City of London share common goals and since the
earliest beginnings of the City have both been strong and active in its support. The
livery companies are integral to the City's governance: each year liverymen elect the
Sheriffs of the City of London, endorse the election of the Lord Mayor and play a
prominent part in major events.




Section 1:
Schools outreach and work with young
people

Please note, when we refer to schools in this section, this also includes colleges.

Please indicate if your organisation will be submitting answers to Section 1:
Schools outreach and work with young people

Yes - we will be submitting answers to Section 1: Schools outreach and work with young
people.
O No - we will not be submitting answers to Section 1: Schools outreach and work with

young people.

If no, please state the reason why you are not submitting answers to this section:
(150 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

For the 2024 reporting period:

1a. In which of these nations do you conduct outreach with young people (ages

11-18)?
England
O Scotland
O Wales
O Northern Ireland

1b. Which activities did you carry out? Were these activities in person, virtual
or a combination of both?

In person Virtual Both We did not carry out this activity
School visits U] U] L]
Mentoring L] ] L]
10

Page 31



Page 32

Work experience | [ ] ]

Other- please ] ] ]
specify

Detail of Schools outreach [editorial note: this section may need to be added to the very
end depending on the online form]

London Careers Festival (LCF)

LCF 2023 (26 June - 7 July 2023) attracted over 12,000 young people across London (and
beyond) and engaged primary, secondary and post-16 pupils across London in work
related and skills development activities online and in-person. It included:

e Employer-led webinars and workshops exploring specific job roles, organisations and
industries
Webinars and workshops exploring different career access pathways;

o  Workshops exploring entrepreneurship and entrepreneurial skills;

e Virtual and in-person talks from employers;

e Online and in-person skills building workshops and Q&As with experts and
professionals.

Across the festival, the LCF team worked with a total of 77 businesses, arts organisations,
training providers and Livery companies.

Data from 246 participants across LCF 2023 in-person delivery suggest that the majority of
LCF 2023 participants found the experience highly positive, valuable, informative and
conducive to them making informed career decisions. Of those young people interviewed,
90% of young people agreed that LCF 2023 helped them to think about their future, with
83% stating that it helped them learn about a range of jobs and careers. The data also
suggest that LCF 2023 invited pupils to consider alternative career paths that they
previously had either not considered or had not known had existed. Furthermore, 100% of
teachers agreed that pupils learned about new job opportunities with 100% of teachers
agreeing that it was highly relevant to careers and skills curriculum and school/college
priorities.

LCF 2024 (26 Feb — 8 March) attracted over 17,000 young people from across the capital.
City Corporation made a particular approach to SEN schools this year — implementing their
feedback from the previous event. City Corporation City Corporation collaborated with over
130 organisations and livery companies.

LCF 2024 promoted access to knowledge and networks crucial for upward social mobility
through skills and insight sessions provided by partners, including nine companies
volunteered a skills or insight session at Guildhall or at their offices or site; 22 professionals
volunteered as speed mentors, including City departments like Barbican Centre. City
Corporation’s Cultural and Creative Learning Fund provided insight into the creative

11




Page 33

industries, including creativity in tech, entrepreneurship, and building professional
networks.

A specialist session for care experienced young people was attended by two groups from
two state schools.

five inclusive / specialist sessions for those with Special Educational Needs (SEN) or with
an Education Health and Care Plan were run.

There was an event for sixth formers which over 900 sixth form pupils attended in the
Guildhall, and they were able to interact with businesses from professional services
industry.

City Premium Grant

The City Premium Grant, funded a by our Education Board, exemplifies City Corporation ’s
commitment to advancing social mobility. In 2023 the grant was £2,182,000, with specific
allocations for the Disadvantaged Pupils Grant (based on Pupil Premium), Partnerships
Grant, and Strategic Grant.

The grant is designed to enhance the educational offerings within our Family of Schools,
emphasising additional support beyond the standard curriculum. Throughout last year, 78
projects were implemented across our schools to address various educational needs. These
projects, aligned with our Education, Cultural & Creative Learning, and Skills Strategies,
were strategically distributed across different funding streams.

the Partnerships and Strategic Grants facilitated the establishment of 29 unique project
partnerships, showcasing collaboration both within and beyond our school network. While
the majority of projects targeted secondary-age learners, a significant portion also focused
on primary-age learners. Through rigorous evaluation processes, we continue to ensure
accountability and strive for continuous improvement in fostering upwards social mobility
within our educational community. Further detail here: (Public Pack) Agenda Document for
Education Board, 07/12/2023 09:45 (cityoflondon.gov.uk)

Schools Visits Fund

City Corporation 's Education Board allocates £20,000 annually to schools across London
through its Schools Visits Fund. The fund enables schools to explore cultural and creative
institutions within and beyond the Square Mile, aiming to enhance children and young
people's cultural capital and foster upward social mobility. The fund targets schools with at
least 35% of their pupil population eligible for Free School Meals (FSM). Since September
2023, 5519 learners from eligible schools have benefited from this initiative, with an
average pupil premium rate of 51%.

Cultural and Creative Learning Fund

City Corporation's Education Board commits £190,000 annually to support cultural and
creative learning initiatives within the Square Mile and beyond, targeting state schools with
the aim of enhancing enhance life outcomes, cultural capital and social mobility. This fund
is allocated to partners who align with key thematic priorities set each academic year. For
the current year, strategic themes encompass oracy, mental health and well-being,

12



https://democracy.cityoflondon.gov.uk/documents/g23564/Public%20reports%20pack%2007th-Dec-2023%2009.45%20Education%20Board.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.cityoflondon.gov.uk/documents/g23564/Public%20reports%20pack%2007th-Dec-2023%2009.45%20Education%20Board.pdf?T=10

Page 34

environmental outdoor learning, youth voice, and financial literacy. Since September 2023,
this initiative has benefited 6885 learners in London.

City of London Natural Environment Learning Programme

City Corporation provides learning programmes in its green spaces, engaging children and
young people at three sites: Hampstead Heath, Epping Forest and West Ham Park:
Participation in our Natural Environment Learning Programme 2023/24 has involved over
40,000 children and young people. The programme targets children and young people
from some of London’s highest areas of child poverty. The programme consists of a Schools
service; a Youth programme for 13 — 25 year olds in need of support with education,
employment or mental health support; play activities at Hampstead Heath (two play
centres) for children, parents and carers; and programmes for children with autism and
other special educational needs and disabilities.

The learning programme reaches schools in some of London’s most deprived boroughs
with high child poverty levels, including Tower Hamlets, Newham, Hackney, Haringey,
Camden, Islington, and Waltham Forest. The programme is enhanced by a bespoke offer
for children with SEN, children at risk of exclusion, and children in pupil referral units.
Programmes include a tailored, long-term nature-based learning experiences for SEND
students across Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS), Key Stage 1 (KS1), and Key Stage 2
(KS2), with increased opportunities to explore, play, and learn in natural environments,
reaping the associated wellbeing benefits

Two play centres at Hampstead Heath provide both indoor and outdoor play facilities that
serve diverse audiences and are staffed by skilled play workers. An Adventure Clubhouse
provides play facilities for under-16s, and a One O’clock Club provides play facilities for
under-fives and their parents/carers. The facilities provide essential opportunities for
children to learn through play and to gain the wellbeing benefits associated with playing
outdoors in nature. As part of our commitment to tackling disadvantage, both play centres
engage children who are growing up in poverty who often have limited access to
enrichment opportunities during the school holidays. Analysis of 2023 postcode data for
Play Centre participants showed that participating children were from areas with an
average of 40% child poverty. This compares to 33% for London and 29% for the UK.

A bespoke programme for 13 — 25-year-olds struggling with education, employment or
mental health is provided in our green spaces. This year’s participants have included: Pupil
Referral Units; Special Needs Schools; Youth organisations/clubs; Young carers
organisations; Family support organisations; Social prescribing practices; Refugee/asylum
seeker support organisations.

Schools Programmes

13




Page 35

Since September 2023, our City of London schools have been running in-house projects
supporting our social mobility ambitions.

WREN 300

In partnership with City Corporation City Corporation, Diocese, City of London School, and
St. Paul’s Cathedral, this year-long initiative brought together pupils from diverse
backgrounds across the City Family of Schools and beyond. Through music, visual art, and
creative writing, pupils were immersed in Wren's architectural legacy, culminating in a final
music concert at the Guildhall. The project's multi-phase approach, including workshops at
historic sites and rehearsals at venues, not only nurtured artistic talents but also instilled a
sense of pride, belonging and curiosity about London's rich heritage to pupils from across
the capital. There was a key focus on developing cultural capital throughout the project
which was significantly turbocharged through the City Family of Schools strategic
partnerships. The positive feedback received from pupils, parents, and educators
underscored the project's impact in inspiring and empowering young minds, transcending
socio-economic barriers and fostering a culture of aspiration and achievement.

London Compact 2030 - Bridge The Gap

In January 2024 at the Guildhall, the annual City Schools Conference took place. The
conference was designed to improve social cohesion through the connection of
disadvantaged young people to a wide range of opportunities across London, increase
engagement in education and training to reduce participation and achievement gaps
between advantaged and disadvantaged young people and to secure long-term economic
prosperity through employers accessing and providing supported pathways for a large and
diverse pool of local talent.

City Chess Tournament

The annual Chess tournament, organised in collaboration with Chess in Schools and
Communities (CSC), served as powerful catalyst for social mobility for pupils across the
City Family of Schools. Through engaging online workshops and competitive tournaments,
pupils were provided with a unique opportunity to develop strategic thinking, problem-
solving skills, and resilience. By embracing a spirit of inclusivity and nurturing a love for
chess among pupils of all backgrounds, these initiatives fostered a sense of achievement.
With the generous support of CSC, each participant also gained access to ChessKid
accounts, further enriching their learning experience and empowering them to thrive in the
digital age.

City Maths Challenge

The collaborative maths event held at Guildhall in February 2024, in partnership with
Christ Hospital School, provided a transformative experience for Year 5 pupils from diverse
backgrounds across London. Through engaging mathematical challenges and interactive
stations, students honed their problem-solving skills and fostered a passion for STEM
learning. By embracing a diverse cohort of learners and offering access to enriching

14




Page 36

extracurricular activities, the event played a pivotal role in bridging educational inequalities
and enhancing cultural capital. Feedback from participants underscored the event's
profound impact in empowering young mathematicians, particularly those traditionally
underrepresented in STEM fields, thereby fostering a more inclusive and equitable learning
environment.

Apprenticeship information sharing

We actively engage with schools in local boroughs, particularly those situated in areas
identified as deprived, to promote the benefits of apprenticeships. Through remote
sessions, we educate young people, parents, and school staff on the advantages of
apprenticeships. These sessions cover the structure of apprenticeships, emphasising the
balance between work and ongoing education. Furthermore, we provide guidance on how
to identify suitable apprenticeship opportunities, offering a comprehensive list of current
apprenticeships and directing participants to relevant apprenticeship websites. To ensure
thorough support, we conduct follow-up face-to-face sessions. During these sessions, we
assist participants in completing application forms and provide insights into the selection
process, including interview preparation. Additional guidance is offered upon request,
ensuring that each young person receives personalised support tailored to their needs.
Through these initiatives, we aim to empower young individuals with the knowledge and
resources necessary to embark on successful apprenticeship journeys, ultimately
contributing to their personal and professional development.

Guildhall School of Music and Drama

Projects
Our Access and Participation projects have criteria that target young people from lower
socioeconomic backgrounds and support them to access Guildhall School of Music &
Drama. This includes:

Supported Application Scheme: The scheme offers free application workshops, advice and
guidance, invitations to performances, and travel bursaries for auditions to eligible
undergraduate applicants.

Originate: This collaborative project, in partnership with RADA, Theatre Peckham, and
Young & Talented, offers 18 young actors in London nine months of free training,
culminating in an industry showcase.

Monologue Bootcamp: This is run in collaboration with Leeds Conservatoire, and prepares
future Drama School applicants for the audition process, equipping them with the skills to
choose, interpret, and deliver a monologue.

Get Backstage: This project introduces young people to our Production Arts programmes,
offering hands-on workshops to try some of the skills and techniques we teach students. It
provides an insight into the various degree options and information about the many career
pathways available to graduates.

Guildhall Young Artists (GYA) Bursaries: We fund music training bursaries, in our under-

15




Page 37

18 centres, to ensure that children are able to access sustained, high-quality music training,
irrespective of their financial circumstances.

Participation Bursaries: These bursaries provide financial support to those living in low-
income households, enabling participation in selected Short Courses by providing a full or
half-bursary to cover course costs.

Guildhall Young Artists (GYA)

Guildhall School of Music and Drama’s network of centres provides sustained performing
and production arts training, including one-to-one lessons for ages 4-18. Centres outside
London include Norwich and Taunton, with an online centre for those unable to attend in
person. Around 30% of GYA students come from lower income backgrounds and are
supported via bursaries; and 40% are from the global majority.

GYA provides children and young people with valuable life skills and the means to develop
their individual talents to the full. Many students (including those from low income/less
represented groups) go on to study their chosen discipline as full time undergraduates,
with 192 students progressing to performing and production arts degrees over the last four
years. In 24/25 we aim to increase GYA places to 1,850 students.

Regular events are held (for example the recent GYA Brass & Percussion Day) on a pay-
what-you can basis, removing financial barriers to access. We have approximately 50
children attend these events each term, and the aim is to increase this to 75-100 children in
24/25. The workshops offer students and parents advice on progression routes, and
connects with external organisations such as Brass Bands England and Music Hubs.

LSSO Conductor in Residence

GYA and Black Lives in Music recruit a young conductor to be resident with the London
Schools Symphony Orchestra (LSSO) for a year. The residency for young conductors from
under-represented groups is designed to nurture diverse talent and champion
representation within the orchestra. A third conductor will be recruited in 24/25

Graduate Employment Scheme

GYA offers paid work experience, training, and mentoring to recent Guildhall graduates,
particularly aimed at those graduates from lower income and diverse backgrounds. Two-
thirds of work experience placements found permanent employment within GYA in 23/24.
The programme will be expanded to up to 10 graduates in 24/25.

Freemen’s School

20 Refugee families, predominantly from Ukraine, Afghanistan, and Syria, who live in
the local area, joined a Refugee club to improve their English and to find out more
about their community. Each young person was paired with one or two students. The
buddies meet every Tuesday after school and had a chat or played games together. 24

16




Page 38

Freemen’s students participated in the Club, and Freemen’s teachers also provided
language support for the parents of the refugee families who attended. Activities included:
a music workshop led by Surrey Arts; a fun tie-dye session where the buddies decorated t-
shirts for each other; and a farewell party where each family brought in a traditional dish
from their home country.

2a. In total, in how many schools did you undertake outreach activities with
during the 2024 Index reporting period?

17 within our City Family of Schools but initiatives impact a wider number of
schools, as evidenced above.

2b. How did you access the schools which you worked with?

(Tick all that apply)

X

We contacted the schools directly

We contacted schools via Local Authorities

| We contacted them via the Local Enterprise Partnership

| We contacted schools via careers and skills agencies (Careers Enterprise
Company, Developing the Young Workforce or Careers Wales)

| We worked with a charity or third party who identified young people on our
behalf

Other: a. The expression “the City Family of Schools” means those

schools for which the City has either direct responsibility as
proprietor, sponsor or local authority, or historic links. These
include but are not restricted to: The Aldgate Primary School,
the City of London School, the City of London School for Girls,
the City of London Freemen’s School, City Junior School and
the academies managed by the City of London Academies
Trust. Through this network, the Education Strategy Unit at City
Corporation brings together all the schools through strategic
partnership work, funded by City Corporation’s Education
Board. The outreach the City Corporation has also expands
beyond this, and through our leading role in the City Livery
Education Network and through our cultural and creative
partners, we are able to engage with and deliver projects and
programmes to many more schools, reaching thousands more
children and young people across the capital.

b. There are multiple pathways for schools to engage with the
Barbican Centre. We have a free offer that schools can access

17




Page 39

via our website or by contacting our education team. Our other
offers are built on existing relationships with schools, some of
whom are local to us with which we have an existing
relationship.

2c. Why did you choose this approach?

a. The approach of the City Family of Schools is uniquely valuable for outreach efforts due to
its inclusive and comprehensive nature. By encompassing a diverse range of schools,
including those directly managed by City Corporation, academies within the City of London
Academies Trust, and institutions with historic ties, this model fosters collaboration and
synergy across different educational sectors. This inclusive network allows for strategic
partnership work facilitated by the Education Strategy Unit, supported by funding from City
Corporation 's Education Board. What sets this approach apart is its ability to transcend
traditional boundaries, bringing together schools from various backgrounds and governance
structures under a unified framework. City Corporation's involvement in the City Livery
Education Network further expands outreach efforts, enabling engagement with a broader
range of schools and significantly increasing the reach and impact of educational initiatives
throughout the capital. This collaborative and inclusive approach enhances the effectiveness
of outreach programmes.

b. The Barbican Centre has a multitude of offers for schools and Colleges, some of
which are light touch such a gallery and conservatory visits, and we invite schools
to take this type of offer up with us. Working in this way builds flexibility within our
programme and allows us to provide access to our creative offer to more schools
and colleges. We also work on longer term projects with schools and colleges,
building programmes that support the needs and motivations of the schools we
engage. For this work we take a more targeted approach to engagement, building
sustainable relationships that we can build on, learn from and evolve our
programmes, relationships and practice.

London Metropolitan Archives deliver a curriculum-linked core learning offer for
Key Stages 1 -4, centred on developing history enquiry skills through engaging
children with our collections, the history of London, identity and place. Plans are
being developed expand this service later this year.

The Lord Mayor also works on schools outreach, and makes an annual visit to
Treloar’s school. The Lord Mayor launched the Lord Mayor’s Royal Mathematical
School Scholarship at Christ’s Hospital, and hosted the Livery Academy Awards in
January. The Sheriffs and the Lady Mayoress attended a Lord Mayor’s Appeal “We

18




Page 40

Can Be” event at Guildhall in February, with young women from schools across
London taking part in business-focused activities.

2d. Where applicable, please provide the information below for each of the
following activities for the past year:

Please specify the number of young people participating in school outreach,
mentoring and work experience in person and the number that participated

virtually.

Please insert numbers only

School School Mentoring = Mentoring = Work Work
outreach outreach (in (virtual) experienc | experienc
(in (virtual) person) e e
person) (in (virtual)
person)

The number | 3500 17000 300 300 100 200

of young

people

participating

The number @ 47 95 29 53 17 41

of schools
participating

3. Please use the tick boxes below to indicate the targeting criteria your

organisation uses for outreach activities, and the number of schools meeting
these criteria:

Criteria Criteria Number of schools
used? meeting criteria

Schools/young people close to our offices (within 15

roughly one hour’s travel)

Schools our employees attended L]

Schools without existing relationships with Over 175

employers like us

Non-selective (on attainment) state schools Directly 11 (but over

100 schools who

19



Page 41

benefit from our
outreach work)

Schools in areas of the country which are social U]
mobility cold spots

Schools in areas of high deprivation (as determined | [
by the Index of Multiple Depravation)

Schools in areas of high deprivation affecting Ul
children (as determined by the Income Deprivation
Affecting Children Index)

Schools in low participation areas (TUNDRA) ]

Schools with a large proportion of free school 175

meals eligible pupils

Other- please specify As explained in 2b.
We also use FSM and
PP data as

benchmarks for our
outreach work.

*Please see the below links to support your answer to this question:

Social Mobility Cold Spots (N.B the Social Mobility Commission has now moved

away from using Cold Spots, but we are aware that employers may still be using
this data to target outreach activities. This year we will assess employers based on
whether they have taken a targeted approach to their outreach, which may involve

using cold spots data.)

Index of Multiple Deprivation

Income Deprivation Affecting Children Index

Low participation areas

Schools data

4. For each activity your organisation runs, please include the percentages
requested below:

If you have previous years of data, please provide below. If not, please provide the
data you have available.

20



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-long-shadow-of-deprivation-differences-in-opportunities
https://view.officeapps.live.com/op/view.aspx?src=https%3A%2F%2Fassets.publishing.service.gov.uk%2Fmedia%2F5d8b3abded915d0373d3540f%2FFile_1_-_IMD2019_Index_of_Multiple_Deprivation.xlsx&wdOrigin=BROWSELINK
https://view.officeapps.live.com/op/view.aspx?src=https%3A%2F%2Fassets.publishing.service.gov.uk%2Fmedia%2F5d8b3b0340f0b609967c214b%2FFile_3_-_IoD2019_Supplementary_Indices_-_IDACI_and_IDAOPI.xlsx&wdOrigin=BROWSELINK
https://www.officeforstudents.org.uk/data-and-analysis/young-participation-by-area/
https://www.compare-school-performance.service.gov.uk/download-data

Please include any school outreach, mentoring or work experience whether in

person, online, or a mixture of both (hybrid).

Non-selective state schools are state schools that accept students of all abilities, i.e.

not grammar schools

2024 Index reporting period

Please insert number (e.g. 78% = 78)

School outreach e.g.
visits to schools

Mentoring

Work experience

% of young people
eligible for free
school meals/pupil
premium

Our outreach is too great
to store this level of
dataat present. Our large
projects and
programmes and the
majority of our intake are
eligible for FSM and if
not, for example, like the
School Visits Fund (see
1b, we set a threshold for
at least 35% of the
schools we fund to have
that number on roll
eligible).

Click or tap here to
enter text.

Click or tap here to
enter text.

% of young people
who are connected
to employees or
clients, such as
friends/family

Click or tap here to
enter text.

Click or tap here to
enter text.

Click or tap here to
enter text.

% of young people
who are care-
experienced

Click or tap here to
enter text.

Click or tap here to
enter text.

Click or tap here to
enter text.

Page 42

2023 Index reporting period

Please insert number (e.g. 78% = 78)

21



Page 43

School outreach e.g.
visits to schools

Mentoring

Work experience

% of young people
eligible for free
school meals/pupil
premium

As above

% of young people
who are connected
to employees or
clients, such as
friends/family

% of young people
who are care-
experienced

2022 Index reporting period

Please insert number (e.g. 78% = 78)

School outreach e.g.

visits to schools

Mentoring

Work experience

% of young people
eligible for free
school meals/pupil
premium

As above

% of young people
who are connected
to employees or
clients, such as
friends/family

% of young people
who are care-
experienced

2021 Index reporting period

Please insert number (e.g. 78% = 78)

22



Page 44

visits to schools

School outreach e.g.

Mentoring Work experience

% of young people As above
eligible for free
school meals/pupil
premium

% of young people
who are connected
to employees or
clients, such as
friends/family

% of young people Click or tap here to
who are care- enter text.
experienced

Click or tap here to Click or tap here to
enter text. enter text.

5. After the initial contact with the young people on your activities, what

follow-up activities do you run, if any?

] Application support for Work experience
roles at your organisation

] Mentoring (formal) Scholarships/bursaries

Follow up events Application support for further
study such as university or
apprenticeship

] Online support O Fast tracking applicants who
participated in school outreach
in your application process

O None Other

6a. Do you offer staff specific training relating to socioeconomic background

before running outreach and follow-up activities? If yes, please describe the

objective(s) and what is covered in the training.

(200 words)

Schools-focussed staff are provided with frequent opportunities to engage in various

events, roundtables, workshops, and data sessions aimed at identifying and highlighting

23




Page 45

emerging trends and policy data concerning socioeconomic background EEDI. Participation
in external conferences and workshops support continuing professional development and
enables staff to remain current with the social mobility agenda. Proactive engagement
with external partners such as academics and think tanks is prioritised to stay informed on
the latest guidance, advice, and best practices in this field. This commitment to continuous
learning and collaboration empowers staff to enact informed strategies that advance social
mobility and foster inclusive educational environments.

6b. Do you brief staff on making outreach activities (including online activities)
accessible and inclusive for those from lower socioeconomic backgrounds? If
yes, please explain what support is given to staff.

(200 words)

Staff work closely with experts across diverse industries to ensure that our outreach
activities, including online, are accessible and inclusive for individuals from lower
socioeconomic backgrounds. Through this approach, we integrate best practices into our
operations to address the needs of all those we aim to serve. Toolkits are designed to be
accessible to a wide range of audiences, incorporating various formats and mediums to
cater to different learning preferences. We prioritise diversity and inclusion, ensuring that
our communication methods resonate with our communities. This is part of our policy and
research focus and actively embedded in our operations, reflecting our evidence-driven
approach. By implementing best practice, we strive to make our outreach efforts as
effective and inclusive as possible, advancing our mission of promoting social mobility and
equitable access to education. Staff are encouraged to take part in internal training to
ensure that what we do is inclusive.

Staff at the Barbican Centre are also trained to communicate with audiences in the way that
is most accessible to the audience in question. This process is supported by ensuring that
written correspondence is written in ‘plain English’, and visual content produced is
understood to be in the most accessible format.

24




Page 46

7. Do you offer guidance or support on ‘professional expectations and
behaviours’ to young people from lower socioeconomic backgrounds
participating in work experience (in person or online)? For example, guidance
on approaches to in-person and virtual meetings, expectations about dress,
tone of email communications, or client/customer/stakeholder engagement. If
yes, please explain what support is given.

(200 words)

As work experience is currently being reintroduced via a standardised process,
guidance and support (online and in-person) offers are being developed, so we can
provide support to and engage young people during their placements. Using
qualitative data from apprenticeship recruitment, we have identified and are
addressing a significant need for soft skills to fill gaps not currently met by careers
advisors in schools or other education institutions.

The Barbican Centre complete induction sessions for our programmes. This includes
guidance on conduct, appropriate behaviour and language and our expectations as
an employer. We then develop an ‘exchange of expectations’ document with the
young people that we work with, this supports them and us to navigate our
expectations and experiences.

8. Where relevant, please indicate which statement below best describes the
reach of the activity in question:

Please only select one statement per activity column

School School Mentoring | Mentoring | Work Work
outreach outreach (in person | (virtual) experienc | experienc
(in (virtual) e (in e (virtual)
person) person)

We only n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

have one

office and

the young

people/sch

ools

participati

ng come

25




from the
surroundin
g area

We have n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
multiple
offices and
this
activity is
provided
in some of
these
offices

We have n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
multiple
offices and
this
activity is
provided
in all of
these
offices

We run X X X X X X
initiatives
to support
young
people
from far
beyond
the
location of
our offices
(e.g.
through e-
mentoring)

9a. Do you take steps to ensure that in-person sessions and/or work experience
are accessible to those who do not live locally?

(Please tick all that apply)

Account for travel time, starting later or finishing earlier to enable people to travel at
reasonable times if they are not based near the office

26

Page 47



Provide accommodation for those who do not live locally

Pay for relevant travel costs

Oo|o|o

Pay for relevant subsistence costs

Coordinate travel where sufficient numbers of young people are travelling from the same
geographic location and/or school

Provide practical non-financial support, for example, meeting participants at relevant train
stations

] Provide financial reimbursement for loss of earnings or any additional costs

Other: No, however at the discretion of supervising departments work experiences

placements can claim expenses in the event travel to other sites outside
regular office location is required, expenses are primarily for lunch.

For work delivered in the Education Strategy Unit, there are trips, projects and
programmes where we fund our partners to deliver their activities with free
travel. Where we deliver in-house projects with specific schools to external
venues, we also fund transportation (i.e. coaches).

The Barbican Centre: For schools in receipt of Pupil Premium above
35% the Corporation of London provides a £300 bursary to be
used towards costs related to visiting our venue (up to 3 times
per year per school).

[If 9a any response= ‘Yes’]
9b. Do you actively advertise this support when promoting opportunities to
young people and their schools? If yes, please explain how.

(200 words)

We publicise opportunities across our social media feeds as well as through
City Corporation communications channels, including press releases. In the
case of the Barbican centre, support is advertised in their termly school
newsletter and on their website. for some of our philanthropic commitments,
we ensure that the provided financial assistance also covers the travel costs
for the trips young people take.

27

Page 48



[If 9a ‘Pay for travel costs’= ‘Yes’]
9c. If you pay for travel costs, please indicate which of the following options
apply

Means tested, please specify the criteria:

This varies, but a key example here would be our Schools Visit Fund as highlighted in

section 1b.
U Not means tested
Paid upfront/booked for the student
U] Reimbursed following travel

[If 9a ‘Provide accommodation for those who do not live locally’ or ‘Pay for relevant
travel costs’= ‘No’ ]

9d. If you do not provide any support for travel and/or accommodation, please
explain why.

(200 words)

For general work experience posts and at the discretion of supervising departments
(per the work experience policy) individuals on work experience placements can
claim expenses in the event of travel to other sites that are located outside the
regular office location, where necessary.

The Barbican centre support individual young people who are engaged with their
programmes — this is in the form of travel and or subsistence as appropriate.
Support is provided for young carers as appropriate.

10. If your organisation works beyond its office locations, how does it reach
young people that do not live nearby?

(Please tick all that apply)

By providing online resources to help them understand our organisation or develop their
skills

By providing e-mentors

By providing residential work experience placements

By offering virtual work experience provided by an external provider on an external
platform, e.g. Inside Sherpa

28

Page 49



Page 50

] By running virtual work experience tailored to the organisation with direct interaction
between participants and members of the business, e.g. including video calls with
employees

U] By enabling employees to provide outreach in locations in the country beyond your office
locations, e.g. by covering their travel costs, or allowing them to use volunteering hours to
provide mentoring

In another way, please write | We work with and fund many organisations across

in: London who work on a local and pan London basis. To this
extent each project and programme differs. We have
strong relationships with LAs in the boroughs where our
schools are placed and we also work with schools and
organisations to ensure our work is advertised as widely
as possible. A good example here is London Careers
Festival.

11a. If you offer hybrid or virtual work experience placements, do you ensure
that the young people invited have all the equipment they need to take part in
the virtual element?

Yes — This aligns with the current workplace attendance policy

O No

] We haven't offered any hybrid or virtual work experience placements

[If 11a = ‘Yes']
11b. What equipment do you offer to young people to ensure they can
complete online work experience, if they do not have it? Please select all that

apply.

Laptops

] Wi-Fi routers, dongles, data bundles or other equipment to ensure they
have access to the internet

Headsets

] Webcams

Microphones

] None of the above

Other - please Any specialist equipment required for placements
specify: to carry out activities will be directly arranged by

supervising department - supervising departments

29




Page 51

need to factor any risks attached to equipment

usage by carrying out a risk assessment

12a. Do you flag students who take part in any of your outreach work in your
recruitment process?

O Yes No

[If 12a = ‘Yes']
12b. If you flag students from your outreach work in the recruitment process,
please indicate below the number of participants that have applied to date,
and how many were successful:

Please insert numbers only

Total Applications Total Successful
applications from flagged successful applicants who
students applicants were flagged

Pipeline programmes | n/a n/a n/a n/a

e.g. first year

undergraduate insight

weeks, penultimate

year

internships/vacation

schemes

Permanent roles n/a n/a n/a n/a

Other, please specify n/a n/a n/a n/a

13a. If you or your external partners evaluate the impact of your activities with
young people, please tick all of the methods used:

] We do not evaluate our activities with young people
] Collecting ad-hoc feedback from participants
Conducting pre and post feedback surveys

30




Exploring impact via interviews with participants, teachers, or parents/guardians
(individually or in focus groups)

We commission external evaluation from an appropriately experienced third-party
organisation

Tracking educational outcomes

Tracking career outcomes

Comparing the impact of the initiative year-on-year to improve outcomes

Parent/teacher surveys

[If 13a = any answer except ‘We do not evaluate our activities with young people’]
13b. Please tell us what you have found in your evaluation, specifically about
the impact achieved by your activities:

(200 words)

We employ a multifaceted approach to gather comprehensive feedback, assess the impact
of and improve the outcomes of our initiatives. This includes collecting ad-hoc feedback
from participants and conducting pre- and post-feedback surveys using mixed-methods
approaches, adhering to ethical guidelines and best practices to ensure data reliability. Data
are analysed and presented to City Corporation 's Education Board.

Impact is explored through interviews with participants, teachers, or parents/carers, and we
commission external evaluations with HEls and Think-Tanks to generate new insights into
social mobility and outcomes. We track educational outcomes by partnering with research
organisations to monitor attainment against our funded projects and programmes,
particularly through the City Premium Grant.

Evaluation indicated that impacts included: Enrichment (22 projects), Attainment (17
projects), Skills development (10 projects), Future pathways, (10 projects), Pastoral care, (9
projects), Behaviour (5 projects), - Continued Professional Development (CPD) (3 projects);
Rewards, (2 projects). Examples of projects are included at the end of this form.

31

Page 52



Page 53

Section 2:
Attraction and University outreach

Please indicate if your organisation will be submitting answers to Section 2:
Attraction and University outreach

Yes - we will be submitting answers to Section 2: Attraction and University outreach

l No - we will not be submitting answers to Section2: Attraction and University outreach

If no, please state the reason why you are not submitting answers to this section:
(150 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

1a. Does your organisation conduct university outreach, either in person or
virtually, to raise awareness of your graduate opportunities?

(tick all that apply)
] In person
L] Virtually (direct engagement with specific universities)
Ol We undertake university outreach in partnership with a third-party organisation

No - Any outreach is conducted by the Local Government Association (LGA), it's possible
that the LGA may promote the National Graduate Development Programme directly to
universities aiming to generate interest amongst final year students. City Corporation is
not party to this.

| N/a, we do not offer graduate opportunities

[If 1a ‘Virtually’ = ‘Yes’]

1b. If you conduct university outreach exclusively virtually or both in person
and virtually, please explain which activities are conducted virtually and the
rationale for this.

(200 words)

n/a

32




Page 54

[If 1a ‘Virtually’ = ‘Yes’]

2a. In total, how many universities did you conduct direct outreach with
(virtually or in person - and not including reaching institutions through general
social media messaging) in the 2024 reporting period?

n/a

2b. Please indicate below which criteria (if any) you use when selecting
universities to conduct outreach with, and the number and percentage of
universities you work with that meet each criterion.

Criteria Criteria Number of
used? universities meeting
criteria
Universities with an above average proportion of O n/a

students from a low participation neighbourhood
(greater than 12.1%)*

Universities with a high proportion of students that | [ n/a
attended a state school (greater than 90.3%)*

Russell group universities* Ol n/a
Non- Russell group universities* Ol n/a
Universities which are close to our offices (within O n/a

roughly an hour’s travel)

Other, please specify Ol n/a

*Please find below links which will support you with your answer to this question:

University data — proportion of students from a low participation neighbourhood

University data - Proportion of state school students

List of Russell group universities

33



https://www.officeforstudents.org.uk/data-and-analysis/access-and-participation-data-dashboard/data-dashboard/
https://www.hesa.ac.uk/data-and-analysis/performance-indicators/widening-participation
https://russellgroup.ac.uk/about/our-universities

2c. Which universities did you work with most frequently in the 2024 reporting
period and how many outreach activities did you conduct with these
universities?

Position | University Total number of Number of in Number of online
interactions/events | person events/interactions
events/interactions
1 n/a n/a n/a n/a
2 n/a n/a n/a n/a
3 n/a n/a n/a n/a
4 n/a n/a n/a n/a
5 n/a n/a n/a n/a
6 n/a n/a n/a n/a
7 n/a n/a n/a n/a
8 n/a n/a n/a n/a
9 n/a n/a n/a n/a
10 n/a n/a n/a n/a

3a. Does your organisation partner with any widening participation and/or

careers teams at any university (this might include joint planning of

programmes or shared approaches to targeting young people)?

] Yes, please specify how

many:

Click or tap here to enter text.

No

34

Page 55



Page 56

[If 3a = “Yes’]

3b. Please tell us how you have worked widening participation and/or careers

teams to increase the number of students from lower socioeconomic

backgrounds attending your events.

(200 words)

n/a

4a. Does your organisation monitor the socioeconomic background of
attendees at university events?

O Yes

No

[If 4a = ‘Yes']
4b. If yes, please complete the below table where known.

% attended non-selective state school

% first generation to attend university

—
8
c
.© S ®
L3 0 g
° Ew 9 [
7} o 3 o c
S c O - o
(o) } - — - —
] o ® o Q B =
e 1 gg 2 : 23
0 2
4] ‘s 9 - [*} T x
£ 8 & 3 @ £ O
o 8 = o
7] o o 8 c Z
T 5 > = © QD
3 3 © g 7] 3 [
- 28 ¢ 5 b 8 5
= €5 ] @ -
© 3 S 3 ° o <
> P o c (a4
o [} - (© o o ]
£ o E 5 <
S ° Q £ o + o _i
= [ X 3 3 ® + =
t = VU U © « O
S ¥ o 0O o 9 o o O
< Zz > 2 o > E S > =
Attendance | n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
at careers
fairs
In-person n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
events
Webinars n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
35




Mentoring n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

Application | n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
support

[If 4a = ‘No’]
4c. If no, why does your organisation not monitor the socioeconomic
background of attendees at university events?

(200 words

EDI monitoring with the aim of attracting candidates within a particular
socioeconomic background is primarily carried out by the Local Government
Association directly as the organising body for our graduate programme — a
programme open to Local Authorities in general. This mechanism gives us a more
impactful and broader reach into the pool of interested graduates than we could
achieve ourselves. Further monitoring can be made by City Corporation at interview
stage of recruiting candidates when data on backgrounds can be gathered.

There is school-specific engagement with universities that is not captured centrally,
for example via our independent schools. These will either follow localised
information arrangements or approaches agreed by individual School Boards.

5. Please indicate below if there is an advantage in your recruitment process
for students who have attended university outreach events - and if this is
made clear on your website/recruitment materials

Advantage in Is this made | Link to website or recruitment
your clear on material
recruitment your
process? website?
Yes - candidates are O O n/a
flagged during the
recruitment process
Yes - information is O O n/a
provided at university
events in more detail
than on our website
Yes - other, please O O n/a
specify:
36

Page 57



No Outreach is conducted by the Local
Government Association (LGA), on
behalf of the overall the National
Graduate Development Programme
directly to universities. City
Corporation is not party to this.

6a. Does your organisation reach out to students at universities it
doesn't hold virtual or in person events visits with?

O Yes No

6b. Please tick below any ways in which your organisation engages with
students at universities you do not visit:

] Regional university fairs

Chat forums/Webinars

E-mentoring

Access to the same resources given out/presented at virtual or in person university visits

Social media

Olgjlo|o|o

Virtual experiences (not including virtual visits that have replaced in person ones due to
Covid-19)

X

Something else, please write | Recruitment is primarily through the LGA.
in:

[If 6b = Any option]
6¢. Please detail below any information you have on the socioeconomic
background of those who access the additional support.

(200 words)

For example, if resources are made available online, are they being accessed by
students at universities outside of the Russell Group?

n/a

7a. Does your organisation operate any initiatives/partnerships to attract
applications and/or increase the success rate of applicants - from lower

37

Page 58



Page 59

socioeconomic backgrounds into your graduate recruitment

programmes?
O Yes No
[If 7a = “Yes’]

7b. Please give details for each initiative/partnership below.

= 3 = t
)
g o 5 - 9% 9
=2 C " QB = c
o9 c s 35 8 =
» B - = e n - ¢
R 2 2§ 2 g
v @ 2 © 0o 0 € = 2
o 29 4w 9 > © t o Qo
£ RG] R S >0 2 T
ol sFHFEcl <z 3 o x
c = =S 0 £ ‘(9 ,.f_u; g .E l'(; -
o S 2550 S s 8 &5
‘e 0= 8 8 o i 5 & w0
] £ T ® ¥ ¢ = @ @ 9 =2
3 ~ O 'S c [}
= ¥ S5 9=t 8 2 3 0 9 -
() QU D - & = t Q O E Q o
t b 0 - © > Q ®© (9} > >
© S gweE S = o 2 o u v e =2
g A= G - 5 w E .2 “ £ 0o
S 9 £ € 05 > <) o m ¥ o %
9 T n B c < P » 0.0 e ¥
2 P o = o o =B 7]
5 v 0= g = o s = o o
& ns2g¢g | 2 £t Esfx £2 2
= 8 F 5. e 2 5 5 532E| 585
£ o oo o .5 w Z c Z % O Z o c
Initiative/ n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
partnership
1
Initiative/ n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
partnership
2
Initiative/ n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
partnership
3
[If 7a = ‘No’]

7c. If your organisation does not currently operate any initiatives to attract

candidates from lower socioeconomic backgrounds, are there plans in place to

do so?

(200 words)

38



Page 60

Our People Strategy 2024-29 aims to increase a more diverse range of candidates,
including form lower socioeconomic backgrounds and work will develop over the
next few years.

City Corporation will take steps to improve and support success rates of applicants
from lower socioeconomic backgrounds via recruitment strategies such as ring-
fencing some placements for applicants from non-Russell group universities. Plans
for this are still under development, and will be realised as part of the next round of
graduate recruitment.

Our Young Employees Network has supported the pilot of a Graduate Scheme (as
part of the Local Authority Graduate Scheme), and will be providing support for the
new intake later this year.

8a. If your organisation offers apprenticeships, does your organisation operate
any initiatives/partnerships to attract applications or increase the success rate
of applicants from lower socioeconomic backgrounds within your
apprenticeships schemes?

Yes
] No
| We do not offer apprenticeships

City Corporation offers a wide range of apprenticeships, spanning from level 2 to
level 7, catering to both new apprentices and the upskilling of current employees.
This benefits existing employees from lower social economic backgrounds.

Our commitment to fostering talent is evident in our support for 100 entry-level
apprenticeships within our organisation at all times.

These apprenticeships are specifically ringfenced for applicants with GCSE and
lower levels of qualifications, ensuring equitable access to opportunities for
individuals from diverse backgrounds. In exceptional cases where positions remain
unfilled, we may extend opportunities to applicants with A levels, albeit no higher.

Collaborating with employment agencies across local areas, we actively participate
in recruitment events targeting individuals from lower socioeconomic backgrounds.
Our primary partner in this endeavour is the Prince’s Trust: this collaboration
enables us to reach and support a broader spectrum of potential candidates

39




[If 8a = “Yes’]

iative/partnership below.

ini

8b. Please give details for each

(Ajuo si1aquinu
pasul aseald) 1oy pandde Aayy uonisod
pauleyqo jeyj ajdoad jo JoquinN

° °
o~ c c
(Ajuo
slaquinu Ju9sul 9seald) aAneniul ayy
JO 1INsaJ se A)3da41p uonesiuebio JnoA
03 pandde aAey jeyy aydoad jo JaquinN o m m
(Ajuo siaquinu
H9sul asedald) sjuedpiyied jo JaquinN
@ ©
@ = =
(wsy | I
19A97 ‘sadxnuaidde asu69(q "6°9) syuoddns =
aARERIUI SIY) 1ey} 19A9) diysadipuaiddy 2 © ©
4 m e =
[
5 S
euou AN | T - Bw 3
$:302% | <o <
32 90 g 0O c c
diysiauried/uonuaniajul
JO uoned0)] ‘UoiUSBAINUI JO
ya6ua) ‘una saniAnde ‘abe sjuedpiaed 2
‘dno.b 1964e] :Buipniul ‘diysisuried \ © ©
10 dA1IE1UI BY]) 9CIIDISOP dsed]d 9 = =
(%]
aweu diysidupied/aaneniu| 8 =
£ 3 © ©
a - < =
2 L2 L2
ek 3T 3%
S 0 S o S o
8 5 8 5 8 5
2% 2% 2%
S aow £ o £ o

[If 8a = ‘No’]

itiatives to attract

8c. If your organisation does not currently operate any in

candidates from lower socioeconomic backgrounds within your apprenticeship

schemes, are there plans in place to do so?

(200 words)

n/a

40

Page 61



9a. If your organisation offers a school leaver programme, does your

organisation operate any initiatives/partnerships to attract applications or
increase the success rate of applicants from lower socioeconomic

backgrounds?
Yes
U] No
U We do not offer a school leaver
programme
[If 9a = “Yes’]

9b. Please give details for each initiative/partnership below.

< S« t
-
g o E s 9% &
3 C 0 [T (=
o o - ()] T
P £ 3 a 2 - O
5 0 - ] o o £ o 9
S ., S 0 o = 5 e 3
- 8 o 0 € s 3
o 2 9w - > © t o Q
£ 2§ o O o 8 >3 o =
s SFEcg - g o S8
c To3SS 2 ® 9 £ B E
o — == c s ko]
= C U0V ® = © L .= 0 K=
< Q5 g 0 9 8 ¥ T 0 = 0
] £ 8 T o ¢S W= QO o @ 0 =
= ¥ = Q = t © v - (] - QO
9 0oV o - ‘= i Q O = o a
c o € g € g ] £ - 0B 2 O 0 =~
£ 2= c L 2 g > 0 ® 0 o >
P 0w o o -
[ U g wn e C ] = o 4 S 9 C
o n .= ¥ € O v - 0 - C .= L )
~ 9 £ €S 05 <) o g ¥ o ¥
Y T 08 >c 2 o P » 0.0 L o
> - O = 0 =5 0 = B g § =
= Qo 0= a0 9 — [ o = o o
s weleo 2 2 2 o QS ° £ = 2 5 0o
S SEEELE o o E E E5,2> EGE
'S I 68 aw ¥ = S 3 S ° 2 c 3 0 3
£ o aoao.£ w Z c Z >% © Z o c
Initiative/ National We work with 16 plus | A maximum | Approxima | Approximatel
partnership | Apprentic | young adults of a 100 per | tely 200— | y 30long
1 eship from the age of session. A 300 per term
programm | 16 years old and ‘role on roll annum contracts -
e beyond. Provide off’ some
national programme. temporary or
qualifications short term
and training. contractual
Programmes arrangement
are delivered s following
from 12 months the
to 3 years. This completion
is dependent on of

Page 62

41



the course. apprenticesh
Courses can ip courses
take place either

at the Guildhall

or at a local

college or

training

provider.

Initiative/ Internship | Work 16 — Contracted | Awaiting Awaiting

partnership experience 24- number of the assessment

2 opportunities for | year-old | 25 outcome of | outcome

young people with full | participants | young

assess adults who

ments. have been
assessed
and
qualifies for
the
Internment
programme

Initiative/ NEETS — | Work with young | 16- Target Project Not yet

partnership | between unemployed 25years | number is started in achieved-

3 the age of | people. Provide | old — 1000 April 2024, | the aimisto
16-25 appropriate Those so far a ensure that
years old | training and who are total of 100 | 80% of

skills. Prepare econom applicants | participants
ILPS and ically are able to
delivery action inactive secure
plans to assist —Notin employment
with further employ or further
training, ment or education
education and training and skills.
skills.
Employment is
also an
important
outcome

[If 9a = ‘No’]

9c. If your organisation does not currently operate any initiatives to attract

candidates from lower socioeconomic backgrounds within your school leaver

schemes, are there plans in place to do so?

(200 words)

Page 63

42



Page 64

n/a

43



Page 65

Section 3:
Recruitment and selection

Please indicate if your organisation will be submitting answers to Section 3:
Recruitment and selection

Yes - we will be submitting answers to Section 3: Recruitment and selection

U] No - we will not be submitting answers to Section 3: Recruitment and selection

If no, please state the reason why you are not submitting answers to this section:
(150 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

1a. During the recruitment process, is it advantageous for candidates to

apply early?
O Yes No
[If 1a = ‘Yes']

1b. Is this made clear on your website/in your recruitment materials?

] Yes O No

2a. If your organisation works with external diversity partners specifically on
socioeconomic background to supply candidates for roles, do you:

] Provide additional support for these candidates

Ol Flag those candidates during the recruitment process

O Fast-track candidates to move them through particular stages of the process (e.g.
straight to interview)

We do not work with external diversity partners

] Other - please specify: Click or tap here to enter text.

44




Page 66

[If 2a = Yes to any other than We do not work with external diversity partners]

2b. Which external partners do you work with to increase the diversity of your
applications by socioeconomic background? (Please simply state the name of
the organisation and/or initiative)

(150 words)

n/a

3a. Where your organisation uses external recruitment agencies, are they
given a brief specifically asking to see a diverse range of candidates on
socioeconomic background?

Yes

L] No

O We do not use external recruitment agencies.
[If 3a = “Yes’]
3b. If yes, please paste the wording of a recent brief below.
(150 words)

City Corporation values the rich diversity and creative potential people with diverse backgrounds,
skills and abilities bring to the workplace. Please detail how your organisation will address Equality,
Diversity and Inclusion challenges through the delivery and management of this recruitment process.
We have an inclusive approach to recruitment and require you to put forward candidates from a
range of backgrounds, particularly women, people from minority ethnic backgrounds, people with
disabilities who are currently underrepresented at senior grades, and to include social mobility. Itis
therefore important that you include details about how you will conduct your search to enable a
diverse shortlist for interviews to be achieved.

4. Are those involved in the recruitment process trained on unconscious bias, in
particular accent bias?

Yes, please explain what training is There is a recruitment policy, and we have
provided in relation to socioeconomic mandatory recruitment and selection training for
background: anyone involved in managing recruitment

processes, which includes fair recruitment and

45




unconscious bias training. The training is
available to anyone involved in recruitment.

5a. Does your organisation utilise artificial intelligence when sifting
applications?

U] Yes, please identify which tool is used. Click or tap here to enter text.
No
[If 5a = ‘Yes’]

5b. Have you explored the impact of this on the number of candidates
from lower socioeconomic backgrounds who progress to the next stage
in the application process.

O Yes O No

[If 5b = “Yes’]

5c¢. Please share your findings (including links to any relevant research you
have carried out). For example, has the use of technology/Al to sift
applications resulted in an increase or decrease in the number of candidates
from a lower socioeconomic background being progressed to the next stage.

(300 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

6a. Do you ensure that the pay range for every role is clearly stated in all
job adverts?

Yes O No

[If 6a = ‘No’]
6b. If you do not advertise the pay range for roles, what is the reason for this?

(200 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

46

Page 67



6¢. Do you ask candidates applying for roles within your organisation
what their current salary is?

Yes O No

7a. Does your organisation offer financial incentives to employees that
recommend a candidate who is then hired?

O Yes No

[If 7a = ‘Yes']
7b. Are employee recommendations or referrals scored favourably in the
recruitment process?

O Yes No

[If 7a = ‘Yes']
7c. What do you know (if anything) about the socioeconomic background
of those who join your organisation due to a recommendation from a
current employee?

(250 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

8. Please provide a link to the recruitment pages on your website:

City of London Corporation Jobs

9a Do any of your entry routes have minimum academic requirements?

Yes No Sometimes We do not offer these
Degree O O Il
apprentice Criteria

set by

ESFA

47

Page 68


https://jobs.cityoflondon.gov.uk/

Page 69

Apprentice (level | [] O GCSE O
5/ SCQF 8 and requirements[]
below)

School leaver O O O
Graduate ] O O
Experienced hires | [J O O

[If 9a = ‘Yes’ or ‘Sometimes’ to any]

9b. Please detail below the average minimum academic requirements for roles
at your organisation (where relevant) and the rationale behind them. Please
specify whether the rationale has been set by you as the employer, the training
provider, a regulator, or elsewhere:

Please only differentiate different levels of apprenticeships and graduate schemes
where the minimum grade requirements differ.

For levels where your organisation does not have minimum grade requirements,
please write 'none' in the minimum grade requirements column.

Role Minimum grade requirements Rationale

Degree apprentice ESFA set educational
requirements to selected
apprenticeships

Apprentice (level 5/ Varies. Selected apprenticeships This is a national requirement set
SCQF 8 and below) require evidence of English and by the apprenticeship levy.
Maths GCSE Grade C/5
equivalent
School leaver Click or tap here to enter text. Click or tap here to enter text.
Graduate 2.2 or higher This is consistent with the

approach other firms take to
recruiting graduates.

Experienced hires

10a. Do you collect data on the number of successful applicants
meeting/exceeding your minimum grade requirements?

48




[If 10a = ‘Yes']

10b. Please tell us how many of your applicants in the past year met the

minimum requirements and how many exceeded the minimum grade

requirement:

Please insert numbers only*

Total intake

Number that met but did not

exceed the minimum
requirements

Number that exceeded the
minimum requirements

requirements but did so with

Number that did not initially
the use of contextual

meet the minimum
recruitment or other similar

measures

Degree
apprentices (level
6/7 or SCQF 9 and
above)

Click or tap here
to enter text.

Click or tap here
to enter text.

Click or tap here
to enter text.

Click or tap here
to enter text.

Apprentices (level
5 or SCQF 8 and
below)

Click or tap here
to enter text.

Click or tap here
to enter text.

Click or tap here
to enter text.

Click or tap here
to enter text.

School leaver

Click or tap here
to enter text.

Click or tap here
to enter text.

Click or tap here
to enter text.

Click or tap here
to enter text.

Graduate

Experienced hires

Click or tap here
to enter text.

Click or tap here
to enter text.

Click or tap here
to enter text.

Click or tap here
to enter text.

11a. Are candidates’ academic grades considered in context?

O Yes - using a contextualised recruitment tool e.g. RARE, REALRating etc

Yes - informally or using our own scoring system

Page 70

49



Page 71

] No - grades are not considered in context

] We don't look at candidates’ grades

[If 11a = either ‘Yes’ option]
11b. If a candidate's academic grades are looked at, when and how is this
information used in the application process?

(200 words)

Our standard process for recruitment is that we consider grades in context, and will
ask for these or relevant skills and experience for the role. This gives us a holistic
picture of the candidate and encourages those who may have lower grades or gaps
in qualifications but still have relevant experience and capabilities.

In the process of selecting candidates for entry-level apprenticeships, our focus remains on
supporting individuals with lower levels of education, specifically GCSE and below. This
approach ensures equitable opportunities for candidates from diverse educational
backgrounds, aligning with our commitment to fostering inclusivity and accessibility within
our organisation.

For vacancies that are challenging to fill, we may extend consideration to applicants with A
levels. However, it is important to note that candidates with higher levels of education are
not considered for entry-level apprenticeships. This strategic decision is aimed at
maintaining consistency in our selection process and optimizing opportunities for individuals
with varying educational experiences to thrive within our apprenticeship programs.

By adhering to these selection criteria, we uphold our commitment to providing a supportive
and inclusive environment for apprenticeship candidates, fostering their growth and
development as they embark on their professional journeys with us.

[If 11a = either ‘Yes’ option]
11c. Do you have evidence that this approach has improved the proportion of
candidates from lower socioeconomic backgrounds who are successful?

O Yes No

[If 11c = ‘Yes’]

11d. If yes, please provide data showing the increase in the number of
candidates from a lower socioeconomic background who were hired as a result
of using contextual recruitment.

Click or tap here to enter text.

50




Page 72

12. Has your organisation assessed whether there is a correlation between a
candidate’s grades and their performance in role? If yes, please explain your
findings.

(300 words)
N/a

13a. Please indicate below if the following information is visible to the hiring
manager/panel considering the application at any stage of the recruitment
process.

Please select yes only if the information is visible to the hiring manager/panel. If this
information is visible to others such as those in HR, but not the hiring
manager/panel, please select No.

Yes No
Candidates’ names ]
Candidates’ school / college attended for the majority of key stage 4 | []
and key stage 5S5 studies
Candidates’ grades (school — and university attainment where U]
appropriate)
Candidates’ university (where appropriate, and recognising courses U]
that include relevant professional qualifications may need to be
included)
Candidates’ hometown O

[If any 13a are selected]

13b. If any of the above characteristics are visible during the recruitment
process, please explain at which stage they become visible and the rationale
for this.

(200 words)

Candidate name is visible from shortlisting stage and functions as the current
application identifier. Candidate grades are visible as part of shortlisting stage. We

51




Page 73

are planning to move to anonymised recruitment in due course as part of a systems
update. This will enable us to have blind recruitment and selection.

Candidates are asked to refer to the Job Description and Person Specification and
give details of all relevant work-related or professional memberships and
qualifications. If they do not have required qualification or professional membership,
candidates are asked to give details of the relevant equivalent experience held in
the supporting statement section of the application form.

Candidate address is visible from shortlisting.

14a. Do you flag students with certain socioeconomic background
characteristics in your recruitment process?

O Yes No

[If 14a = ‘Yes’]
14b. If yes, what information is flagged?

Tick all that apply.
Ol Parental occupation
] Applicant was eligible for free school meals
O Applicant attended state school
O Applicant attended non-selective state school
O Neither of the applicants’ parents/guardians attended university
Ol Applicant attended secondary education in an area of high deprivation or a social mobility

cold spot

O

Applicant was on a social mobility programme

Other - please specify: Click or tap here to enter text.

[If 14a = ‘Yes’]
14c. What did you do to support applicants who were flagged? Select each
type of support that was used in at least one instance.

Tick all that apply.

O Second-look

O Coaching provided

52




Page 74

O Mentoring provided

] Buddying provided

O Other - please specify:

Click or tap here to enter text.

[If 14a = ‘Yes’]

14d. Please fill in the table below for the 2024 Index reporting period.

]
w K 5
- 3 © =]
g 9 E °
S c ° 4 ° )
<Y ] 2 ] S ]
o o t - 0 E E w = ]
[ ] - o 'S o " [] = o
- o) [l o 2 = Y Y= O T
(=] o)) [] [o) ] [] (9] b (] [o) ]
- © - o = -~ E = ~ c .=
g |, /8, £ &8 % & | E=
E S 8 EQ | 53 £ S 8 £ S 9
=] » C = - B > = o = - B
£ 88 | E=z 8z £ 29 | = 23
© € = c O €T © € o S [
+ Q P C c = + c
o S o S o 3 @ <) 3
- z& P8  z8 |8 zZz: | P z 8
Graduate n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Degree Click Click Click Click Click Click Click Click
apprentices (level | ortap or tap or tap or tap or tap or tap or tap or tap
6/7 or SCQF 9 and | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto
above) enter enter enter enter enter enter enter enter
text. text. text. text. text. text. text. text.
Apprentices (level | Click Click Click Click Click Click Click Click
5 or SCQF 8 and ortap |ortap |ortap |ortap |ortap |ortap |ortap | ortap
below) hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto
enter enter enter enter enter enter enter enter
text. text. text. text. text. text. text. text.
School leaver Click Click Click Click Click Click Click Click
or tap or tap or tap or tap or tap or tap or tap or tap
hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto
enter enter enter enter enter enter enter enter
text. text. text. text. text. text. text. text.
Experienced hires | Click Click Click Click Click Click Click Click
or tap or tap or tap or tap or tap or tap or tap or tap
hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto
enter enter enter enter enter enter enter enter
text. text. text. text. text. text. text. text.

53



Page 75

15a. Do you provide training and guidance to staff to make it clear that
candidates should be hired based on the skills and competences required for
the job, and not on other aspects that are irrelevant to job performance?

Yes O No

[If 15a = ‘Yes’]
15b. If yes, please explain what training is provided and copy and paste the
guidance given to hiring managers.

(300 words)

Face to face training is offered to any staff who recruit any new staff. This includes
the process to be undertaken, candidate experience, bias free recruitment and best
practice around organising interview panels and shortlisting. Staff must have
completed this training before they can undertake recruitment. There is also an
elLearning package for refresher training for recruitment for staff to undertake if
they have not recruited for a while.

16a. Does your organisation operate any system of taking a 'second- look' at
candidates from lower socioeconomic backgrounds if they are set to be
rejected after the initial sift?

O Yes No

[If 16a = ‘Yes']
16b. Please provide details of what you do and what difference it has made:

(150 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

17a. Where an applicant is required to travel to appear in person (e.g.
interview, assessment centre) do you...

O Account for travel time, starting later or finishing earlier to enable people to travel at
reasonable times if they are not based near the office

Provide accommodation for those who do not live locally

Pay for relevant travel costs

54




] Provide financial reimbursement for loss of earnings or any additional costs

] No in person element

Other - please specify: Offer flexible scheduling to meet their needs

[If 17a ‘Pay for relevant travel costs’ = ‘Yes’]
17b. If you pay for travel costs, please indicate which of the following options

apply:

l Means tested, please specify the criteria:

Not means tested

O
| Paid upfront/booked for the student
O

Reimbursed following travel

18. In interviews, do you ensure that only standardised questions are asked
and that there is a standardised scoring system for these?

Yes O No

19a. Which of the following types of questions are asked during interview for
each entry level:

Please see here for an explanation of the types of interview questions.

Types of question | Apprenticeships | School Leaver Graduate Experienced
hires

Stren?th based O 0 0

questions

Competency. 0

based questions

Exper.lence B B u

questions

Technical questions | [ O ]

Motlv?tlon u

questions

55

Page 76


https://info.lse.ac.uk/current-students/careers/information-and-resources/interview-assessment-centre-psychometric/types-of-interview-questions#:~:text=Types%20of%20interview%20questions%201%20Competency%20questions%20The,6%20Situational%20judgement%20...%207%20Brain%20teasers%20

Page 77

Othe_r, please B B O B
specify:

N/A- we do not

offer this entry a a O
route

19b. Please explain the rationale for the types of questions chosen and provide
a copy, where available, of the guidance given to hiring managers on selecting
interview questions:

(300 words)

To ensure consistency and fairness, interview questions will be phrased to avoid bias and
all candidates will be asked competency-based questions (i.e., questions related to the
criteria on the job and person specification). Probing follow up questions and/or questions
relating to the information provided by the individual on their application form may also be
asked as necessary. Care will be taken, however, to avoid questions being asked that could
be construed as being discriminatory (e.g., questions about personal circumstances that are
unrelated to the job).

Where it is proposed to use tests or assessment centres within the selection process, the
manager should consult with People & HR regarding the assessment process. Tests should
be relevant to the post, fair to all candidates and based on the essential criteria. They
should be applied equally to all candidates with reasonable adjustments being made for
candidates with disabilities. All individual results should be recorded in the recruitment
papers and collective results should be retained centrally.

20a. Does your organisation ask applicants for feedback on the recruitment

process?
L] Yes, successful applicants
L] Yes, unsuccessful applicants
No

[If 20a = ‘Yes’]
20b. Do you analyse the feedback by socioeconomic background?

] Yes, successful applicants

(| Yes, unsuccessful applicants

56




Page 78

[If 20c = ‘Yes’]
20c. What are your findings? Please provide details for data from both
successful and unsuccessful applicants, where this is recorded.

(200 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

21. Does your organisation provide feedback to unsuccessful applicants? If yes,
at what stage feedback is provided and share broadly the level of detail of this
feedback.

(200 words)

Feedback is provided to unsuccessful candidates who have declared a disability and
indicated they would like to be considered under the guaranteed interview scheme.

Feedback is provided to unsuccessful candidates after interview. Structure of the
feedback is to refer to interview notes and give a summary of what the candidate
did well and what could have been improved.

22a. Does your organisation monitor its recruitment process to identify
whether there are stages of the recruitment process where there are unequal
rates of success by socioeconomic background?

] Yes No

[If 22a = ‘Yes']

22b. Please detail here which stages have been identified as barriers, and what
actions have been taken to rectify this, and what difference these changes
have made:

(300 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

57




23a. Have you analysed whether those from lower socioeconomic backgrounds
who are either successful or unsuccessful in your recruitment process are
disproportionately a particular gender or ethnicity?

O Yes No

[If 23a = ‘Yes’]
23b. If yes, please give details of what you found and what actions you have
taken as a result of your findings:

(300 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

58

Page 79



Page 80

Section 4:
Routes into the employer

Please indicate if your organisation will be submitting answers to Section 4: Routes
into the employer

Yes - we will be submitting answers to Section 4: Routes into the employer

U] No - we will not be submitting answers to Section 4: Routes into the employer

If no, please state the reason why you are not submitting answers to this section:
(150 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

1. Does your organisation offer internships? (N.B please see the employer

guidance for a definition of internships).

O Yes No

[If 1 Internships = ‘Yes’]
2. How many paid and unpaid internships were offered in the 2024 reporting
period?

Number of interns

Total number of interns n/a

appointed

Unpaid n/a

Paid expenses only n/a

Paid National Minimum Wage n/a

only

Paid Living Wage or higher n/a

59




Page 81

[If 1 Internships = ‘Yes’]
3. Please select the statements that best describe the selection process for
your internships:

All our internships are advertised externally with clear information about the timeframe,
pay and role description.

Our internships all have a rigorous, consistently applied selection process

Some of our internships have a rigorous selection process and some are offered
informally (such as to family and friends of employees or clients / stakeholders)

] All our internships are offered informally (such as to family and friends of employees or
clients / stakeholders)

[If 1 Internships = ‘Yes’]
4a. Are any of your internships ring-fenced for candidates from lower
socioeconomic backgrounds?

O Yes No - n/a

[If 4a = ‘Yes']

4b. Please provide details on ring-fenced internship(s) (e.g. name of
programme, whether it is run with a charity partner, whether it is publicly
advertised as ring-fenced for those from lower socioeconomic backgrounds,
how many places, the age group, length):

(200 words)
n/a
[If 4a = “Yes’]

4c. What criteria do you use?

(Please click all that apply)

O Candidates from a lower socioeconomic background (based on parental/guardian
occupation)

Candidates eligible for free school meals at any time during secondary education

Candidates’ parents/guardians did not attend university

Candidates live in a social mobility cold spot

60




Page 82

Candidates attended a non-selective state school

Candidates are care-experienced

Candidates were on one of our social Click or tap here to enter text.
mobility programmes, please state

which:
O Other - please specify: Click or tap here to enter text.
[If 4a = Yes’]

4d. Please tell us how many internship places you hosted overall, and how
many places were ring-fenced. If you hosted one intern and their place was not
ring-fenced please enter 1 and 0 below. If you hosted two interns, of which
one was a ring-fenced place, please enter 2 and 1 below.

(if your internships are ring-fenced based on a number of diversity characteristics,
please provide the number that met your socioeconomic eligibility criteria, rather
than the overall number of places available on the Programme).

The total overall number of internship places | n/a
offered by your organisation for its latest
intake

The total number of internships ring-fenced n/a
for candidates from lower socioeconomic
backgrounds in the latest intake

The total number of internship places ring- n/a
fenced for care-experienced candidates

[If 1 Internships = ‘Yes’]
5. Do you provide regular development feedback to your interns on their
performance?

O Yes No - n/a

If yes, please describe any processes you have in place to provide feedback to

interns.

Click or tap here to enter text.

61




Page 83

[If 1 Internships = ‘Yes’]
6. Are interns provided with a reference following their internship?

O Yes

No - n/a

[If 1 Internships = ‘Yes’]

7. Where collected, please provide below the data for your internships:

o
g 5
) © o 2
c + - .Z ©
o (1] o £ -
"] T o T
(] c E= 2 E
(] [%} [
— © 0 o =
s = o ! Ry
" g 7] c )
[7)] 1 o -
£ 3 £ o L < S
o 3 0 0 5 E © >
e ° Y= 3 © -
c ° 7T = S o ‘n
o] — = o c ()] E (1] -
o - T u © - ° v o
- o © bS] _.g (7] c n >
o - £ o T o o [ S 'E
& 9 e s S = o b < =
o 2 &2 3 0 = ® O 3
+ £ 0 o w 2 nw © w 2
o 5 c 3= c 3 c < c £
c c = - o = U = 9
[7] k4 Q [T [T =}
[} - = O C 2 U - +
5 g £% 9 £ £ 2 £ 2
@ P 283 L E L% L2
2024 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
reporting
period
intake
2023 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
reporting
period
intake
2022 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
reporting
period
intake
2021 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
reporting
period
intake
8a. Did you offer apprenticeships in the 2024 Index reporting period?
62




[If 8a = “Yes’]

8b. Do you offer any of the following apprenticeships? If yes, please complete
the number of apprenticeships in each category for the 2024 Index reporting

period.

Apprenticeship type

Number of apprenticeships

Apprenticeships as part of a school leaver No
programme

Apprenticeships for new starters 50
Apprenticeships for current employees 133
N/A we do not provide apprenticeships Ol

[If 8= any answer except ‘N/A we do not provide apprenticeships’]
9. Please provide data on the number offered in each nation for the 2024

reporting period:

Nation Number of apprenticeships

England 300 (offered)

Northern Ireland Click or tap here to enter text.

Scotland Click or tap here to enter text.

Wales Click or tap here to enter text.

[If 8= any answer except ‘N/A we do not provide apprenticeships’]
10. Where known, please provide below the data for your apprenticeships:

63

Page 84



2024 Index Reporting Period

$
5 | 3 g 5
) =
] s = — ©
[ [ 9 =2
n o] (0] (7] <))
© ) é h
@ LS5 8 S £
Q O TS Y c c
Y] - o
= 3 £ ° © et
c 8328 ~« ° g2
o = 0 o o =
i u (] Y - T U
o 9 28 32 E c w0
) g ES 2 B2 8 g .2
© ° °o® S| =E B < 't
S 4 22 Tg © 32 5
5 g E 2<% 258 8 22
- 2 < o v £ 8| U L 3 ]
] = i o £ 20 ¥ £ 5 £ 5
] c c S c 5 c & S ®
g 3 = £ | 2883 g2 g% g3
5 z 3 2 | &gt 23| 2, | 2
© - 0 © =]
¥ 2 c ) oG 2 s 8 c = (g
2 2 8 2 | 288 £ =% | 85
Level 6/7 49 8% 92% Not Not Not Not
or SCQF 9 recorde | recorde | recorde | recorde
and above d d d d
(Degree
apprentice
ships)
Level 4/5 60 2% 98% Not Not Not Not
or SCQF recorde | recorde | recorde | recorde
7/8 d d d d
Level 3 or 54 57% 43% Not Not Not Not
SCQF 6 recorde | recorde | recorde | recorde
d d d d
Level 2 or 20 70% 30% Not Not Not Not
SCQF 5 recorde | recorde | recorde | recorde
d d d d
2023 Index Reporting Period
64

Page 85



Page 86

- | = 3
6 ~ 8 T 5
- 8 < 9 e
0B [ [ S
nw 8 ] 0 o
c O ) é h
@ .25 & S £
g -1 c o
= 3 £ ° © et
c o 2 2 S g2
g s | w§E 3 : o s
g § g£¢ 25 3§ 23
© ) s w5 2¢F £ -
\la 3 t K] -% v o © ; =
5 g E 2<% 258 8 22
5 3 x o o E S| o= S 3 S G
0 € ] o £ 25 €18 2 8 B £
] c c S c 5 c & S ®
7] E} = 5 g 073 0 g 05 o
£ < 3 o s 9% o9 g @ 8%
o 2 o "% e oG5 o= S o o c
3 g S ] o C o s 8 c = (g
z [ X X 38 RE X B X5
Level 6/7 10 50% 50% Not Not Not Not
or SCQF 9 Recorde | Recorde | Recorde | Recorde
and above d d d d
(degree
apprentice
ships)
Level 4/5 Clickor | 15 67% 33% Not Not Not Not
or SCQF tap here Recorde | Recorde | Recorde | Recorde
7/8 to enter d d d d
text.
Level 3or | Clickor | 43 62% 38% Not Not Not Not
SCQF 6 tap here Recorde | Recorde | Recorde | Recorde
to enter d d d d
text.
Level 2 or | Clickor | 4 100% 0 Not Not Not Not
SCQF 5 tap here Recorde | Recorde | Recorde | Recorde
to enter d d d d
text.
2022 Index Reporting Period
65




s
5. S g 5
) =
] s = — ©
U @m [ 9 =
n o] (0] (7] <))
] ) é h
" 25 8 5 2
Q O TS Y c c
0 o
= 3 £ ® ° ] =
c 8328 ~« ° 8 2
g 7] - = 0 ] 9 @
o @ © 9| 3| E T ¢ =
o g E¥ 2 5.3 ] o >
© ) o &8 &5l = E t St
s r4 2.2 g o 3 35
5 g E 2<% 258 8 22
5 3 x o o E S| o= S 3 S G
] € i} o £ 2o ¥2 2 0 £ 5
- c c c S c 5 c = S w
5 z £ g | g8F g3 gg | g
5 z 3 2 | g2 83| 85| 8¢
© - 0 © =]
8 o c ) [ s 3 - c 3
2 2 8 2 =98 S| 8% | &%
Level 6/7 Clickor |5 100% 0 Not Not Not Not
or SCQF 9 | tap here recorde | recorde | recorde | recorde
and above | to enter d d d d
(degree text.
apprentice
ships)
Level 4/5 Clickor | 3 33% 67% Not Not Not Not
or SCQF tap here recorde | recorde | recorde | recorde
7/8 to enter d d d d
text.
Level3or | Clickor | 27 96% 4% Not Not Not Not
SCQF 6 tap here | Click or recorde | recorde | recorde | recorde
to enter | tap here d d d d
text. to enter
text.
Level 2or | Clickor |8 100% 0 Click or | Click or | Click or | Click or
SCQF 5 tap here tap here | tap here | tap here | tap here
to enter to enter | to enter | toenter | to enter
text. text. text. text. text.

2021 Index Reporting Period

66

Page 87



Page 88

0
c | = 2 g
6~ 8 g 5
T 8 = - [
[ [ 9 =2
n o] (7] (7] <))
S el ¢ < )
0 . = 0 2 =] 2
Q O TS Y c d=)
= 3w 3 © g
< 235 ¢« T 8 2
g ) ] ] [ ‘»
o @ " 9 3 E T ¢ =
o 9 E¥ S 5.3 9] o >
© 2 o ® S = E o] £ ¢
5 = €22 Tg © 3 5
= ) £ g5 98 0 g 2
- 2 = o v ES v L 3 L o
0 € S o E 2 o ¥ 1 B 9 B B
5 e E 2 553 5% 52 58
£ E 3 2 E3E 5% &% &%
o = o % a0 G5 o= o) o c
° ‘6’ < ¢ S R C & C 5
4 [ P-3 P-3 X8 a RE X h X3
Level 6/7 5 60% 40% Not Not Not Not
or SCQF 9 recorde | recorde | recorde | recorde
and above d d d d
(degree
apprentice
ships)
Level 4/5 3 0 100% Not Not Not Not
or SCQF Click or recorde | recorde | recorde | recorde
7/8 tap here d d d d
to enter
text.
Level 3or | Clickor | 42 95% 5% Not Not Not Not
SCQF 6 tap here record recorde | recorde | recorde
to enter Not d d d
text. recorde
ded
Level 2 or Clickor | 4 10% Not Not Not Not Not
SCQF 5 tap here recorde | recorde | recorde | recorde | recorde
to enter d d d d d
text.
11. Are all your apprentices paid the National Minimum Wage or
National Living Wage as appropriate?
Please only select an option if all apprentices are paid at that level.
O Paid National Minimum Wage (apprentice rate)
O Paid National Minimum Wage (standard rate)
67




] Paid Living Wage (apprentice rate)

Paid Living Wage (standard rate) or higher (London living wage L2 London living wage
+2% level 3)

] Paid National Minimum Wage (apprentice rate)

12. Does your organisation offer a school leaver programme?

] Yes No
[If 12= ‘Yes’]
13. Where known, please provide below the data for your school leaver
programme:
3
c
§_ | %
[¢]
° B ) c -
. © O £ S g
9 8 ¢ o+
2 =0 5 © ®
0O © ¥ N © o+
- C ) Q 1)
) c 3 2 - ke o ¢
$ ez | & = 23
o 3
2 s 23 S E £ 8 $%
c - U ¢ 0 .2 ©c = w
K v w 8 @ w £ w g w €
bt r2) - 0 .= = 9 = 0 = @
o v o T [T 9 o Q
g r > 2 = > 8 > 9 > T
= [ T £ G c - c © © ;
o < 9 6 3 3 3 A 8 35
o 5 2 6 =2 o o ¢ > = =
< c o9 g S o .2 olm
g 3 €88 2 £t | 5§
12 [ X Qa R E X3 a5
2024 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
reporting
period
intake
2023 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
reporting
period
intake
2022 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
reporting
period
intake

Page 89

68



Page 90

2021
reporting
period
intake

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a n/a

[If 12= ‘Yes']

14. For your school leavers, do you know/ publish any of the following

Known Published We do not
request
Yes | No | Yes |No | thisinthe
recruitment
process
The average A- O O O What are the average A-
Level/Highers / Level/Highers/ BTEC grades or
BTEC grades or equivalent?
equivalent of (200 words)
successful hires
Click or tap here to enter text.
The average O O O What are the average
GCSE/National 5 GCSE/National 5 grades or
grades or equivalent?
equivalent of (200 words)
successful hires
Click or tap here to enter text.

[If 12= ‘Yes']

15. Are all your school leavers paid the National Minimum Wage, or National
Living Wage as appropriate or higher? Please only select an option if all school
leavers are paid at that level.

O Paid National Minimum Wage only

O Paid Living Wage or higher

N/A- we do not offer school leaver programmes

69




Page 91

16. Does your organisation offer a graduate scheme?

O Yes No
[If 16= ‘Yes’]
17. Where known, please provide below the data for your graduate
programme:
()]
5_ | <
T8 8 % i<
0w 3 S K 3
0o 9 o S
2 S 0 L Y
" 2 ] s 2
0 52 B = c c
5 3% 5 o £ 2
_g O = © = T g ‘n
- D v o £ (7] b
o c X O - T 2 9
o o £ 8 ¢ 5 E s 8 2
o 3 c a8 = 5 £ £ 5
9] 2 Eu?P o © 3 35
£ 7] w £ 6 [ [7, - n <
S 2 s 3 gz g3 g8
8 £ T el c 2 s 2 T
c 3 5 073 3 o 35 =
c - VB T = T a T &
] - c 9 ¢ c u © c O
& © o 9 7] o T'U I 3 - C
3 2 95 & o8 o= o 5
« - X8 2 R E 3 XD
2024 Will Will Will Will Will Will
reporting commence | commence | commence | commence | commence | commence
period in in in in in in
intake September | September | September | September | September | September
2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024
2023 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
reporting
period
intake
2022 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
reporting
period
intake
2021 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
reporting
period
intake

70



Page 92

[If 16= ‘Yes’]

18a. Does your organisation accept degrees from any UK university for its

graduate scheme?

Yes O No

[If 18a = ‘Yes’]

18b. How many different UK universities were represented in the
following graduate intakes?

For example, 25 UK universities. Please insert numbers only

Number of graduates hired

Number of universities
represented

2024 Index reporting period

Will commence in September
2024, Data should be
available after onboarding

Will commence in September
2024, Data should be
available after onboarding

2023 Index reporting period n/a n/a
2022 Index reporting period n/a n/a
2021 Index reporting period n/a n/a

[If 16= ‘Yes’]
19a. Do you know/publish any of the following?
Known Published We do not request
this in the
Yes No Yes No recruitment process
The most O O O
common
universities
attended by
successful hires
The most a O O O
common UK
degree

71




Page 93

disciplines of
successful hires

The most
common degree
classifications

The average A- [

Level/Highers /
BTEC grades or
equivalent of

successful hires

The average O

GCSE/National 5
grades or
equivalent of
successful hires

[If 19a ‘The most common universities attended by successful hires’ = ‘Known’]

19b. What are the top five most common universities attended by successful

hires and the % of successful hires who attended these universities?

Position | University name % of successful hires who
attended this university

1 n/a n/a

2 n/a n/a

3 n/a n/a

4 n/a n/a

5 n/a n/a

72



Page 94

[If 19a ‘The most common UK degree disciplines of successful hires’ = ‘Known’]

19c. What are the top five most common degree disciplines of successful hires

and the % of successful hires who studied these disciplines?

Position | Degree discipline % of successful hires who
studied this discipline

1 n/a n/a

2 n/a n/a

3 n/a n/a

4 n/a n/a

5 n/a n/a

[If 19a ‘The most common degree classifications’ = ‘Known’]

19d. What are the % of successful hires who achieved these each of the below

degree classifications?

Degree % of successful hires achieving this classification
classification
First n/a
2:1 n/a
2:2 n/a
Third or below n/a
[If 16= ‘Yes’]

20. Please supply a breakdown of applications and acceptances for your UK

graduate entry intake in the reporting periods below for which you have data.

For the avoidance of doubt, this should only include UK universities.

Please insert numbers only

Russell group universities*

All other UK universities

73




Data not Number of | Number Data not Number of | Number
collected Applicants | accepted collected Applicants | accepted
2024 Graduate Graduate Graduate Graduate Graduate Graduate
Index schemeto | schemeto | schemeto | schemeto | schemeto | scheme to
reporting | commence | commence | commence | commence | commence | commence
period in in in in in in
September | September | September | September | September | September
2024.Data | 2024. Data | 2024. Data | 2024. Data | 2024. Data | 2024. Data
should be should be should be should be should be should be
available available available available available available
after after after after after after
onboarding | onboarding | onboarding | onboarding | onboarding | onboarding
2023 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Index
reporting
period
2022 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Index
reporting
period
2021 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Index
reporting
period

Page 95

*Please see the list of Russell group universities here

74


https://russellgroup.ac.uk/about/our-universities

Page 96

Section 5:
Data collection

Please indicate if your organisation will be submitting answers to Section 5: Data

collection
Yes - we will be submitting answers to Section 5: Data collection
U] No - we will not be submitting answers to Section 5: Data collection

If no, please state the reason why you are not submitting answers to this section:
(150 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

1. Does the data you are submitting for Section 5 relate to the whole of
your UK workforce?

Please only submit data relating to employees (not contractors).

Yes O No O Don’t know

[If 1a = ‘No’]
1b. Please explain which departments, functions, locations or level(s) of
seniority the data relates to.

(200 words)
All departments that full under City Corporation . This includes:

e Corporate Departments(Chamberlain's, Communications and External
Affairs, People and HR, City Surveyor’s, Corporate Strategy & Performance,
Comptroller and City Solicitors, Town Clerk’s Department, )

e Institutions — Barbican Centre, City Bridge Foundation, City Junior School,
City of London Police (Civilians), City of London School for Girls, Freemen’s
School Guildhall School For Music and Drama. These departments are based
at their respected locations

e Services — Community and Children's Services, Environment, Innovation and
Growth

75




Page 97

City Corporation is based across many sites including the Guildhall, Open Spaces
(Various including Epping Forest), Mansion House, the Old Baily and Heathrow.

The data will be based on all levels of seniority at City Corporation

2a. Does your organisation administer an annual or regular diversity survey?

Yes ] No

[If 2a = ‘Yes']
2b. Is response to the survey compulsory (always with an option for “prefer
not to say” and “l do not know”)?

] Yes No

3a. Please indicate below which of the following data points your organisation
is collecting for unsuccessful applicants, new hires and current employees:

Please note, it is not generally expected that organisations will collect data in all of
these categories.

Unsuccessful New hires Current We do not
applicants employees collect this data

Type of school

O O
attended

Type of school
attended with
'state school'
broken down into
selective and non-
selective

Occupation of
parent/guardian

Eligibility for free
school
meals/pupil
premium

76




Page 98

Whether or not
their
parents/guardians
attended
university

If 3a = "We do not collect this data’ for all options]
3b. If you are not currently collecting information for any of these groups, do
you have plans in place to do so? Please include timescales.

(150 words)

We have started collecting socio-economic data for current employees but we are
not collecting the socio-economic data for applicants. We are in the process of
reviewing the selection criteria and questions for the collection of all diversity data,

including Socio Economic data for applicants and current employees.

4a. Where data is collected, please provide the percentage completion rate for
each question for the reporting periods below.

Your completion rates should include people who have answered ‘prefer not to say’.
Please only provide data for employees, and do not include data for contractors.

2024 Index reporting period

Please insert number (e.g. 78% = 78)

% completion

% completion new

% completion current

unsuccessful hires employees
applicants
Type of school N/A 21% 16.5%
attended
Type of school N/A Of the 21% completed | Of the
attended with 16.5%
'state school' Selective 7.88% completed
broken down into Non-selective —
selective and non- 64.85% Selective
selective (by -11.57%

attainment)

77




Non-

Selective-
62.3%
Parental/guardian | N/A 20.3% 16%
occupation
Eligibility for free N/A 20.87% 16.48%
school meals/pupil
premium
Whether or not N/A 20.75 16.5%
their

parents/guardians
went to university

2023 Index reporting period
Please insert number (e.g. 78% = 78)

% completion

% completion

% completion

unsuccessful new hires current
applicants employees
Type of school attended N/A 24.42% 14.89%
14Type of school Click ortap | N/A Out of the Out of the
attended with here to 24.42% 14.89%
'state school' enter text. completed completed
broken down into
selective and non- Selective Selective -
selective (by 10.99% 13.11%
attainment)
Non-Selective Non Selective
68.06% 67.73%
Parental/guardian occupation N/A 23.66% 14.44%
Eligibility for free Click ortap | N/A 23.79% 14.79%
school meals/pupil | here to
premium enter text.

Page 99

78



Whether or not
their
parents/guardians
went to university

Click ortap | N/A
here to

enter text.

24.17%

14.84%

2022 Index reporting period
Please insert number (e.g. 78% = 78)

% completion % completion new % completion
unsuccessful hires current employees
applicants

Type of school N/A 12.7% 11.33%

attended

Type of school N/A Of the 12.7% Of the 11.33%

attended with 'state Completed completed

school' broken down

into selective and Selective 11.29% Selective 13.90%

non- selective (by

attainment) Non-Selective 70.97% | Non-Selective 68.56%

Parental/guardian N/A 12.5% 10.96%

occupation

Eligibility for free N/A 13.32% 11.33%

school meals/pupil

premium

Whether or not their | N/A 12.91% 11.27%

parents/guardians

went to university

2021 Index reporting period

Please insert number (e.g. 78% = 78)

79

Page 100



% completion % completion new % completion
unsuccessful hires current employees
applicants

Type of school N/A 7.84% 9.12%

attended

Type of school N/A Of the 7.84% Of the 9.12%

attended with 'state Completed Completed

school' broken down

into selective and Selective 8% Selective 14.59%

non- selective (by

attainment) Non Selective 72% Non Selective 67.90%

Parental/guardian N/A 7.84% 8.76%

occupation

Eligibility for free N/A 8.15% 9.05%

school meals/pupil

premium

Whether or not their | N/A 8.15% 9%

parents/guardians

went to university

5. What proportion of employees answered ‘prefer not to say’ or ‘l don’t
know’ in the 2024 Index reporting year?

2024 Index reporting period
Please insert number (e.g. 78% = 78)

% of new hires
who responded

% of current
employees who

% of current
employees who

% of new hires
who responded

‘prefer not to responded responded ‘I ‘l don’t know”
say’ ‘prefer not to don’t know’
say’
Type of school 1.5% 0.91% N/A N/A
attended
Type of school 1.5% 0.91% N/A N/A
attended with

Page 101

80



'state school'
broken down into
selective and non-
selective

Parental/guardian | 1.53% 1.53% N/A N/A
occupation

Eligibility for free | 0.61% 0.74% N/A N/A
school
meals/pupil
premium

Whether or not 0.31% 0.95% N/A N/A
their

parents/guardians
went to university

6. Please fill in details below, up to and including your UK Board/Management

Committee.

Key

UK Board/Management Sit on the leadership team and or report to the CEO

Committee:

Senior: Those in the most senior roles by grade / band or reporting directly to
this group and/ or leading large teams. May also include high level
specialist roles.

Middle: With developing professional experience, working under some
supervision or autonomously on smaller projects.

Junior: Undertaking closely supervised work, with little or no supervisory
responsibility, including entry level roles.

81

Page 102



) c
o 3 2 .2
3 c ) t ®
o < T .C ﬁ 9 a
(9] = c T (7] g — c
9 S §3¢8 3 - 8 gz
Q ; - 3 © c < o c
P _g 3 20 4 g o £ 29
g ° 223 ; : 53 | bz
= - © Y=
L > o £ 3 o o o E v 8
—_ o v 9 [ 9 ™ <
[} Q O .= ° ° - o >
> £ o EEG® c £ — o 0 =
K - > ‘; ° Q c Q o O V- = = £
] £ eceo t £ 2 L g $E2
- 6 € g 635 ® c 5 3 3 - E
T o £ O » 895 © - 2 0 ) -
oD T 5 0 2 o [ =2 Y T 9 9
] 3 © < Q2 n 3 < S & 2 © S <>
5 - o * + ‘0 ©® O + ¥ 5 v 9 L=
nw 3 T3 X258 -3 X h X E eSS
UK 10 (data is 10% 70% 60% 11% 60%
Board/Man | incomplete
agement at present)
Committee
Senior 40(data is 20% 75% 63% 20% 56%
incomplete
at present)
Middle 319(datais | 13% 73% 61% 13% 38%
incomplete
at present)
Junior 352(datais | 17% 85% 74% 18% 28%
incomplete
at present)

7a. Does your organisation collect data on the socioeconomic

background of any non-executive directors?

O Yes

O No

N/A we do not have any non-executive directors
[If 7a = ‘Yes’]

7b. Please provide the below data in relation to your non-executive directors,

where known.

Criteria

Percentage

Page 103

82



% that are from a lower socioeconomic Click or tap here to enter text.
background (based on parental/guardian
occupation)

% that attended a state school Click or tap here to enter text.

% that attended a non-selective state school Click or tap here to enter text.

% eligible for free school meals/pupil premium | Click or tap here to enter text.

% that were the first generation in their family
to attend university

8. Does your workforce data show any differences in different parts of the
organisation or job roles by socioeconomic background? Where this is the case,
what action have you taken in response to this?

There is currently insufficient data on socioeconomic background to identify
differences in job roles by socioeconomic background. However, we are aware that
there are pockets of areas more widely in our society where differences in job roles
exist and we will be working across the organisation to consider prioritised activity
on the basis of contextual organisational need as we continue to improve our data
collection.

9. Do you review data on the socioeconomic profile of your workforce against
national benchmarks, and against peer organisations where possible - e.g.
through a sector consortium focused on socioeconomic background?

O Yes No

10a. Is data on the socioeconomic profile of your workforce published

externally?
] Yes (please provide a link): | Click or tap here to enter text.
No

83

Page 104



[If 10a = ‘Yes’]
10b. Please indicate below which data points are published:

O

% that are from a lower socioeconomic background (based on parental/guardian
occupation)

% that attended a state school

% that attended a non-selective state school

% eligible for free school meals/pupil premium

Oojo|o|o

% that were the first generation in their family to attend university

11. Is your socioeconomic background data presented to your UK

Board/Management Committee?

Yes O No

Page 105

84



Section 6:
Pay, progression and retention

Please indicate if your organisation will be submitting answers to Section 6: Pay,
progression and retention.

Yes - we will be submitting answers to Section 6:
Pay, progression and retention

U] No - we will not be submitting answers to Section
6: Pay, progression and retention

If no, please state the reason why you are not submitting answers to this section:
(150 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

1a. Do you measure your Class Pay Gap?

Ol Yes, and we follow the best practice guidance published in October 2023 (link)
Ol Yes, but we take a different approach compared with the one outlined above
O No
No, but we intend to in the next year

[If 1a = “Yes’]

1b. If yes, do you publish your findings?

Ol Yes (please provide a link): | Click or tap here to enter text.
No
[If 1a = ‘Yes’]

1c. Do you have targets for closing your Class Pay Gap?

] Yes (please provide a link): | Click or tap here to enter text.

O No

85

Page 106


https://tsmf.sharepoint.com/sites/SMF-External/Shared%20Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2FSMF%2DExternal%2FShared%20Documents%2FAdvocacy%20%26%20Campaigns%2FLevelling%20The%20Playing%20Field%20%2D%20A%20practical%20guide%20for%20calculating%20your%20socioeconomic%20pay%20gap%2Epdf&parent=%2Fsites%2FSMF%2DExternal%2FShared%20Documents%2FAdvocacy%20%26%20Campaigns&p=true&ga=1

[If 1c = “Yes’]
1d. Are these targets published externally?

Yes

No

U] We have internal targets and public Click or tap here to enter text.

targets. Please specify (150 words):

2a. Does your organisation routinely offer variable pay depending on individual
or collective performance?

O Yes No

[If 2a = “Yes’]
2b. Please explain which roles have variable pay depending on individual or
collective performance and the rationale for this.

(200 words)

Although variable individual and collective performance pay is not currently
routinely offered across the organisation (with a small number exceptions), a
priority programme of work underway as part of our first ever People Strategy
2024-2029. This is entitled Ambition 25, and involves a review of our entire system
of job descriptions to implement a manageable number of succinct and outcome
focused role profiles that objectively defines each role’s purpose, responsibilities,
accountabilities, knowledge, skills, and experience within a job family structure. We
will create a new pay structure and job evaluation system that evaluates and
grades roles in a way that simplifies regrading and promotion processes to
acknowledge job growth, performance, and exceptional contribution in a more
equitable and objective way. We will develop a total reward approach to pay,
recognising contribution and offering flexibility and choice through a benefits portal
that includes a range of recognition mechanisms. This is a significant programme of
work that has begun this year, and that crosses submission year boundaries. The
programme will create a flexible, sustainable, equitable, and transparent reward
and recognitions system for our people, creating action plans to address pay gaps,
and developing mechanisms to identify and address any other pay inconsistencies.

3. Does your organisation have proactive succession planning procedures
in place?

Yes O No

86

Page 107



4a. Does your organisation analyse the below data by socioeconomic

background?
Yes | No | Is this data If provided, please | This is not
published? provide a link to applicable in
the data: our
organisation
Retention O O Click or tap hereto | O
enter text.
Progression O O Click or tap hereto | O
enter text.
Appraisal grades a a Click or tap hereto | O
(Performance) enter text.
Professional O O Click or tap hereto | O
exams/qualifications enter text.
Take up of training O (O Click or tap hereto | O
enter text.
Preparing teams to pitch | [ O Click or tap hereto | O
for work with prospective enter text.
clients
Work allocation O O Click or tap hereto | O
enter text.
Bonus allocation O O Click or tap hereto | O
enter text.
Take up of flexible ] ] Click or tap hereto | O
working options enter text.
Take up of hybrid O O Click or tap hereto | O
working enter text.
Perception of workplace O O Click or tap hereto | O

culture

enter text.

Page 108

87



Employee job satisfaction O O Click or tap hereto | O
enter text.

Promotion expectations O O Click or tap hereto | O
enter text.

Take up of mentoring O O Click or tap hereto | O
enter text.

[If 4a = “Yes’ for ‘Retention’]

4b. Please outline what your data on retention by socioeconomic background
shows and what actions you have taken to address the findings and the
difference any changes made if any:

(250 words)

Whilst we collect and currently analyse this data, we are taking the necessary steps
to continue to increase our declaration rates to enable better and more reliable
analysis: current disclosure rates are not sufficient for making reliable targeted
interventions at this stage, should this be relevant or needed.

[If 4a = “Yes’ for ‘Take up of Hybrid working’]

4c. Please outline what your data on take up of hybrid working by
socioeconomic background shows and what actions you have taken to address
the findings and the difference any changes made if any:

(250 words)

n/a

[If 4a = “Yes’ for ‘Bonus allocation’]

4d. Please outline what your data on bonus allocation by socioeconomic
background shows and what actions you have taken to address the findings
and the difference any changes made if any:

(250 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

88

Page 109



[If 4a = “Yes’ for any option]

4e. Have you analysed whether those from lower socioeconomic backgrounds
who may experience unequal outcomes are also disproportionately from a
background with a protected characteristic e.g. gender or ethnicity?

O Yes No
[If 4e = “Yes’]
4f. Please tell us what you have found:
(300 words)

We currently have insufficient socioeconomic data available to analyse
intersectional elements of other EDI protected characteristics. We will be able to
analyse this data once we have sufficient reporting of socioeconomic background
within the organisation. Initiatives are in place and underway to turn this around
over the course of this year.

5a. Have you (or a third party) analysed your workforce data to understand
whether there are unequal progression rates in your organisation by
socioeconomic background?

O Yes No
[If 5a = ‘Yes’]
5b. Briefly outline your methodology and your findings
(300 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

[If 5a = “Yes’]
5c. What actions have you taken in response to these findings

(200 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

89

Page 110



6a. Have you examined the role of internal sponsors within your organisation
(i.e. senior staff who support the career progression of more junior staff) to
see whether junior staff from lower socioeconomic backgrounds receive a
comparable level of sponsorship or work allocation to those from more
advantaged backgrounds?

O Yes No

[If 6a = “Yes’]
6b. If yes, please give details of what you have found, whether any changes
were made, and what differences you have seen as a result:

(300 words)

Although the response to 6a.in Section 6 (internal sponsoring) is no, City of London
Corporation has embarked on a pilot scheme that incorporates both mentoring and
reverse mentoring which will be rolled out more widely across the entire
organisation in 2024/25 and which includes our most senior leaders working with
more junior staff to support career progression, confidence, and network building.
As yet, it is too soon to measure the difference these schemes will make.
Additionally, although the role of sponsors at an individual staff level is not in
formally in place at City Corporation, each staff network within the organisation
benefits from two senior leaders as sponsors who actively guide and support the
members of the network. These arrangements are well established, and they have
made a demonstrable difference in encouraging the voices of the staff EDI networks
to expand their memberships, to be heard, and to positively influence culture and
system change. Finally, all staff network Chairs benefit from a specified work
allocation of their time that enables them to spend dedicated time supporting the
career progression of all staff, including those in the social mobility network (detail
in section 8), to progress their careers.

7a. Does your organisation specifically target any of the following activities at
those from lower socioeconomic groups:

Please provide detail of each one clicked.

We are looking here for activities specifically targeted at those from lower
socioeconomic groups, as opposed to activities targeted at women or non-white
employees.

20

Page 111



Yes No Please provide detail

Buddying/mentoring/sponsorship O Mentor Connect

scheme

Support with passing the required O Functional Skills
qualifications

Workshops/Masterclasses/Training | [ ] Click or tap here to enter text.

(e.g. on work skills)

A network of employees from O Social Mobility Network
similar backgrounds

Mentoring/leadership programmes O Pilot mentoring scheme underway;
to encourage progression leadership programme to support
management development

Flexible working arrangements, ] Flexible Working

like part-time positions or job

shares

Reverse mentoring O Reverse Mentoring (for young
employees)

[If 7a = “Yes’ to any option]
7b. Please describe the impact of these schemes, with particular reference to
their impact on progression and retention.

(200 words)

We are founding member of the Mentor Connect initiative, in collaboration with
various London Councils in the Heads of OD Network. Mentor Connect is a unique
opportunity to connect, learn, and grow with participants from different London
councils.

This scheme provides an opportunity for staff to accelerate their professional
growth and achieve their career goals. Through mentoring by senior professionals,
staff may realise career aspirations, address development needs and progress
within the workforce — helping us retain talent.

91

Page 112



We champion flexible working and have a policy that is designed to promote a
positive approach to working arrangements that supports employees from different
socio-economic backgrounds may need working patterns based upon personal
responsibilities.

Launching in June 2024, the Social Mobility staff network aims to empower and
advocate for individuals from low socio-economic backgrounds, raising awareness
about the importance of socio-economic diversity and providing opportunities for
training and support.

The Young Employees Network recently launched a five-month reverse mentoring
programme, allowing senior leaders to learn from early careers starters, and
enabling young employees to share ideas and perspectives. The scheme contributes
to the inclusivity and diversity of the organisation, and supports progression and
retention through learning

8. Are the criteria your organisation use to determine pay, pay levels and
opportunities for progression accessible and available to your employees? If
yes, please explain how.

Determining pay, pay levels, and providing accessible progression opportunities is
linked directly to the Ambition 25 programme of work (see question 2b). This work
includes the development of career path maps based on job families, including
access to apprenticeships for existing employees, secondments, and shadowing
opportunities to inform progression and promotions. Additional related work
includes the introduction of an annual manual process (ultimately automated with
the new Enterprise Resource Planning system connecting finance and people data)
to undertake a workforce planning exercise that enables us to understand our
current and future progression and succession planning needs, including identifying
and addressing skills gaps, understanding critical roles, and improving recruitment
and progression processes and timelines. As a unique and complex organisation
that incorporates work across public, private, and third sector elements, City
Corporation offers unique and unparalleled opportunities for our employees to
access career and progression opportunities across a wide array of professions and
organisation types. The work underway that will be underpinned by Ambition 25
will improve clarity and transparency that enables our people to develop in their
current roles and to access and progress into future roles anywhere across City
Corporation.

92

Page 113



9. Do you have processes in place to ensure that work allocation and
distribution is based as objectively as possible on skills and competence? If
yes, please explain these processes — and how they achieve outcomes that
guard against disadvantaging those from lower socioeconomic backgrounds.
(200 words)

Here we are particularly interested in processes you have to ensure that employees
from lower socioeconomic backgrounds have equal access to profile-raising internal
projects and work with prestigious clients/accounts.

Our Ambition 25 project is currently reviewing the roles and responsibilities that are
included across over 2500 job descriptions within the organisation. This will result
in a replacement of these with a smaller number of approximately 500 role profiles
that will enable increased visibility to our leaders and staff across the organisation
of what is included within these role profiles. The project will make it easier to
identify skills and competencies that would be necessary for any employee to
develop their career and progress through the organisation. Coupling this project
with improving data availability over time on socioeconomic backgrounds will
enable us to identify any processes that exist that may disadvantage those from
lower socioeconomic backgrounds and will provide us with the opportunity to pay
particular attention to ensuring opportunities and work allocations are equitable for
all.

10a. Does your organisation have strategies in place for improving retention
and/or progression for those from under-represented socioeconomic
backgrounds?

Yes O No

[If 10a = ‘Yes']
10b. Please provide a copy of the documentation where this is stated and
indicate page numbers of relevant pages:

Relevant pages: (e.g. p.7 — 11)*

Document Title Page Number(S)
Reference 1 Social Mobility Strategy 2018- 2-13

2028
Reference 2 People Strategy 26-47
Reference 3 Equality Objectives n/a - website

93

Page 114


https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/assets/Business/social-mobility-strategy-2018-28.pdf
https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/assets/Business/social-mobility-strategy-2018-28.pdf
https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/assets/about-us/plans-and-policies/people-strategy-2024-29.pdf

11a. Upon completion of a school leaver programme/apprenticeship, can these
employees progress at the same rate as a graduate hire?

Yes

O No

] N/A we do not offer these entry routes
[If 11a = ‘Yes’]

11b. If yes, please provide data to demonstrate the progression rates of school
leavers and/or apprentices in comparison to graduates.

(300 words)

Upon completion of their apprenticeship, apprentices are provided with avenues for
advancement, including progression to a higher level of apprenticeship or application for a
permanent role within the organisation. While the average apprentice achiever typically
secures a salary one grade below that of a graduate, they have the opportunity to continue
their professional and personal development through the next level of apprenticeship,
thereby advancing along a structured development pathway. Notably, 80% of apprenticeship
achievers successfully secured roles, with a pay grade commensurate with their qualifications
and experience. This achievement underscores the effectiveness of our apprenticeship
programs in facilitating career progression and supporting the transition of apprentices into
permanent roles within the organisation

(Please provide evidence for any or all routes where this applies)

12a. If someone on an apprenticeship, graduate scheme, or school leaver
scheme does not pass any sponsored exams, do they have to pay for retakes?

O Yes
No
O N/A we do not offer these entry routes

94

Page 115



[If 12a = ‘Yes’]
12b. At what point do they need to pay?

U] At first retake

U] After first retake

U] Other - please state (required): Click or tap here to enter text.
[If 12a = ‘Yes’]

12c. Is it made clear in recruitment materials that employees are required to
pay for retakes of sponsored exams?

O Yes, please provide a link to where Click or tap here to enter text.
this information is provided:

O No

13a. Do you monitor drop out rates by socioeconomic background for your
apprenticeships, graduate schemes, or school leaver schemes?

Yes No
Apprenticeship O
Graduate O

School leavers

[If 13a = yes to any]
13b. If yes, what did you find, what action did you take on the findings and
what difference did these actions make?

(200 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

95

Page 116



14a. Does your organisation implement exit fees for graduates, apprentices,
and school leavers who do not complete their scheme or role with you?

Employers operating such schemes require graduates to sign contracts that
stipulate that those who depart during the set period have to reimburse training

costs.
Yes No
Apprenticeship O
Graduate O
School leavers O

[If 14a = Any ‘Yes’]
14b. Is this practice clearly included in your job role adverts?

O Yes O No

[If 14a = Any ‘Yes']
14c. Why do you implement this practice?

O To recoup the costs of training
O To deter graduates from leaving
O Other - please state (required): Click or tap here to enter text.

15a. Do you offer retention bonuses to employees?

O Yes No

[If 15a = ‘Yes’]
15b. Have you explored the proportion of employees receiving retention
bonuses who are from a lower socioeconomic background?

] Yes, please provide the % of employee in receipt of a retention bonus who are from a
lower socioeconomic background.

No

Page 117

96



16a. Do you conduct exit interviews with employees when they leave your
organisation?

Yes- we conduct exit interviews internally

] Yes- we commission a third party to undertake confidential interviews

O No
[If 16a = ‘Yes']
16b. Do you analyse the findings from your exit interviews by socioeconomic
background?

Yes O] No
If 16a = ‘Yes’]
16¢c. Please explain your findings and the changes you have made as a result.
(400 words)

We have recently started to collect this information as part of our exit interview
process. We anticipate meaningful trend data and findings to develop over time,
and intend to monitor and analyse these more fully as soon as this becomes
possible.

97

Page 118



Section 7:
Culture and internal advocacy

Please indicate if your organisation will be submitting answers to Section 7: Culture
and internal advocacy

Yes - we will be submitting answers to Section 7: Culture and internal advocacy

U] No - we will not be submitting answers to Section 7: Culture and internal advocacy

If no, please state the reason why you are not submitting answers to this section:
(150 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

1a. What steps have you taken to explore whether employees from lower
socioeconomic backgrounds feel that the culture of your workplace is
welcoming to them?

We have conducted a survey specifically relating to socioeconomic background.
We have conducted a general diversity survey and analysed the results by socioeconomic
background.

Other, please specify:

O We have not yet taken steps to explore whether employees from lower socioeconomic
backgrounds feel that our culture is welcoming.

City of London Corporation runs or hosts a large number of events, and this can be
a huge change for us as they often require a high level of formality.

We have a cross-corporate EDI and Events working group that has two priorities as
follows:

- Accessibility in event design to reflect the requirements of a diverse
audience, giving consideration to, for example, dress code, timings, event

content and catering.

- Event guidance to support guests attending a City event for the first-time
outlining protocol, dress codes, event formats, and table settings.

98

Page 119



1b. If you conducted a survey, please provide a list of the questions that were

asked in relation to socioeconomic background, or that were analysed by

socioeconomic background.

The all-staff survey has taken place over April-May 2024 and the results will be

analysed and action plans created in June-July 2024. This is the first time we have

included questions on social mobility.

What was the occupation of the main earner in your
household when you were aged about 14?

[ Clerical or intermediate occupation
U In full-time education

[ Unemployed

[ Professional occupation

I Retired

[ Routine, semi-routine manual or
service occupation

[ Senior, middle or junior manager or
administrator

[ Small business owner

[ Technical or craft occupation

[ This question does not apply to me
1 don’t know

O prefer not to say

Which type of school did you attend for the most
time between ages of 11 and 16?

1 A state-run or state-funded school

O Independent or fee-paying school

[ Independent or fee-paying school,
where | received a bursary covering 90%
or more of my tuition

[ Not applicable

[ 1don’t know

O Prefer not to say

If you finished school after 1980 in the UK, were you
eligible for free school meals at any point during your
school years?

L] Yes

I No

LI Not applicable (finished school before
1980 or went to school overseas)

1 don’t know

[ Prefer not to say

929

Page 120




1c. Please give details of your findings and the actions you have taken as a
result of these.

(300 words) Please tell us how this was done, what was found, and what
difference it made. Click or tap here to enter text.

City Corporation have included socio-economic background questions along with
questions on all protected characteristics for the first time in our April-May 2024
all-staff survey (hosted by an external supplier partner). Results of the staff survey
will be analysed once the survey closes on 17 May 2024. While the survey provides
assurances of anonymity for all who complete it, including these questions will
provide a set of helpful anonymised baseline data to have positive and proactive
conversations about why the questions were included and the value and
importance of sharing socio-economic data to inform action planning to increase
socio-economic diversity across the organisation.

Socio-economic background questions are new to many staff. A continuing
communications campaign in conjunction with other programmes of work within our
new People Strategy to develop a positive culture will be required over the course
of the months and years to come to build the trust necessary for individuals to want
to share this information with the organisation. We are at the start of this part of
our journey.

2a. Does your organisation offer diversity awareness training with a particular
focus on social mobility?

We're looking here for training specifically focused on diversity of socioeconomic
background, as above.

] Yes No

[If 2a = “Yes’]
2b. If yes, do you offer distinct training on social mobility specifically?

Ol Separate modules or sessions focused on social mobility
L] Covered as part of a broader diversity & inclusion session, for example unconscious bias
training

100

Page 121



3a. Does your organisation offer diversity training specifically to managers and
leaders focused on diversity of socioeconomic background?

O Yes No

[If 3a = ‘Yes']
3b. What is covered in the training? Does the additional training cover typical
signals of socioeconomic status such as accent?

(300 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

[If 3a = ‘Yes']
3c. What percentage of managers/leaders have participated in this training?

Click or tap here to enter text.

4. Do departmental/section/team managers routinely receive reports on the
socioeconomic diversity of the team(s) for which they are responsible?

] Yes No

5a. Do you have a member of staff who is specifically responsible for your
organisation’s approach to social mobility?

Yes O No

[If 5a = ‘“Yes’]
5b. Please specify their name and position:

Name:* Dionne Corradine
Job title:* Chief Strategy Officer (role will divert to Equalities Director once
recruited)

101

Page 122



6. Who is the most senior person within your organisation accountable for the
organisation's approach to social mobility?

Name:* Dionne Corradine
Job title:* Chief Strategy Officer (role will divert to Equalities Director once
recruited)
Job level

O Board Member

X

Executive Team (e.g. CEO, COOQ)

President/Vice President

Head of Department

Managing Partner/Managing Director

Partner/Director

Senior Manager

Olojo|jo|o|o

Manager

7. Does your organisation have a staff network specifically focused on social
mobility/socioeconomic background?

Yes O No

8a. Do you encourage employees to share their social mobility stories within
the organisation to raise awareness and help others to feel more comfortable
at work, for example through blogs or organising a social mobility week?

Yes O No
[If 8a = ‘Yes’]
8b. Please give details:
(200 words)

The City Corporation’s Social Mobility Network (detail in section 8) launched this
year, and is planning a series of events to encourage staff to raise awareness about
socio economic diversity. This includes:

102

Page 123



e Lunch and launch of the Network to coincide with Social Mobility Awareness
Day which is scheduled to take place on 13* June 2024. This includes the
production of lanyards and badges designed to encourage staff to share their
social mobility stories, while championing socio-economic diversity.

e In Conversation with ColL leaders from low-socio-economic backgrounds,
online talk planned to take place Autumn/Winter 2024.

e Ongoing campaign titled “Personal Sensitive Information” which is designed
to encourage staff to submit their socio-economic diversity data.

9a. Does your organisation have any targets relating to socioeconomic
background or diversity?

] Yes No

[If 9a = “Yes’]
9b. If yes, please click the area(s) these targets relate to:

Applicants by socioeconomic background (at entry level)

Success rates of applicants by socioeconomic background (at entry level)

Applicants by socioeconomic background (at all levels)

(I A A R A

Success rates of applicants by socioeconomic background (at all levels)

Overall workforce diversity

O Workforce diversity disaggregated by occupational area

Workforce diversity disaggregated by seniority

Progression gaps by socioeconomic background

Other — please specify (150 words):

Click or tap here to enter text.

[If 9b = ‘Yes’ to any option]
9c. Are these targets monitored at Board level?

] Yes No

103

Page 124



[If 9b = ‘Yes’ to any option]
9d. Are your targets published externally?

U] Yes, please provide a link: Click or tap here to enter text.

No

U] We have internal targets and public targets. Please specify (150 words):
[If 9a = ‘No’]

9e. If your organisation does not have any targets related to socioeconomic
diversity and inclusion, are targets being considered?

Yes O No

[If 9e = ‘No’]
9f. Have targets ever been considered?

] Yes O No
[If Of = “Yes’]
99. If targets have been considered as an option and rejected, please explain
why:
(200 words)

Targets are being considered as part of the ambitions set out in our People Strategy
2024-29, and are also linked to our Equality Objectives 2024-29.

Our first People Strategy launched in April 2024 and covers the next five years.
Public reporting will take place bi-annually to our Corporate Services Committee
beginning in 2024/25. Starting with a review of 2023/24 data, targets will be
established in all areas of EDI where we have sufficient data for 2024/25 and each
year thereafter. In areas such as socioeconomic status where reporting is still low,
we will be working to increase confidence across the organisation for disclosure to
be able to establish a sufficient evidence base of data to create targets.

As referred to earlier, at the end of March 2024 we published our Equality
Objectives 2024-29, of which socio-economic diversity is one. We are now in the
process of developing workstreams and plans to achieve these objectives.

Our ambitions include:
- Continuing to use our influence to advance socio-economic diversity across
the City, building on the success of the Socio-Economic Diversity Taskforce
report and its recommendations

104

Page 125



- Collaborating with a variety of communities to enable opportunities for those
from lower socio-economic backgrounds to get in, get on, and belong in the
City Corporation

- Continuing to measure our performance as an employer across the eight
areas set out in the Social Mobility Index

- Closer working across City Corporation family to tackle barriers collectively
and holistically for underrepresented groups.

Progress against our ambitions will be regularly reported at Board level, as well as
to our EDI sub-committee of elected Members — all of whom will provide scrutiny
and oversight of delivery. Papers for this are (and will be) in the public domain.
Development of work to progress the Objectives is in early stages and will continue
over the course of the next five years.

105

Page 126



Section 8:
External advocacy

Please indicate if your organisation will be submitting answers to Section 8:
External advocacy

Yes - we will be submitting answers to Section 8: External advocacy

U] No - we will not be submitting answers to Section 8: External advocacy

If no, please state the reason why you are not submitting answers to this section:
(150 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

1. Have clients or other organisations that you work with demanded action on
improving the diversity of your workforce in relation to:

The word 'clients' can be used synonymously with customers, recipients or service

users
Gender
Race
Socioeconomic background
Other (please fill in): | Disability
O Our clients have not communicated their preferences

2a. Do you work with any clients to improve their approach to employer-led
social mobility?

Yes O No

[If 2a = ‘Yes’]

2b. Please give details below including any actions your clients have taken in
relation to social mobility as a result of your work together and the difference
they have made:

(200 words)

106

Page 127



City Corporation was commissioned by HM Treasury and the Department for
Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy in 2020 to lead a taskforce to improve
socio-economic diversity at senior levels in UK financial and professional services.
City Corporation convened over 80 FPS organisations across the UK, and ran until
2022. The outputs from the Taskforce included the first sector-wide data collection
on socio-economic diversity at senior levels, a business case report which explored
the business benefits of increasing socio-economic diversity at senior levels in UK
FPS, a recommendations report that sets out what employers, sector bodies,
regulators and the government can do to boost socio-economic diversity, and the
launch of an independent membership body.

Progress Together continues this work. City Corporation is one of 12 founding
partners of Progress Together, a membership body that aims to drive socio-
economic diversity at senior level across UK financial services. City Corporation
provides essential funding and in-kind support to Progress Together, and sits on
their advisory board. City Corporation continues to champion the need for greater
socio-economic diversity at all levels across UK FPS and creates opportunities to
profile and support Progress Together to deliver this.

3a. Do you encourage your suppliers to take any actions regarding social

mobility?
For example, by asking about it in tender documents or during the procurement
process
Yes O No
[If 3a= ‘Yes']

3b. Please give details of the specific social mobility actions you ask them to
take, examples of these being implemented, and the result:

(200 words)

The City’s Responsible Procurement Commitment for work-related opportunities
(commitment five) asks suppliers to promote social mobility through work. Work
related opportunities statistics from our impact report:

e 7/ apprentices supported, including engineering and business administration
through our contracts

107

Page 128


http://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/responsibleprocurement
http://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/responsibleprocurement

20 people supported through other work-related opportunities, including
internships and graduates

92 Young people supported through a digital skill-boosting programme
encouraging social mobility and entry into the technology sector with two
suppliers on a major project

1 T-Level Construction placement from City of Westminster College on a major
project

The City’s Social Value Menu (commitment six) promotes social mobility including
provision of CV Workshops, careers fairs, outreach programmes and industry events to
promote social mobility. At the London Careers Festival three supplier supported by:

A Software Provider engaged students at the Guildhall providing hands-on
experiences with their HoloLens, inspiring students to explore technology

A Large Consultancy Firm: ‘a Day in the Life of a Consultant' workshop to 20
students offered insights into technology-focused school-leaver programmes
spotlighting unconventional career paths

A Construction provider hosted a workshop at the Guildhall on 'Careers in
Construction', showcasing the diverse roles available. They hosted students on
one of their construction sites, offering a glimpse into the live environment.

4a. Does your organisation take part in any social mobility initiatives across

your sector or industry?

Yes O No

[If 4a = “Yes’]
4b. If yes, please give details of the initiatives you’re working on, who you are

working with, and the difference they have made.

Initiative/ Please describe the initiative | Please explain the impact of
partnership or partnership, including: the initiative, including data
name who is involved, the to demonstrate the
initiative’s aim and the initiative’s impact where
target group. relevant:
Initiative/ Progress Progress Together was They have created a
partnership 1 | Together created to drive socio- collaborative peer network
108

Page 129



economic diversity at senior
level across UK financial
services. As mentioned above,
the City Corporation is a
founding partner and
continues to fund PT.

that has shared best practice,
collected data, given advice
on internal programmes, etc.
Members represent over 1/3
of the FS sector across the UK
an employee base of more
than 364,000.

They have insights backed by
academic rigour into the
impact of socio-economic
diversity on financial services,
including their Shaping Our
Economy report

Initiative/
partnership 2

New Financial

New Financial is a think tank
that, among other focus areas,
brings businesses together to
improve EDI. They work with
different sectors across the
industry — investors, issuers,
banks, and policymakers, with
a focus on capital markets.
They are the delivery partner
for HMT’s Women in Finance
Charter.

New Financial provides their
members with practical and
relevant insights into the
challenges facing their
business and the wider
industry. They produce
reports, toolkits and hold
events related to EDI and act
as a convening force across
the sector.

Initiative/
partnership 3

City Surveyors
Department
internal
diversity drive

New London Architecture
—the department’s original
Equalities Action Plan was
based on best practice
developed by the NLA.
Their three themes of
Recruitment, Progression
and Advocacy are still in
use

Chartered Institute of
Building — the department
engaged with the equalities
lead in the CIOB to review
the departmental EEDI
action plan and receive
feedback and suggestions
for enhancement

Not restricted to social
mobility, but including it,
the City Surveyors
department has been
learning good practice on
equalities from external
peers (historically this is a
sector that has lacked
diversity more generally).
The Department has
unique pressures because
of its skills requirements
that are not replicated in
other parts of the business
and wishes to recruit and
retain potential candidates
from all backgrounds

109

Page 130


https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fnla.london%2Fdiverse-leaders-pledge&data=05%7C02%7CSiyka.Radilova%40cityoflondon.gov.uk%7C10951bbb7c5e4c0a05e808dc65bcc79f%7C9fe658cdb3cd405685193222ffa96be8%7C0%7C0%7C638497108683997168%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=WBOTDKUbSdy3LVP1HUqYweV%2BmmgxpHxAjC4tO7dYCRk%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fnla.london%2Fdiverse-leaders-pledge&data=05%7C02%7CSiyka.Radilova%40cityoflondon.gov.uk%7C10951bbb7c5e4c0a05e808dc65bcc79f%7C9fe658cdb3cd405685193222ffa96be8%7C0%7C0%7C638497108683997168%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=WBOTDKUbSdy3LVP1HUqYweV%2BmmgxpHxAjC4tO7dYCRk%3D&reserved=0

5a. Aside from any work with young people covered in Section 1: Schools
outreach and work with young people and Section 3: Recruitment and selection,
do you work with any charity partners to improve social mobility?

Examples of such work could include charity fundraising, advocacy and
campaigning work.

Yes O No

[If 5a = ‘Yes’]
5b. If yes, please provide details on the work your organisation does with
charity partners:

(200 words)

Through the Community Infrastructure Levy Neighbourhood Fund, we fund the “We
Can Be” project delivered by the Lord Mayor’'s Appeal. This encourages women
and girls from disadvantaged backgrounds to consider City Careers. Through the
Combined Education charity, we fund Birbeck University to provide bursaries for
students from disadvantaged backgrounds to access higher education. We also
fund Goldsmiths Universities Equity Awards Scheme which provides means-tested
bursaries supporting Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic students at Goldsmiths to
achieve their full potential by removing financial and other barriers.

6a. Does your organisation share the changes it has made to improve
socioeconomic diversity and inclusion with other organisations - including
evidence of impact?

Yes O No

[If 6a = “Yes’]
6b. Please give details including any specific examples where you feel sharing
what you have has led to other organisations changing their practices:

(300 words)

The City Belonging Project is a new initiative to build a more inclusive and
connected Square Mile, supporting and improving the links between diversity
networks, and ensuring that the City’s institutions and events are more open to our

110

Page 131



communities than ever before. One role of City Corporation is to bring the City

together: more than half a million people from every imaginable community who

work, live, inspire and innovate within a few minutes of one another. Through the

City Belonging Project, and in collaboration with partners we want to achieve the
this by:

Ensure our events, activities and spaces are more inclusive and better
promoted to members of our community, especially those in diversity
networks.

Use our convening power to bring together groups and individuals from
across the City to create and incubate new inter-company networks.

Promote the growth of new and existing diversity groups at workplaces of all
sizes, signposting to partners with specialist expertise to support their
development.

Ensure that cultural events and activities across the Square Mile are better
advertised and promoted, and facilitate the creation of new events that
directly serve the needs of our community.

Help to provide a warm welcome for new starters in the City, and do
whatever we can to introduce them to the Square Mile and its community.

Promote democratic engagement within the City, encouraging those from
under-represented groups to stand in City elections and get involved in the
civic life of the Square Mile

7. Does your organisation share reporting data or best practice with any of the

following?

Local Government

Devolved Government (where applicable)

UK Government

Social Mobility Commission

Media

Oojojo|o|o|o

Other, please specify

X

None of the above

111

Page 132



8a. Does your organisation share any information about your work to improve
social mobility outside your organisation through any of the following?

(Please click all that apply)

Social media

Participating in or holding external events
] Advertising or marketing campaigns
Specific annual diversity report

Corporate reporting

Il Other, please specify Member reports

Click or tap here to enter text.

[If 8a = “Yes’ to any option]
8b. Please give details on who you share information with and why, including
any specific examples:

(300 words)

Our social media promotes our projects and planned activities, and we share
information specific to the project or initiative with students, learners, apprentices,
educators, parents and guardians, community groups, policy makers, journalists and
the wider public wherever possible. For example, for the Careers Festival we reach
out on social media targeting exhibitors to present at the festival and teachers/
schools to sign-up and attend.

Sharing information about our work with a view to equality, inclusion, and diversity
through social media ensures we reach and engage diverse audiences effectively.
By targeting specific groups such as students, educators, parents, community
organisations, policymakers, and the general public, we can foster a more inclusive
society and drive meaningful change. Through strategic use of social media
campaigns, webinars, challenges, and resource sharing, we amplify our impact and
promote the values of EEDI in education.

As previously mentioned it is our intention to publish progress against our
ambitions for both our Equalities Objectives, our People Strategy 2024-29 and
Corporate Plan 2024-29. All of these will be available in the public domain. As
part of the reporting on the Equalities Objectives we aim to look at how we can
report on our wider impact in delivering the objectives.

112

Page 133



As part of our Public Sector Equality Duty we publish an annual staff diversity
report - our Equality Information: Equality Information Report 2023

(cityoflondon.gov.uk)

Pay gap data is also reported annually (the Equalities & Inclusion Monitoring
report): Appendix 1 - Annual Equalities and Inclusion Monitoring Report March

2022.pdf (cityoflondon.gov.uk) — please note an improved and updated version of
this will be available in July 2024.

We are improving and expanding relevant equalities (including social mobility)
datasets for these reports, to learn and analyse year on year change. Data are also
published by central government and benchmarked against other local authorities.

9. Finally, please use this space to include any additional information about
your work which you feel has not already been covered in the questionnaire,
particularly any innovative practices. This could include details of any new
initiatives or concrete plans for changes in the coming year. Please do not use
this space to repeat anything you have included elsewhere in the submission

Our Social mobility Objective (Objective 4) in full:

Our public commitment to Socio-Economic Diversity (Objective 4) states:
Someone’s socio-economic background should not limit their potential to flourish.
Activities (cognisant with the Social Mobility Index recommendations for
improvement) may include:

e Continue to use our influence to advance socio-economic diversity across the
City, building on the success of the Socio-Economic Diversity Taskforce
report and its recommendations.

e Collaborate with a variety of communities to enable opportunities for those
from lower socio-economic backgrounds to get in, get on, and belong in the
City Corporation.

e Continue to measure our performance as an employer across the eight areas
set out in the Social Mobility Index.

Link to our Equality Objectives: Equality and inclusion - City of London

Link to our Corporate Plan 2024-29: Our Corporate Plan 2024-29 - City of London

113

Page 134


https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/assets/about-us/plans-and-policies/equality-information-report-2023.pdf
https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/assets/about-us/plans-and-policies/equality-information-report-2023.pdf
https://democracy.cityoflondon.gov.uk/documents/s189340/Appendix%201%20-%20Annual%20Equalities%20and%20Inclusion%20Monitoring%20Report%20March%202022.pdf
https://democracy.cityoflondon.gov.uk/documents/s189340/Appendix%201%20-%20Annual%20Equalities%20and%20Inclusion%20Monitoring%20Report%20March%202022.pdf
https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/about-us/plans-policies/equality-inclusion
https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/about-us/plans-policies/our-corporate-plan

Link to our People Strategy 2024-29: Our People Strategy 2024-29 - City of
London

Link to the Responsible Procurement: Responsible Procurement policy - City of

London

Further Information on our new Social Mobility Network

City Corporation launched The Social Mobility Network in 2024. The purpose of the
network is to represent and advocate for colleagues from less-privileged
backgrounds to achieve their development goals, collectively share their
experiences and support one another to make a difference and build a stronger,
more inclusive, and socio-economically diverse culture at City Corporation .

The key aims of the Social Mobility Network are as follows:

e Empower colleagues from less-privileged backgrounds to achieve their
development goals and identify barriers and perceived barriers in the
workplace which might be holding them back.

e Provide a safe space for colleagues from low socio-economic backgrounds to
collectively share their experiences and support one another.

e Advocate and enable for the recruitment and retention of individuals from
low socio-economic backgrounds.

e Enhance the resources, training, and networking opportunities available to
individuals from low socio-economic backgrounds.

Some of the programmes of work this staff network is implementing which was not
mentioned in the previous sections of this submission include:

e A programme of events which includes training on accent bias, networking
and imposter syndrome which will empower staff to embrace their socio-
economic diversity.

e Speed networking event this is designed to bring staff from different socio-
economic backgrounds together.

e Cross collaboration project with Learning and Development during February
2025 to coincide with National Apprenticeships which focuses on telling the
stories of apprentices and recognising their lives experiences of work.

City Corporation and support for Care Leavers

114

Page 135


https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/about-us/plans-policies/our-people-strategy
https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/about-us/plans-policies/our-people-strategy
https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/supporting-businesses/business-support-and-advice/responsible-business/responsible-procurement-policy
https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/supporting-businesses/business-support-and-advice/responsible-business/responsible-procurement-policy

City Corporation recently signed up to the London Care Leaver Compact. This
supports promoting opportunities for Care Leavers across London. As part of this
work, we have

e Increased access to apprenticeship opportunities for Care Leavers
e Prioritised their eligibility for our Housing

e Paid for their annual bus passes

e Supported meeting the costs of their Council Tax

All this work supports our commitment to ensuring that we treat Care Leavers as if
it were a protected characteristic and in doing so, support them to achieve better
education, health and wellbeing outcomes and enhancing their social mobility
opportunities.

Detail of the projects funded by the City Premium Grant

For the current period, the Education Board distributed £2,162,293 of City Premium
Grant funding for extracurricular activities across the City Family of Schools.
Projects included the following:

e ‘EAL Flash Academy’: Designed to support primary learners who are new to
English or have English as a second language, to learn social and curriculum
vocabulary, grammar, phonics, and handwriting. The project saw
improvements in oracy confidence, written communication and school
engagement.

e ‘Boxing Therapy’: Aimed to reduce the number of exclusions and negative
peer interactions through pioneering boxing based therapy. The pastoral
team noted that this initiative had a notable impact on reducing student
anxiety and improved motivation and wellbeing.

e ‘Enrichment’: Funding made additional enrichment opportunities available to
students, including music tuition, an Outward Bound residential, Duke of
Edinburgh Scheme, additional studies and female empowerment sessions.
The project resulted in 50 music scholars in year 8 continuing to play an
instrument, all year 12s successfully achieving the Bronze Duke of Edinburgh
qualification, and Outward Bound participants reporting positive Page 49
impact on their confidence, resilience and leadership skills.

e ‘lvy League Programme - US SAT Preparation’: Bespoke SAT support was
provided for students applying to lvy League and other competitive U.S.
universities. As a result, 9 students applied to US universities, with 2

115

Page 136



students receiving offers to Stanford and NYU, whilst one was waitlisted for
Princeton.

o ‘KS4 Pre-Apprenticeship Academy’: Secondary learners most at risk of, or
who are going through the process of permanent exclusion received
additional support with the primary aim of reducing permanent exclusions in
KS4 across CoLAT. The project has seen an improvement in attendance and
all year 11 students applying for post-16 qualifications.

‘Debate Mate’: Learners and teachers engaged in a 17-week programme
developing debating and oracy skills, as well as their critical thinking and
confidence. Following the project, pupils took part in two debates in the Urban
Debate League, winning one of them. Additionally, two pupils won Best Speaker
awards at the City Schools Debating Day, and successfully reached the finals.

116

Page 137



Please contact employerindex@socialmobility.org.uk if you have any queries regarding

the Index or your feedback

S_CIAL EMPLOYER

MOBILITY INDEX
F_UNDATION' 2024

Page 138




Agenda Item 7

Committee(s): Dated

Equality Diversity & Inclusion Sub-Committee 26 June 2024

Subject: Social Mobility Index Report Public

Which outcomes in the City Corporation’s Corporate | All Corporate Plan

Plan does this proposal aim to impact directly? Outcomes are supported by
this work

Does this proposal require extra revenue and/or N/A

capital spending?

If so, how much? N/A

What is the source of Funding? N/A

Has this Funding Source been agreed with the N/A

Chamberlain’s Department?

Report of: Dionne Corradine, Chief Strategy Officer For Information

Report author: Siyka Radilova, EDI Officer

Summary

Improving social mobility is one pillar of our Equality Objectives 2024-29 and part of
our Corporate Plan 2024-29 and People Strategy 2024-29. Our annual
benchmarking efforts via the Social Mobility Employer Index allow us to learn and
improve how we enable social mobility. This year officers have taken a radically
different approach to compiling the submission, working across City Corporation to
gather as much input as available, while being cognisant of feedback from previous
years. Consequently, our 2024 submission (appended) covers a range of internal
and external social mobility related activity. This was submitted to the Social
Mobility Foundation by the deadline of 7 June.

Recommendation(s)
Members are asked to:

Note this report and annex: City Corporation’s 2024 Social Mobility
Employer Index Submission

Main Report
Background

1. The City Corporation worked with The Social Mobility Foundation to set up
the Social Mobility Index (SMI) in 2017. The Social Mobility Employer Index
is an annual benchmarking and assessment tool for employers. The Index
shows how employers perform on eight areas of employer-led social
mobility. In addition, it sets out a vision for measuring and monitoring social
mobility outcomes over the next 30 years.

Page 139



Page 140

2. In 2018, the City Corporation was ranked 66th on the index, and rose to 56th
in 2019, 50th in 2020 and 40th in 2021. However, rankings declined to 67th
and 87th in 2022 and 2023 respectively. Competition has grown as
employers are increasing social mobility initiatives and benchmarking
themselves. However, attempts to collate information fell short last year. For
the current cycle major efforts have been made to engage across the
organisation to gather evidence, resulting in approximately 120 pages
(annex 1) documenting our social mobility activities.

3. The Social Mobility Employer Index 2024 has eight areas of assessment. We
have contributed substantial information under each section.
e School outreach and work with young people
e Attraction and university outreach
Recruitment and Selection
Routes into the employer
Data collection
Pay, progression and retention
Progression, culture and experiences hire
External Advocacy

4. To meet the 7 June deadline, the Chair and Deputy Chair of the Equality,
Diversity and Inclusion sub-Committee had the opportunity to review the
submission. A draft was also shared with the City Corporation Executive
Leadership Board chaired by the Town Clerk. Our full submission (see annex
1) includes extensive information on social mobility initiatives across City
Corporation.

5. The format of our submission at annex 1 is challenging, and some content
appears clunky and repetitive. It has been completed this way to allow for
collaboration across the organisation and editing to meet word counts before
uploading it question by question to the Social Mobility Foundation website.
This means there are a few inconsistencies that will not appear in the final
product. To ensure the Social Mobility Foundation has our full submission
(noting some online sections contained word limit restrictions), with their
permission, we have completed their form and submitted our full return in a
PDF document.

Current Position

6. Social mobility remains a concern globally, with implications extending from
individual opportunities to societal cohesion and economic prosperity. City
Corporation recognises its responsibility to foster an environment conducive
to upward mobility for all. Social mobility is one of our four published Equality
Objectives reflecting the commitment to diversity, equity, and inclusion, and
sets out our ambition as follows:

Someone’s socio-economic background should not limit their potential to flourish.
Activities (cognisant with the Social Mobility Index recommendations for
improvement) may include:



Page 141

« Continue to use our influence to advance socio-economic diversity
across the City, building on the success of the Socio-Economic
Diversity Taskforce report and its recommendations.

o Collaborate with a variety of communities to enable opportunities
for those from lower socio-economic backgrounds to get in, get on,
and belong in the City Corporation.

« Continue to measure our performance as an employer across the
eight areas set out in the Social Mobility Index.

o Closer working across the City of London Corporation family to
tackle barriers collectively and holistically for underrepresented
groups.

7. Progress has been made in advancing social mobility within City Corporation
during past year. In addition to the Equality Objectives 2024-29, the
Corporate Plan 2024-29 commits us to improving social mobility and reduce
inequalities; the People Strategy 2024-29 provides structures to improve
social mobility via internal mechanisms — all set out in the submission.
Together, these are the framework to embed organisational outcomes to
achieve an inclusive and diverse culture and articulate our focus on socio-
economic diversity and intersectionality with both staff and external
communities — achieving our ambition to be a world-class organisation.

8. In addition, the new staff Social Mobility Network launched this year. The
purpose of the network is to represent and advocate for colleagues from
less-privileged backgrounds to achieve their development goals, collectively
share their experiences and support one another to make a difference and
build a stronger, more inclusive, and socio-economically diverse culture at
City Corporation. As well as these, the submission contains a round-up of
social mobility initiatives by our family of schools (who provide an extensive
offering), our green spaces, the Barbican Centre, GSMD, Innovation &
Growth and much more.

9. Once in post, the new EEDI Director will be taking forward collaborative
endeavours with HR and all other relevant areas within the organisation to
continue to drive forward initiatives aimed at achieving our social mobility
ambitions both internally and externally.

Corporate & Strategic Implications

Strateqic implications -_All Corporate Plan 2024-29 Outcomes are impacted (directly
and indirectly) by this work, as well as outcomes in the People Strategy and
Equality Objectives. This is a continuation and development of the activity originally
set out in the Social Mobility Strategy (2018-28) that stalled during pandemic and
following the TOM.

Resource implications — £1200+VAT covered by the EEDI budget

Legal implications — none

Risk implications — Potential reputational risk mitigated by the actions in train to
address the feedback from the SMI report.

Equalities implications — This proposal is a core part of our commitment to equality;
it supports City Corporation’s commitment to be an organisation where people feel




Page 142

respected, and they belong - going beyond the protected characteristics (as set at
the Equality Act 2010) to include to social mobility.

Climate implications — none

Security implications — none

Conclusion
10. Officers have collaborated extensively to improve our 2024 submission to the
Social Mobility Employer Index. Members will be updated as this work
progresses once we have received feedback on our input — expected later
this year. At this stage results will be presented alongside next steps.
Appendices

Annex 1 — 2024 City Corporation Social Mobility Employer Index Submission



Social Mobility
Employer Index 2024

Index questionnaire

S_CIAL EMPLOYER

MOBILITY INDEX

F_UNDATION —-2024

Page 143



Organisation information........ e 3

Section 1: Schools outreach and work with young people................. 10
Section 2: Attraction and University outreach.......ccorrccreccreccceeneee. 32
Section 3: Recruitment and selection........ccoieriinccrnrcnncsnscssissesssssnniens 44
Section 4: Routes into the employer ... 59
Section 5: Data collection ... s 75
Section 6: Pay, progression and retention........cccccvrverrrcccerrcccerscccenennns 85
Section 7: Culture and internal advocacy ......cccccrrccerrccerrcerrscnssceeseenns 28
Section 8: External advoCacy .....cccccvivcerrinnecesrrnnsseeesrsssssse s sssssssseesses 106

Please note that this document is only for reference — all Index submissions must be
submitted through the online portal.

Page 144



Your name: *

Dionne Corradine

Job title: *

Chief Strategy Officer

Email address: *

cspt.edi@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Telephone
number *

02076063030 Click or tap here to enter
text.

Organisation: *

City of London Corporation

We are aware that there is a £1200 +VAT charge to enter
the 2024 Employer Index

Page 145



Organisation information

1. What is your organisation's address?

Guildhall, PO Box 270 London, EC2P 2E]

[This contact will only be used if your organisation is eligible to pay the entrant fee
and is paying via invoice]
2a. What is the name of your finance contact?

Niki Jago/ Mark Jarvis

[This contact will only be used if your organisation is eligible to pay the entrant fee
and is paying via invoice]
2b. What is the email address of your finance contact?

CityProc. AP@cityoflondon.gov.uk

[To enable us to share the advocacy pack and collect your logo please share:]
2c. Name of your communications contact

Ryan Jones

[To enable us to share the advocacy pack and collect your logo please share:]
2d. Email address of your communications contact

Ryan.Jones@cityoflondon.gov.uk

3a. Is your organisation in the:

O Private sector

Public sector

Third sector, including charities, social enterprises, and not-for-profit organisations

[If 3a = ‘Private sector’]
3b. Please select the main sector your organisations:

] Arts and entertainment O Management consultancy
L] Automotive O Marketing

] Banking, financial services and O Media

] Broadcasting O Pharmaceuticals

L] Construction ] Product design

Page 146


mailto:CityProc.AP@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Leisure, tourism and sport

Telecommunications

Life Sciences

Transport and logistics

Other, please specify

] Energy, water or utility O Professional services

U] Engineering or industrial ] Public relations and communications
U] Facilities management ] Publishing

] Fast-moving consumer goods ] Real Estate

U] Gaming O Retail

] Hospitality O Recruitment

U] Housing ] Social and market research

] Law ] Technology, software and computer
U O

0 O

O

Click or tap here to enter text.

[If 3a = ‘Public sector’]
3c. What type of public sector organisation is it?

O

Central government

X

Local government

|

A health authority or NHS trust

X

Other - please specify in comments box below

4. Total number of UK employees:

4340

5. Please confirm if you are submitting data for:

The whole UK workforce

O

A section of the UK workforce
(please give details):

Click or tap here to enter text.

6. Please indicate below which regions and or nations of the UK your

organisation has offices in:

(Please click all that apply)

East of England

South East

Page 147



O East Midlands O South West

London O Yorkshire and the Humber
O North East O Wales

U North West U West Midlands

[ Northern Ireland O No Central Office

U Scotland

7a. Do you have workforce based outside the UK?

Yes O No

[If 7a = ‘Yes']
7b. If yes, which of the following best describes your organisation

We already collect data on some or all of our workforce outside of the UK
O] We are considering how we might collect data from our workforce outside of the UK
Ol We are not considering how data might be collected from this population

8. Employers are required to use a 12-month reporting period for the data
submitted to the Index - please indicate below which you are using:

Ol Calendar year (Jan 2023 - Dec 2023)

Ol Academic year (Sept 2022 - Aug 2023)

Financial year (please specify dates): 01/04/2023-31/03/2024.

9. Does your organisation want to submit to the Employer Index anonymously?

Once you have received your ranking in the Index, we will contact you to confirm if
you wish to remain anonymous or not.

O Yes No

10a. Has your organisation submitted to the Employer Index previously?

Yes O No

Page 148



[If 10a = ‘Yes’]
10b. Please select all years that apply:

2023 2019
2022 2018
2021 2017
2020

[If 10b 2023 = ‘Yes']

11. If you entered the Index in 2023, please provide a short summary of any
changes you have made to your practices because of the advice we provided in
your feedback report. (300 words)

We launched a new Corporate Plan 2024-29 and Equality Objectives in April. The latter
makes a firm public commitment to socio-economic diversity as a specific objective.

Our People Strategy 2024 — 2029 publication followed. Together, these commitments set a
more robust framework to embed organisational outcomes and an inclusive and diverse
culture, and articulate our focus on socio-economic diversity and intersectionality with our
external communities and with our own staff.

Our Social Mobility Network launched this year, representing and advocating for colleagues
from less privileged backgrounds. Members lead the way in their vocal and passionate
advocacy of socio-economic diversity and attention to EEDI including all elements of
intersectionality.

Our Members lead the way in their vocal and passionate advocacy of socio-economic
diversity and attention to EEDI including all elements of intersectionality.

Socio-economic diversity is a priority for City Corporation. We want all our work in this area
to have impact. In our ambition to truly be a world-class organisation, we are seeking
reality, not rhetoric. We are still early on this journey in many respects, and we have made
radical adjustments to our entire organisational approach. Our 2023 results provided
helpful feedback to highlight the significance of this work we have begun.

We have developed a much more collaborative corporate approach to EEDI, exemplified by
the writing of this submission where we sought input from colleagues across the
organisation. Our EEDI team is restructuring including recruiting an Equalities Director
responsible for progressing and reporting on our activities. Our recently appointed
permanent Chief People Officer has enhanced our People and HR team to better support
our organisational commitment to EEDL.

We look forward to using the process of this submission to continue to prioritise and hold
ourselves accountable in the work we have begun.

Page 149



12. How did your organisation first hear about the Employer Index.

(Please click all that apply)

Through your organisation’s work with the Social
Mobility Foundation on one of our student
Programmes

Through direct contact from a Social Mobility
Foundation employee (not related to your
organisation’s work on one of our Programmes)

Through your organisation's engagement with our
advocacy and campaigning work

Via the Social Mobility Foundation’s social media

From another employer who had previously
submitted to the Social Mobility Employer Index

Through a trade association, please state which:

Through a professional body: please state which:

O

Through a diversity & inclusion consultancy,
please state which:

Through a regulatory body, please state which:

o | d

At a webinar or event, please state which:

X

Your organisation’s own research

Somewhere else, please write in:

OO

Don't know

13. Why did you decide to enter the Index in 2024?

(Tick all that apply)
To help meet our diversity goals
The feedback helps to improve our organisation
] We use our ranking in our publicity
] We use our ranking to win business or contracts

X

Other:

Commitment to socio-economic diversity is a core corporate objective
in its own right; this will help us improve what we do

Page 150



14. Are there ways in which you operate as an employer that feel distinct, and
which are helpful for us to understand as we consider the information you
have shared? This might include, for example, organisational ownership (in the
private sector), leadership structures, recent mergers/acquisitions, information
about the clients or communities that you serve.

City Corporation looks after the City of London (‘the City’ or ‘Square Mile’) on behalf
of all who live, study, work, and visit; providing modern, efficient, and high-quality
local services and policing for all.

We have a long history, a unique constitution, our own Lord Mayor, and a dedicated
police service keeping the City safe.

Our independent and non-partisan political voice of 125 elected Members,
Aldermen and Alderwomen and convening power enables us to promote the
interests of people and organisations across London and the UK, and play a valued
role on the world stage.

We aim to support our communities through responsible business, charitable
giving, improving the capital’s air quality, providing education and skills for young
people, and delivering affordable housing across London.

The City Corporation provides residents, students, businesses, workers and tourists
with a variety of essential day-to-day services. We have a number of very different
departments that provide a wide range of services, from libraries and open spaces,
through to schools and cultural institutions, alongside our own business support
departments.

We protect and conserve 19 major green spaces in London and South East England
— including Hampstead Heath and Epping Forest — and approximately 180 smaller
ones in the Square Mile. They include important wildlife habitats, sites of scientific
interest and national nature reserves. They are protected from being built on by
special legislation.

We are the port health authority for London, the largest port health authority in the
UK. We protect public health by preventing infectious disease, ensuring water
quality, making vessel inspections, and enforcing environmental controls.

Further members of the City Corporation family are world leading institutions such
at the Barbican Centre, City Bridge Foundation, City of London Police, City of
London Freemen’s school, City of London school for girls, City of London school,
Guildhall School of Music and Drama, the Old Bailey, and the London Metropolitan
Archives.

Page 151


https://corpoflondon.sharepoint.com/sites/Intranet/SitePages/our-business.aspx

The City Corporation provides local government services for our 8,600 residents
(Census 2021) and 614,500 City workers (Office for National Statistics 2022) based
in the Square Mile. To be truly representative of its population, businesses and
other organisations registered in the Square Mile are entitled to nominate voters to
City elections so that, alongside registered residents, they can have a say on the
way the City Corporation is run.

City of London Corporation is closely linked to the livery companies. All livery
companies come under an element of control by the City of London's Court of
Aldermen and play a role in electing the Lord Mayor.

The livery companies and the City of London share common goals and since the
earliest beginnings of the City have both been strong and active in its support. The
livery companies are integral to the City's governance: each year liverymen elect the
Sheriffs of the City of London, endorse the election of the Lord Mayor and play a
prominent part in major events.

Page 152



Section 1:
Schools outreach and work with young
people

Please note, when we refer to schools in this section, this also includes colleges.

Please indicate if your organisation will be submitting answers to Section 1:
Schools outreach and work with young people

Yes - we will be submitting answers to Section 1: Schools outreach and work with young
people.
O No - we will not be submitting answers to Section 1: Schools outreach and work with

young people.

If no, please state the reason why you are not submitting answers to this section:
(150 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

For the 2024 reporting period:

1a. In which of these nations do you conduct outreach with young people (ages

11-18)?
England
O Scotland
O Wales
O Northern Ireland

1b. Which activities did you carry out? Were these activities in person, virtual
or a combination of both?

In person Virtual Both We did not carry out this activity
School visits U] U] L]
Mentoring L] ] L]
10

Page 153



Work experience | [ ] ]

Other- please ] ] ]
specify

Detail of Schools outreach [editorial note: this section may need to be added to the very
end depending on the online form]

London Careers Festival (LCF)

LCF 2023 (26 June - 7 July 2023) attracted over 12,000 young people across London (and
beyond) and engaged primary, secondary and post-16 pupils across London in work
related and skills development activities online and in-person. It included:

e Employer-led webinars and workshops exploring specific job roles, organisations and
industries
Webinars and workshops exploring different career access pathways;

o  Workshops exploring entrepreneurship and entrepreneurial skills;

e Virtual and in-person talks from employers;

e Online and in-person skills building workshops and Q&As with experts and
professionals.

Across the festival, the LCF team worked with a total of 77 businesses, arts organisations,
training providers and Livery companies.

Data from 246 participants across LCF 2023 in-person delivery suggest that the majority of
LCF 2023 participants found the experience highly positive, valuable, informative and
conducive to them making informed career decisions. Of those young people interviewed,
90% of young people agreed that LCF 2023 helped them to think about their future, with
83% stating that it helped them learn about a range of jobs and careers. The data also
suggest that LCF 2023 invited pupils to consider alternative career paths that they
previously had either not considered or had not known had existed. Furthermore, 100% of
teachers agreed that pupils learned about new job opportunities with 100% of teachers
agreeing that it was highly relevant to careers and skills curriculum and school/college
priorities.

LCF 2024 (26 Feb — 8 March) attracted over 17,000 young people from across the capital.
City Corporation made a particular approach to SEN schools this year — implementing their
feedback from the previous event. City Corporation City Corporation collaborated with over
130 organisations and livery companies.

LCF 2024 promoted access to knowledge and networks crucial for upward social mobility
through skills and insight sessions provided by partners, including nine companies
volunteered a skills or insight session at Guildhall or at their offices or site; 22 professionals
volunteered as speed mentors, including City departments like Barbican Centre. City
Corporation’s Cultural and Creative Learning Fund provided insight into the creative

11

Page 154



industries, including creativity in tech, entrepreneurship, and building professional
networks.

A specialist session for care experienced young people was attended by two groups from
two state schools.

five inclusive / specialist sessions for those with Special Educational Needs (SEN) or with
an Education Health and Care Plan were run.

There was an event for sixth formers which over 900 sixth form pupils attended in the
Guildhall, and they were able to interact with businesses from professional services
industry.

City Premium Grant

The City Premium Grant, funded a by our Education Board, exemplifies City Corporation ’s
commitment to advancing social mobility. In 2023 the grant was £2,182,000, with specific
allocations for the Disadvantaged Pupils Grant (based on Pupil Premium), Partnerships
Grant, and Strategic Grant.

The grant is designed to enhance the educational offerings within our Family of Schools,
emphasising additional support beyond the standard curriculum. Throughout last year, 78
projects were implemented across our schools to address various educational needs. These
projects, aligned with our Education, Cultural & Creative Learning, and Skills Strategies,
were strategically distributed across different funding streams.

the Partnerships and Strategic Grants facilitated the establishment of 29 unique project
partnerships, showcasing collaboration both within and beyond our school network. While
the majority of projects targeted secondary-age learners, a significant portion also focused
on primary-age learners. Through rigorous evaluation processes, we continue to ensure
accountability and strive for continuous improvement in fostering upwards social mobility
within our educational community. Further detail here: (Public Pack) Agenda Document for
Education Board, 07/12/2023 09:45 (cityoflondon.gov.uk)

Schools Visits Fund

City Corporation 's Education Board allocates £20,000 annually to schools across London
through its Schools Visits Fund. The fund enables schools to explore cultural and creative
institutions within and beyond the Square Mile, aiming to enhance children and young
people's cultural capital and foster upward social mobility. The fund targets schools with at
least 35% of their pupil population eligible for Free School Meals (FSM). Since September
2023, 5519 learners from eligible schools have benefited from this initiative, with an
average pupil premium rate of 51%.

Cultural and Creative Learning Fund

City Corporation's Education Board commits £190,000 annually to support cultural and
creative learning initiatives within the Square Mile and beyond, targeting state schools with
the aim of enhancing enhance life outcomes, cultural capital and social mobility. This fund
is allocated to partners who align with key thematic priorities set each academic year. For
the current year, strategic themes encompass oracy, mental health and well-being,

12

Page 155


https://democracy.cityoflondon.gov.uk/documents/g23564/Public%20reports%20pack%2007th-Dec-2023%2009.45%20Education%20Board.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.cityoflondon.gov.uk/documents/g23564/Public%20reports%20pack%2007th-Dec-2023%2009.45%20Education%20Board.pdf?T=10

environmental outdoor learning, youth voice, and financial literacy. Since September 2023,
this initiative has benefited 6885 learners in London.

City of London Natural Environment Learning Programme

City Corporation provides learning programmes in its green spaces, engaging children and
young people at three sites: Hampstead Heath, Epping Forest and West Ham Park:
Participation in our Natural Environment Learning Programme 2023/24 has involved over
40,000 children and young people. The programme targets children and young people
from some of London’s highest areas of child poverty. The programme consists of a Schools
service; a Youth programme for 13 — 25 year olds in need of support with education,
employment or mental health support; play activities at Hampstead Heath (two play
centres) for children, parents and carers; and programmes for children with autism and
other special educational needs and disabilities.

The learning programme reaches schools in some of London’s most deprived boroughs
with high child poverty levels, including Tower Hamlets, Newham, Hackney, Haringey,
Camden, Islington, and Waltham Forest. The programme is enhanced by a bespoke offer
for children with SEN, children at risk of exclusion, and children in pupil referral units.
Programmes include a tailored, long-term nature-based learning experiences for SEND
students across Early Years Foundation Stage (EYFS), Key Stage 1 (KS1), and Key Stage 2
(KS2), with increased opportunities to explore, play, and learn in natural environments,
reaping the associated wellbeing benefits

Two play centres at Hampstead Heath provide both indoor and outdoor play facilities that
serve diverse audiences and are staffed by skilled play workers. An Adventure Clubhouse
provides play facilities for under-16s, and a One O’clock Club provides play facilities for
under-fives and their parents/carers. The facilities provide essential opportunities for
children to learn through play and to gain the wellbeing benefits associated with playing
outdoors in nature. As part of our commitment to tackling disadvantage, both play centres
engage children who are growing up in poverty who often have limited access to
enrichment opportunities during the school holidays. Analysis of 2023 postcode data for
Play Centre participants showed that participating children were from areas with an
average of 40% child poverty. This compares to 33% for London and 29% for the UK.

A bespoke programme for 13 — 25-year-olds struggling with education, employment or
mental health is provided in our green spaces. This year’s participants have included: Pupil
Referral Units; Special Needs Schools; Youth organisations/clubs; Young carers
organisations; Family support organisations; Social prescribing practices; Refugee/asylum
seeker support organisations.

Schools Programmes

13

Page 156



Since September 2023, our City of London schools have been running in-house projects
supporting our social mobility ambitions.

WREN 300

In partnership with City Corporation City Corporation, Diocese, City of London School, and
St. Paul’s Cathedral, this year-long initiative brought together pupils from diverse
backgrounds across the City Family of Schools and beyond. Through music, visual art, and
creative writing, pupils were immersed in Wren's architectural legacy, culminating in a final
music concert at the Guildhall. The project's multi-phase approach, including workshops at
historic sites and rehearsals at venues, not only nurtured artistic talents but also instilled a
sense of pride, belonging and curiosity about London's rich heritage to pupils from across
the capital. There was a key focus on developing cultural capital throughout the project
which was significantly turbocharged through the City Family of Schools strategic
partnerships. The positive feedback received from pupils, parents, and educators
underscored the project's impact in inspiring and empowering young minds, transcending
socio-economic barriers and fostering a culture of aspiration and achievement.

London Compact 2030 - Bridge The Gap

In January 2024 at the Guildhall, the annual City Schools Conference took place. The
conference was designed to improve social cohesion through the connection of
disadvantaged young people to a wide range of opportunities across London, increase
engagement in education and training to reduce participation and achievement gaps
between advantaged and disadvantaged young people and to secure long-term economic
prosperity through employers accessing and providing supported pathways for a large and
diverse pool of local talent.

City Chess Tournament

The annual Chess tournament, organised in collaboration with Chess in Schools and
Communities (CSC), served as powerful catalyst for social mobility for pupils across the
City Family of Schools. Through engaging online workshops and competitive tournaments,
pupils were provided with a unique opportunity to develop strategic thinking, problem-
solving skills, and resilience. By embracing a spirit of inclusivity and nurturing a love for
chess among pupils of all backgrounds, these initiatives fostered a sense of achievement.
With the generous support of CSC, each participant also gained access to ChessKid
accounts, further enriching their learning experience and empowering them to thrive in the
digital age.

City Maths Challenge

The collaborative maths event held at Guildhall in February 2024, in partnership with
Christ Hospital School, provided a transformative experience for Year 5 pupils from diverse
backgrounds across London. Through engaging mathematical challenges and interactive
stations, students honed their problem-solving skills and fostered a passion for STEM
learning. By embracing a diverse cohort of learners and offering access to enriching

14

Page 157



extracurricular activities, the event played a pivotal role in bridging educational inequalities
and enhancing cultural capital. Feedback from participants underscored the event's
profound impact in empowering young mathematicians, particularly those traditionally
underrepresented in STEM fields, thereby fostering a more inclusive and equitable learning
environment.

Apprenticeship information sharing

We actively engage with schools in local boroughs, particularly those situated in areas
identified as deprived, to promote the benefits of apprenticeships. Through remote
sessions, we educate young people, parents, and school staff on the advantages of
apprenticeships. These sessions cover the structure of apprenticeships, emphasising the
balance between work and ongoing education. Furthermore, we provide guidance on how
to identify suitable apprenticeship opportunities, offering a comprehensive list of current
apprenticeships and directing participants to relevant apprenticeship websites. To ensure
thorough support, we conduct follow-up face-to-face sessions. During these sessions, we
assist participants in completing application forms and provide insights into the selection
process, including interview preparation. Additional guidance is offered upon request,
ensuring that each young person receives personalised support tailored to their needs.
Through these initiatives, we aim to empower young individuals with the knowledge and
resources necessary to embark on successful apprenticeship journeys, ultimately
contributing to their personal and professional development.

Guildhall School of Music and Drama

Projects
Our Access and Participation projects have criteria that target young people from lower
socioeconomic backgrounds and support them to access Guildhall School of Music &
Drama. This includes:

Supported Application Scheme: The scheme offers free application workshops, advice and
guidance, invitations to performances, and travel bursaries for auditions to eligible
undergraduate applicants.

Originate: This collaborative project, in partnership with RADA, Theatre Peckham, and
Young & Talented, offers 18 young actors in London nine months of free training,
culminating in an industry showcase.

Monologue Bootcamp: This is run in collaboration with Leeds Conservatoire, and prepares
future Drama School applicants for the audition process, equipping them with the skills to
choose, interpret, and deliver a monologue.

Get Backstage: This project introduces young people to our Production Arts programmes,
offering hands-on workshops to try some of the skills and techniques we teach students. It
provides an insight into the various degree options and information about the many career
pathways available to graduates.

Guildhall Young Artists (GYA) Bursaries: We fund music training bursaries, in our under-

15

Page 158



18 centres, to ensure that children are able to access sustained, high-quality music training,
irrespective of their financial circumstances.

Participation Bursaries: These bursaries provide financial support to those living in low-
income households, enabling participation in selected Short Courses by providing a full or
half-bursary to cover course costs.

Guildhall Young Artists (GYA)

Guildhall School of Music and Drama’s network of centres provides sustained performing
and production arts training, including one-to-one lessons for ages 4-18. Centres outside
London include Norwich and Taunton, with an online centre for those unable to attend in
person. Around 30% of GYA students come from lower income backgrounds and are
supported via bursaries; and 40% are from the global majority.

GYA provides children and young people with valuable life skills and the means to develop
their individual talents to the full. Many students (including those from low income/less
represented groups) go on to study their chosen discipline as full time undergraduates,
with 192 students progressing to performing and production arts degrees over the last four
years. In 24/25 we aim to increase GYA places to 1,850 students.

Regular events are held (for example the recent GYA Brass & Percussion Day) on a pay-
what-you can basis, removing financial barriers to access. We have approximately 50
children attend these events each term, and the aim is to increase this to 75-100 children in
24/25. The workshops offer students and parents advice on progression routes, and
connects with external organisations such as Brass Bands England and Music Hubs.

LSSO Conductor in Residence

GYA and Black Lives in Music recruit a young conductor to be resident with the London
Schools Symphony Orchestra (LSSO) for a year. The residency for young conductors from
under-represented groups is designed to nurture diverse talent and champion
representation within the orchestra. A third conductor will be recruited in 24/25

Graduate Employment Scheme

GYA offers paid work experience, training, and mentoring to recent Guildhall graduates,
particularly aimed at those graduates from lower income and diverse backgrounds. Two-
thirds of work experience placements found permanent employment within GYA in 23/24.
The programme will be expanded to up to 10 graduates in 24/25.

Freemen’s School

20 Refugee families, predominantly from Ukraine, Afghanistan, and Syria, who live in
the local area, joined a Refugee club to improve their English and to find out more
about their community. Each young person was paired with one or two students. The
buddies meet every Tuesday after school and had a chat or played games together. 24

16

Page 159



Freemen’s students participated in the Club, and Freemen’s teachers also provided
language support for the parents of the refugee families who attended. Activities included:
a music workshop led by Surrey Arts; a fun tie-dye session where the buddies decorated t-
shirts for each other; and a farewell party where each family brought in a traditional dish
from their home country.

2a. In total, in how many schools did you undertake outreach activities with
during the 2024 Index reporting period?

17 within our City Family of Schools but initiatives impact a wider number of
schools, as evidenced above.

2b. How did you access the schools which you worked with?

(Tick all that apply)

X

We contacted the schools directly

We contacted schools via Local Authorities

| We contacted them via the Local Enterprise Partnership

| We contacted schools via careers and skills agencies (Careers Enterprise
Company, Developing the Young Workforce or Careers Wales)

| We worked with a charity or third party who identified young people on our
behalf

Other: a. The expression “the City Family of Schools” means those

schools for which the City has either direct responsibility as
proprietor, sponsor or local authority, or historic links. These
include but are not restricted to: The Aldgate Primary School,
the City of London School, the City of London School for Girls,
the City of London Freemen’s School, City Junior School and
the academies managed by the City of London Academies
Trust. Through this network, the Education Strategy Unit at City
Corporation brings together all the schools through strategic
partnership work, funded by City Corporation’s Education
Board. The outreach the City Corporation has also expands
beyond this, and through our leading role in the City Livery
Education Network and through our cultural and creative
partners, we are able to engage with and deliver projects and
programmes to many more schools, reaching thousands more
children and young people across the capital.

b. There are multiple pathways for schools to engage with the
Barbican Centre. We have a free offer that schools can access

17

Page 160



via our website or by contacting our education team. Our other
offers are built on existing relationships with schools, some of
whom are local to us with which we have an existing
relationship.

2c. Why did you choose this approach?

a. The approach of the City Family of Schools is uniquely valuable for outreach efforts due to
its inclusive and comprehensive nature. By encompassing a diverse range of schools,
including those directly managed by City Corporation, academies within the City of London
Academies Trust, and institutions with historic ties, this model fosters collaboration and
synergy across different educational sectors. This inclusive network allows for strategic
partnership work facilitated by the Education Strategy Unit, supported by funding from City
Corporation 's Education Board. What sets this approach apart is its ability to transcend
traditional boundaries, bringing together schools from various backgrounds and governance
structures under a unified framework. City Corporation's involvement in the City Livery
Education Network further expands outreach efforts, enabling engagement with a broader
range of schools and significantly increasing the reach and impact of educational initiatives
throughout the capital. This collaborative and inclusive approach enhances the effectiveness
of outreach programmes.

b. The Barbican Centre has a multitude of offers for schools and Colleges, some of
which are light touch such a gallery and conservatory visits, and we invite schools
to take this type of offer up with us. Working in this way builds flexibility within our
programme and allows us to provide access to our creative offer to more schools
and colleges. We also work on longer term projects with schools and colleges,
building programmes that support the needs and motivations of the schools we
engage. For this work we take a more targeted approach to engagement, building
sustainable relationships that we can build on, learn from and evolve our
programmes, relationships and practice.

London Metropolitan Archives deliver a curriculum-linked core learning offer for
Key Stages 1 -4, centred on developing history enquiry skills through engaging
children with our collections, the history of London, identity and place. Plans are
being developed expand this service later this year.

The Lord Mayor also works on schools outreach, and makes an annual visit to
Treloar’s school. The Lord Mayor launched the Lord Mayor’s Royal Mathematical
School Scholarship at Christ’s Hospital, and hosted the Livery Academy Awards in
January. The Sheriffs and the Lady Mayoress attended a Lord Mayor’s Appeal “We

18

Page 161



Can Be” event at Guildhall in February, with young women from schools across
London taking part in business-focused activities.

2d. Where applicable, please provide the information below for each of the
following activities for the past year:

Please specify the number of young people participating in school outreach,
mentoring and work experience in person and the number that participated

virtually.

Please insert numbers only

School School Mentoring = Mentoring = Work Work
outreach outreach (in (virtual) experienc | experienc
(in (virtual) person) e e
person) (in (virtual)
person)

The number | 3500 17000 300 300 100 200

of young

people

participating

The number @ 47 95 29 53 17 41

of schools
participating

3. Please use the tick boxes below to indicate the targeting criteria your

organisation uses for outreach activities, and the number of schools meeting
these criteria:

Criteria Criteria Number of schools
used? meeting criteria

Schools/young people close to our offices (within 15

roughly one hour’s travel)

Schools our employees attended L]

Schools without existing relationships with Over 175

employers like us

Non-selective (on attainment) state schools Directly 11 (but over

100 schools who

Page 162

19



benefit from our
outreach work)

Schools in areas of the country which are social U]
mobility cold spots

Schools in areas of high deprivation (as determined | [
by the Index of Multiple Depravation)

Schools in areas of high deprivation affecting Ul
children (as determined by the Income Deprivation
Affecting Children Index)

Schools in low participation areas (TUNDRA) ]

Schools with a large proportion of free school 175

meals eligible pupils

Other- please specify As explained in 2b.
We also use FSM and
PP data as

benchmarks for our
outreach work.

*Please see the below links to support your answer to this question:

Social Mobility Cold Spots (N.B the Social Mobility Commission has now moved

away from using Cold Spots, but we are aware that employers may still be using
this data to target outreach activities. This year we will assess employers based on
whether they have taken a targeted approach to their outreach, which may involve

using cold spots data.)

Index of Multiple Deprivation

Income Deprivation Affecting Children Index

Low participation areas

Schools data

4. For each activity your organisation runs, please include the percentages
requested below:

If you have previous years of data, please provide below. If not, please provide the
data you have available.

20

Page 163


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-long-shadow-of-deprivation-differences-in-opportunities
https://view.officeapps.live.com/op/view.aspx?src=https%3A%2F%2Fassets.publishing.service.gov.uk%2Fmedia%2F5d8b3abded915d0373d3540f%2FFile_1_-_IMD2019_Index_of_Multiple_Deprivation.xlsx&wdOrigin=BROWSELINK
https://view.officeapps.live.com/op/view.aspx?src=https%3A%2F%2Fassets.publishing.service.gov.uk%2Fmedia%2F5d8b3b0340f0b609967c214b%2FFile_3_-_IoD2019_Supplementary_Indices_-_IDACI_and_IDAOPI.xlsx&wdOrigin=BROWSELINK
https://www.officeforstudents.org.uk/data-and-analysis/young-participation-by-area/
https://www.compare-school-performance.service.gov.uk/download-data

Please include any school outreach, mentoring or work experience whether in

person, online, or a mixture of both (hybrid).

Non-selective state schools are state schools that accept students of all abilities, i.e.

not grammar schools

2024 Index reporting period

Please insert number (e.g. 78% = 78)

School outreach e.g.
visits to schools

Mentoring

Work experience

% of young people
eligible for free
school meals/pupil
premium

Our outreach is too great
to store this level of
dataat present. Our large
projects and
programmes and the
majority of our intake are
eligible for FSM and if
not, for example, like the
School Visits Fund (see
1b, we set a threshold for
at least 35% of the
schools we fund to have
that number on roll
eligible).

Click or tap here to
enter text.

Click or tap here to
enter text.

% of young people
who are connected
to employees or
clients, such as
friends/family

Click or tap here to
enter text.

Click or tap here to
enter text.

Click or tap here to
enter text.

% of young people
who are care-
experienced

Click or tap here to
enter text.

Click or tap here to
enter text.

Click or tap here to
enter text.

2023 Index reporting period

Please insert number (e.g. 78% = 78)

Page 164

21



School outreach e.g.
visits to schools

Mentoring

Work experience

% of young people
eligible for free
school meals/pupil
premium

As above

% of young people
who are connected
to employees or
clients, such as
friends/family

% of young people
who are care-
experienced

2022 Index reporting period

Please insert number (e.g. 78% = 78)

School outreach e.g.

visits to schools

Mentoring

Work experience

% of young people
eligible for free
school meals/pupil
premium

As above

% of young people
who are connected
to employees or
clients, such as
friends/family

% of young people
who are care-
experienced

2021 Index reporting period

Please insert number (e.g. 78% = 78)

Page 165

22



visits to schools

School outreach e.g.

Mentoring Work experience

% of young people As above
eligible for free
school meals/pupil
premium

% of young people
who are connected
to employees or
clients, such as
friends/family

% of young people Click or tap here to
who are care- enter text.
experienced

Click or tap here to Click or tap here to
enter text. enter text.

5. After the initial contact with the young people on your activities, what

follow-up activities do you run, if any?

] Application support for Work experience
roles at your organisation

] Mentoring (formal) Scholarships/bursaries

Follow up events Application support for further
study such as university or
apprenticeship

] Online support O Fast tracking applicants who
participated in school outreach
in your application process

O None Other

6a. Do you offer staff specific training relating to socioeconomic background

before running outreach and follow-up activities? If yes, please describe the

objective(s) and what is covered in the training.

(200 words)

Schools-focussed staff are provided with frequent opportunities to engage in various

events, roundtables, workshops, and data sessions aimed at identifying and highlighting

23

Page 166



emerging trends and policy data concerning socioeconomic background EEDI. Participation
in external conferences and workshops support continuing professional development and
enables staff to remain current with the social mobility agenda. Proactive engagement
with external partners such as academics and think tanks is prioritised to stay informed on
the latest guidance, advice, and best practices in this field. This commitment to continuous
learning and collaboration empowers staff to enact informed strategies that advance social
mobility and foster inclusive educational environments.

6b. Do you brief staff on making outreach activities (including online activities)
accessible and inclusive for those from lower socioeconomic backgrounds? If
yes, please explain what support is given to staff.

(200 words)

Staff work closely with experts across diverse industries to ensure that our outreach
activities, including online, are accessible and inclusive for individuals from lower
socioeconomic backgrounds. Through this approach, we integrate best practices into our
operations to address the needs of all those we aim to serve. Toolkits are designed to be
accessible to a wide range of audiences, incorporating various formats and mediums to
cater to different learning preferences. We prioritise diversity and inclusion, ensuring that
our communication methods resonate with our communities. This is part of our policy and
research focus and actively embedded in our operations, reflecting our evidence-driven
approach. By implementing best practice, we strive to make our outreach efforts as
effective and inclusive as possible, advancing our mission of promoting social mobility and
equitable access to education. Staff are encouraged to take part in internal training to
ensure that what we do is inclusive.

Staff at the Barbican Centre are also trained to communicate with audiences in the way that
is most accessible to the audience in question. This process is supported by ensuring that
written correspondence is written in ‘plain English’, and visual content produced is
understood to be in the most accessible format.

24

Page 167



7. Do you offer guidance or support on ‘professional expectations and
behaviours’ to young people from lower socioeconomic backgrounds
participating in work experience (in person or online)? For example, guidance
on approaches to in-person and virtual meetings, expectations about dress,
tone of email communications, or client/customer/stakeholder engagement. If
yes, please explain what support is given.

(200 words)

As work experience is currently being reintroduced via a standardised process,
guidance and support (online and in-person) offers are being developed, so we can
provide support to and engage young people during their placements. Using
qualitative data from apprenticeship recruitment, we have identified and are
addressing a significant need for soft skills to fill gaps not currently met by careers
advisors in schools or other education institutions.

The Barbican Centre complete induction sessions for our programmes. This includes
guidance on conduct, appropriate behaviour and language and our expectations as
an employer. We then develop an ‘exchange of expectations’ document with the
young people that we work with, this supports them and us to navigate our
expectations and experiences.

8. Where relevant, please indicate which statement below best describes the
reach of the activity in question:

Please only select one statement per activity column

School School Mentoring | Mentoring | Work Work
outreach outreach (in person | (virtual) experienc | experienc
(in (virtual) e (in e (virtual)
person) person)

We only n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

have one

office and

the young

people/sch

ools

participati

ng come

25

Page 168



from the
surroundin
g area

We have n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
multiple
offices and
this
activity is
provided
in some of
these
offices

We have n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
multiple
offices and
this
activity is
provided
in all of
these
offices

We run X X X X X X
initiatives
to support
young
people
from far
beyond
the
location of
our offices
(e.g.
through e-
mentoring)

9a. Do you take steps to ensure that in-person sessions and/or work experience
are accessible to those who do not live locally?

(Please tick all that apply)

Account for travel time, starting later or finishing earlier to enable people to travel at
reasonable times if they are not based near the office

26

Page 169



Provide accommodation for those who do not live locally

Pay for relevant travel costs

Oo|o|o

Pay for relevant subsistence costs

Coordinate travel where sufficient numbers of young people are travelling from the same
geographic location and/or school

Provide practical non-financial support, for example, meeting participants at relevant train
stations

] Provide financial reimbursement for loss of earnings or any additional costs

Other: No, however at the discretion of supervising departments work experiences

placements can claim expenses in the event travel to other sites outside
regular office location is required, expenses are primarily for lunch.

For work delivered in the Education Strategy Unit, there are trips, projects and
programmes where we fund our partners to deliver their activities with free
travel. Where we deliver in-house projects with specific schools to external
venues, we also fund transportation (i.e. coaches).

The Barbican Centre: For schools in receipt of Pupil Premium above
35% the Corporation of London provides a £300 bursary to be
used towards costs related to visiting our venue (up to 3 times
per year per school).

[If 9a any response= ‘Yes’]
9b. Do you actively advertise this support when promoting opportunities to
young people and their schools? If yes, please explain how.

(200 words)

We publicise opportunities across our social media feeds as well as through
City Corporation communications channels, including press releases. In the
case of the Barbican centre, support is advertised in their termly school
newsletter and on their website. for some of our philanthropic commitments,
we ensure that the provided financial assistance also covers the travel costs
for the trips young people take.

27

Page 170



[If 9a ‘Pay for travel costs’= ‘Yes’]
9c. If you pay for travel costs, please indicate which of the following options
apply

Means tested, please specify the criteria:

This varies, but a key example here would be our Schools Visit Fund as highlighted in

section 1b.
U Not means tested
Paid upfront/booked for the student
U] Reimbursed following travel

[If 9a ‘Provide accommodation for those who do not live locally’ or ‘Pay for relevant
travel costs’= ‘No’ ]

9d. If you do not provide any support for travel and/or accommodation, please
explain why.

(200 words)

For general work experience posts and at the discretion of supervising departments
(per the work experience policy) individuals on work experience placements can
claim expenses in the event of travel to other sites that are located outside the
regular office location, where necessary.

The Barbican centre support individual young people who are engaged with their
programmes — this is in the form of travel and or subsistence as appropriate.
Support is provided for young carers as appropriate.

10. If your organisation works beyond its office locations, how does it reach
young people that do not live nearby?

(Please tick all that apply)

By providing online resources to help them understand our organisation or develop their
skills

By providing e-mentors

By providing residential work experience placements

By offering virtual work experience provided by an external provider on an external
platform, e.g. Inside Sherpa

28

Page 171



] By running virtual work experience tailored to the organisation with direct interaction
between participants and members of the business, e.g. including video calls with
employees

U] By enabling employees to provide outreach in locations in the country beyond your office
locations, e.g. by covering their travel costs, or allowing them to use volunteering hours to
provide mentoring

In another way, please write | We work with and fund many organisations across

in: London who work on a local and pan London basis. To this
extent each project and programme differs. We have
strong relationships with LAs in the boroughs where our
schools are placed and we also work with schools and
organisations to ensure our work is advertised as widely
as possible. A good example here is London Careers
Festival.

11a. If you offer hybrid or virtual work experience placements, do you ensure
that the young people invited have all the equipment they need to take part in
the virtual element?

Yes — This aligns with the current workplace attendance policy

O No

] We haven't offered any hybrid or virtual work experience placements

[If 11a = ‘Yes']
11b. What equipment do you offer to young people to ensure they can
complete online work experience, if they do not have it? Please select all that

apply.

Laptops

] Wi-Fi routers, dongles, data bundles or other equipment to ensure they
have access to the internet

Headsets

] Webcams

Microphones

] None of the above

Other - please Any specialist equipment required for placements
specify: to carry out activities will be directly arranged by

supervising department - supervising departments

29

Page 172



need to factor any risks attached to equipment

usage by carrying out a risk assessment

12a. Do you flag students who take part in any of your outreach work in your
recruitment process?

O Yes No

[If 12a = ‘Yes']
12b. If you flag students from your outreach work in the recruitment process,
please indicate below the number of participants that have applied to date,
and how many were successful:

Please insert numbers only

Total Applications Total Successful
applications from flagged successful applicants who
students applicants were flagged

Pipeline programmes | n/a n/a n/a n/a

e.g. first year

undergraduate insight

weeks, penultimate

year

internships/vacation

schemes

Permanent roles n/a n/a n/a n/a

Other, please specify n/a n/a n/a n/a

13a. If you or your external partners evaluate the impact of your activities with
young people, please tick all of the methods used:

] We do not evaluate our activities with young people

] Collecting ad-hoc feedback from participants

Conducting pre and post feedback surveys

30

Page 173



Exploring impact via interviews with participants, teachers, or parents/guardians
(individually or in focus groups)

We commission external evaluation from an appropriately experienced third-party
organisation

Tracking educational outcomes

Tracking career outcomes

Comparing the impact of the initiative year-on-year to improve outcomes

Parent/teacher surveys

[If 13a = any answer except ‘We do not evaluate our activities with young people’]
13b. Please tell us what you have found in your evaluation, specifically about
the impact achieved by your activities:

(200 words)

We employ a multifaceted approach to gather comprehensive feedback, assess the impact
of and improve the outcomes of our initiatives. This includes collecting ad-hoc feedback
from participants and conducting pre- and post-feedback surveys using mixed-methods
approaches, adhering to ethical guidelines and best practices to ensure data reliability. Data
are analysed and presented to City Corporation 's Education Board.

Impact is explored through interviews with participants, teachers, or parents/carers, and we
commission external evaluations with HEls and Think-Tanks to generate new insights into
social mobility and outcomes. We track educational outcomes by partnering with research
organisations to monitor attainment against our funded projects and programmes,
particularly through the City Premium Grant.

Evaluation indicated that impacts included: Enrichment (22 projects), Attainment (17
projects), Skills development (10 projects), Future pathways, (10 projects), Pastoral care, (9
projects), Behaviour (5 projects), - Continued Professional Development (CPD) (3 projects);
Rewards, (2 projects). Examples of projects are included at the end of this form.

31

Page 174



Section 2:
Attraction and University outreach

Please indicate if your organisation will be submitting answers to Section 2:
Attraction and University outreach

Yes - we will be submitting answers to Section 2: Attraction and University outreach

l No - we will not be submitting answers to Section2: Attraction and University outreach

If no, please state the reason why you are not submitting answers to this section:
(150 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

1a. Does your organisation conduct university outreach, either in person or
virtually, to raise awareness of your graduate opportunities?

(tick all that apply)
] In person
L] Virtually (direct engagement with specific universities)
Ol We undertake university outreach in partnership with a third-party organisation

No - Any outreach is conducted by the Local Government Association (LGA), it's possible
that the LGA may promote the National Graduate Development Programme directly to
universities aiming to generate interest amongst final year students. City Corporation is
not party to this.

| N/a, we do not offer graduate opportunities

[If 1a ‘Virtually’ = ‘Yes’]

1b. If you conduct university outreach exclusively virtually or both in person
and virtually, please explain which activities are conducted virtually and the
rationale for this.

(200 words)

n/a

32

Page 175



[If 1a ‘Virtually’ = ‘Yes’]

2a. In total, how many universities did you conduct direct outreach with
(virtually or in person - and not including reaching institutions through general
social media messaging) in the 2024 reporting period?

n/a

2b. Please indicate below which criteria (if any) you use when selecting
universities to conduct outreach with, and the number and percentage of
universities you work with that meet each criterion.

Criteria Criteria Number of
used? universities meeting
criteria
Universities with an above average proportion of O n/a

students from a low participation neighbourhood
(greater than 12.1%)*

Universities with a high proportion of students that | [ n/a
attended a state school (greater than 90.3%)*

Russell group universities* Ol n/a
Non- Russell group universities* Ol n/a
Universities which are close to our offices (within O n/a

roughly an hour’s travel)

Other, please specify Ol n/a

*Please find below links which will support you with your answer to this question:

University data — proportion of students from a low participation neighbourhood

University data - Proportion of state school students

List of Russell group universities

33

Page 176


https://www.officeforstudents.org.uk/data-and-analysis/access-and-participation-data-dashboard/data-dashboard/
https://www.hesa.ac.uk/data-and-analysis/performance-indicators/widening-participation
https://russellgroup.ac.uk/about/our-universities

2c. Which universities did you work with most frequently in the 2024 reporting
period and how many outreach activities did you conduct with these
universities?

Position | University Total number of Number of in Number of online
interactions/events | person events/interactions
events/interactions
1 n/a n/a n/a n/a
2 n/a n/a n/a n/a
3 n/a n/a n/a n/a
4 n/a n/a n/a n/a
5 n/a n/a n/a n/a
6 n/a n/a n/a n/a
7 n/a n/a n/a n/a
8 n/a n/a n/a n/a
9 n/a n/a n/a n/a
10 n/a n/a n/a n/a

3a. Does your organisation partner with any widening participation and/or

careers teams at any university (this might include joint planning of

programmes or shared approaches to targeting young people)?

] Yes, please specify how

many:

Click or tap here to enter text.

No

34

Page 177



[If 3a = “Yes’]

3b. Please tell us how you have worked widening participation and/or careers
teams to increase the number of students from lower socioeconomic
backgrounds attending your events.

(200 words)

n/a

4a. Does your organisation monitor the socioeconomic background of
attendees at university events?

O Yes No

[If 4a = ‘Yes']
4b. If yes, please complete the below table where known.

3 2
° < P
g 2 @ S
— ] Q = m©
2T 7] + 5 g
T € @ ) S ®
7] o 3 o ]
- c c
S c O - o ] )
4 o= . 3 2 £ £
o 8 © (] o o+ © C -
(o - - o o
o c o = (7] o —
1] o 9 - ¥ - o o x
£ S & z o 9 g £2
7] w a5 '5-, [ 1 ) 4
S - = ‘5 < ) o D
3 (- o < o © =
"J; ; 2 (] hd < qL) ; |
Y S 'E c o -g g c 20
<) o ) <
1 © g ':, ; -g -g ) (1] m
Z o gE L@ o 7] 7] + € «
E 2 Do £ - + 2 4 (|
£ E £33 3® ® ® = &0
=} e © U ) o o o e O
< Zz > 2 o > E S > S S
Attendance | n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
at careers
fairs
In-person n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
events
Webinars n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
35

Page 178



Mentoring n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

Application | n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
support

[If 4a = ‘No’]
4c. If no, why does your organisation not monitor the socioeconomic
background of attendees at university events?

(200 words

EDI monitoring with the aim of attracting candidates within a particular
socioeconomic background is primarily carried out by the Local Government
Association directly as the organising body for our graduate programme — a
programme open to Local Authorities in general. This mechanism gives us a more
impactful and broader reach into the pool of interested graduates than we could
achieve ourselves. Further monitoring can be made by City Corporation at interview
stage of recruiting candidates when data on backgrounds can be gathered.

There is school-specific engagement with universities that is not captured centrally,
for example via our independent schools. These will either follow localised
information arrangements or approaches agreed by individual School Boards.

5. Please indicate below if there is an advantage in your recruitment process
for students who have attended university outreach events - and if this is
made clear on your website/recruitment materials

Advantage in Is this made | Link to website or recruitment
your clear on material
recruitment your
process? website?
Yes - candidates are O O n/a
flagged during the
recruitment process
Yes - information is O O n/a
provided at university
events in more detail
than on our website
Yes - other, please O O n/a
specify:
36

Page 179



No Outreach is conducted by the Local
Government Association (LGA), on
behalf of the overall the National
Graduate Development Programme
directly to universities. City
Corporation is not party to this.

6a. Does your organisation reach out to students at universities it
doesn't hold virtual or in person events visits with?

O Yes No

6b. Please tick below any ways in which your organisation engages with
students at universities you do not visit:

] Regional university fairs

Chat forums/Webinars

E-mentoring

Access to the same resources given out/presented at virtual or in person university visits

Social media

Olgjlo|o|o

Virtual experiences (not including virtual visits that have replaced in person ones due to
Covid-19)

X

Something else, please write | Recruitment is primarily through the LGA.
in:

[If 6b = Any option]
6¢. Please detail below any information you have on the socioeconomic
background of those who access the additional support.

(200 words)

For example, if resources are made available online, are they being accessed by
students at universities outside of the Russell Group?

n/a

7a. Does your organisation operate any initiatives/partnerships to attract
applications and/or increase the success rate of applicants - from lower

37

Page 180



socioeconomic backgrounds into your graduate recruitment

programmes?
O Yes No
[If 7a = “Yes’]

7b. Please give details for each initiative/partnership below.

= 3 = t
)
g o 5 - 9% 9
=2 C " QB = c
o9 c s 35 8 =
» B - = e n - ¢
R 2 2§ 2 g
v @ 2 © 0o 0 € = 2
o 29 4w 9 > © t o Qo
£ RG] R S >0 2 T
ol sFHFEcl <z 3 o x
c = =S 0 £ ‘(9 ,.f_u; g .E l'(; -
o S 2550 S s 8 &5
‘e 0= 8 8 o i 5 & w0
] £ T ® ¥ ¢ = @ @ 9 =2
3 ~ O 'S c [}
= ¥ S5 9=t 8 2 3 0 9 -
() QU D - & = t Q O E Q o
t b 0 - © > Q ®© (9} > >
© S gweE S = o 2 o u v e =2
g A= G - 5 w E .2 “ £ 0o
S 9 £ € 05 > <) o m ¥ o %
9 T n B c < P » 0.0 e ¥
2 P o = o o =B 7]
5 v 0= g = o s = o o
& ns2g¢g | 2 £t Esfx £2 2
= 8 F 5. e 2 5 5 532E| 585
£ o oo o .5 w Z c Z % O Z o c
Initiative/ n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
partnership
1
Initiative/ n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
partnership
2
Initiative/ n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
partnership
3
[If 7a = ‘No’]

7c. If your organisation does not currently operate any initiatives to attract

candidates from lower socioeconomic backgrounds, are there plans in place to

do so?

(200 words)

Page 181

38



Our People Strategy 2024-29 aims to increase a more diverse range of candidates,
including form lower socioeconomic backgrounds and work will develop over the
next few years.

City Corporation will take steps to improve and support success rates of applicants
from lower socioeconomic backgrounds via recruitment strategies such as ring-
fencing some placements for applicants from non-Russell group universities. Plans
for this are still under development, and will be realised as part of the next round of
graduate recruitment.

Our Young Employees Network has supported the pilot of a Graduate Scheme (as
part of the Local Authority Graduate Scheme), and will be providing support for the
new intake later this year.

8a. If your organisation offers apprenticeships, does your organisation operate
any initiatives/partnerships to attract applications or increase the success rate
of applicants from lower socioeconomic backgrounds within your
apprenticeships schemes?

Yes
] No
| We do not offer apprenticeships

City Corporation offers a wide range of apprenticeships, spanning from level 2 to
level 7, catering to both new apprentices and the upskilling of current employees.
This benefits existing employees from lower social economic backgrounds.

Our commitment to fostering talent is evident in our support for 100 entry-level
apprenticeships within our organisation at all times.

These apprenticeships are specifically ringfenced for applicants with GCSE and
lower levels of qualifications, ensuring equitable access to opportunities for
individuals from diverse backgrounds. In exceptional cases where positions remain
unfilled, we may extend opportunities to applicants with A levels, albeit no higher.

Collaborating with employment agencies across local areas, we actively participate
in recruitment events targeting individuals from lower socioeconomic backgrounds.
Our primary partner in this endeavour is the Prince’s Trust: this collaboration
enables us to reach and support a broader spectrum of potential candidates

39

Page 182



[If 8a = “Yes’]

iative/partnership below.

ini

8b. Please give details for each

(Ajuo si1aquinu
pasul aseald) 1oy pandde Aayy uonisod
pauleyqo jeyj ajdoad jo JoquinN

° °
o~ c c
(Ajuo
slaquinu Ju9sul 9seald) aAneniul ayy
JO 1INsaJ se A)3da41p uonesiuebio JnoA
03 pandde aAey jeyy aydoad jo JaquinN o m m
(Ajuo siaquinu
H9sul asedald) sjuedpiyied jo JaquinN
@ ©
@ = =
(wsy | I
19A97 ‘sadxnuaidde asu69(q "6°9) syuoddns =
aARERIUI SIY) 1ey} 19A9) diysadipuaiddy 2 © ©
4 m e =
[
5 S
euou AN | T - Bw 3
$:302% | <o <
32 90 g 0O c c
diysiauried/uonuaniajul
JO uoned0)] ‘UoiUSBAINUI JO
ya6ua) ‘una saniAnde ‘abe sjuedpiaed 2
‘dno.b 1964e] :Buipniul ‘diysisuried \ © ©
10 dA1IE1UI BY]) 9CIIDISOP dsed]d 9 = =
(%]
aweu diysidupied/aaneniu| 8 =
£ 3 © ©
a - < =
2 L2 L2
ek 3T 3%
S 0 S o S o
8 5 8 5 8 5
2% 2% 2%
S aow £ o £ o

[If 8a = ‘No’]

itiatives to attract

8c. If your organisation does not currently operate any in

candidates from lower socioeconomic backgrounds within your apprenticeship

schemes, are there plans in place to do so?

(200 words)

n/a

40

Page 183



9a. If your organisation offers a school leaver programme, does your

organisation operate any initiatives/partnerships to attract applications or
increase the success rate of applicants from lower socioeconomic

backgrounds?
Yes
U] No
U We do not offer a school leaver
programme
[If 9a = “Yes’]

9b. Please give details for each initiative/partnership below.

< S« t
-
g o E s 9% &
3 C 0 [T (=
o o - ()] T
P £ 3 a 2 - O
5 0 - ] o o £ o 9
S ., S 0 o = 5 e 3
- 8 o 0 € s 3
o 2 9w - > © t o Q
£ 2§ o O o 8 >3 o =
s SFEcg - g o S8
c To3SS 2 ® 9 £ B E
o — == c s ko]
= C U0V ® = © L .= 0 K=
< Q5 g 0 9 8 ¥ T 0 = 0
] £ 8 T o ¢S W= QO o @ 0 =
= ¥ = Q = t © v - (] - QO
9 0oV o - ‘= i Q O = o a
c o € g € g ] £ - 0B 2 O 0 =~
£ 2= c L 2 g > 0 ® 0 o >
P 0w o o -
[ U g wn e C ] = o 4 S 9 C
o n .= ¥ € O v - 0 - C .= L )
~ 9 £ €S 05 <) o g ¥ o ¥
Y T 08 >c 2 o P » 0.0 L o
> - O = 0 =5 0 = B g § =
= Qo 0= a0 9 — [ o = o o
s weleo 2 2 2 o QS ° £ = 2 5 0o
S SEEELE o o E E E5,2> EGE
'S I 68 aw ¥ = S 3 S ° 2 c 3 0 3
£ o aoao.£ w Z c Z >% © Z o c
Initiative/ National We work with 16 plus | A maximum | Approxima | Approximatel
partnership | Apprentic | young adults of a 100 per | tely 200— | y 30long
1 eship from the age of session. A 300 per term
programm | 16 years old and ‘role on roll annum contracts -
e beyond. Provide off’ some
national programme. temporary or
qualifications short term
and training. contractual
Programmes arrangement
are delivered s following
from 12 months the
to 3 years. This completion
is dependent on of

Page 184

41



the course. apprenticesh
Courses can ip courses
take place either

at the Guildhall

or at a local

college or

training

provider.

Initiative/ Internship | Work 16 — Contracted | Awaiting Awaiting

partnership experience 24- number of the assessment

2 opportunities for | year-old | 25 outcome of | outcome

young people with full | participants | young

assess adults who

ments. have been
assessed
and
qualifies for
the
Internment
programme

Initiative/ NEETS — | Work with young | 16- Target Project Not yet

partnership | between unemployed 25years | number is started in achieved-

3 the age of | people. Provide | old — 1000 April 2024, | the aimisto
16-25 appropriate Those so far a ensure that
years old | training and who are total of 100 | 80% of

skills. Prepare econom applicants | participants
ILPS and ically are able to
delivery action inactive secure
plans to assist —Notin employment
with further employ or further
training, ment or education
education and training and skills.
skills.
Employment is
also an
important
outcome

[If 9a = ‘No’]

9c. If your organisation does not currently operate any initiatives to attract

candidates from lower socioeconomic backgrounds within your school leaver

schemes, are there plans in place to do so?

(200 words)

Page 185

42



n/a

Page 186

43



Section 3:
Recruitment and selection

Please indicate if your organisation will be submitting answers to Section 3:
Recruitment and selection

Yes - we will be submitting answers to Section 3: Recruitment and selection

U] No - we will not be submitting answers to Section 3: Recruitment and selection

If no, please state the reason why you are not submitting answers to this section:
(150 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

1a. During the recruitment process, is it advantageous for candidates to

apply early?
O Yes No
[If 1a = ‘Yes']

1b. Is this made clear on your website/in your recruitment materials?

] Yes O No

2a. If your organisation works with external diversity partners specifically on
socioeconomic background to supply candidates for roles, do you:

] Provide additional support for these candidates

Ol Flag those candidates during the recruitment process

O Fast-track candidates to move them through particular stages of the process (e.g.
straight to interview)

We do not work with external diversity partners

] Other - please specify: Click or tap here to enter text.

44

Page 187



[If 2a = Yes to any other than We do not work with external diversity partners]

2b. Which external partners do you work with to increase the diversity of your
applications by socioeconomic background? (Please simply state the name of
the organisation and/or initiative)

(150 words)

n/a

3a. Where your organisation uses external recruitment agencies, are they
given a brief specifically asking to see a diverse range of candidates on
socioeconomic background?

Yes

L] No

O We do not use external recruitment agencies.
[If 3a = “Yes’]
3b. If yes, please paste the wording of a recent brief below.
(150 words)

City Corporation values the rich diversity and creative potential people with diverse backgrounds,
skills and abilities bring to the workplace. Please detail how your organisation will address Equality,
Diversity and Inclusion challenges through the delivery and management of this recruitment process.
We have an inclusive approach to recruitment and require you to put forward candidates from a
range of backgrounds, particularly women, people from minority ethnic backgrounds, people with
disabilities who are currently underrepresented at senior grades, and to include social mobility. Itis
therefore important that you include details about how you will conduct your search to enable a
diverse shortlist for interviews to be achieved.

4. Are those involved in the recruitment process trained on unconscious bias, in
particular accent bias?

Yes, please explain what training is There is a recruitment policy, and we have
provided in relation to socioeconomic mandatory recruitment and selection training for
background: anyone involved in managing recruitment

processes, which includes fair recruitment and

45

Page 188



unconscious bias training. The training is
available to anyone involved in recruitment.

5a. Does your organisation utilise artificial intelligence when sifting
applications?

U] Yes, please identify which tool is used. Click or tap here to enter text.
No
[If 5a = ‘Yes’]

5b. Have you explored the impact of this on the number of candidates
from lower socioeconomic backgrounds who progress to the next stage
in the application process.

O Yes O No

[If 5b = “Yes’]

5c¢. Please share your findings (including links to any relevant research you
have carried out). For example, has the use of technology/Al to sift
applications resulted in an increase or decrease in the number of candidates
from a lower socioeconomic background being progressed to the next stage.

(300 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

6a. Do you ensure that the pay range for every role is clearly stated in all
job adverts?

Yes O No

[If 6a = ‘No’]
6b. If you do not advertise the pay range for roles, what is the reason for this?

(200 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

46

Page 189



6¢. Do you ask candidates applying for roles within your organisation
what their current salary is?

Yes O No

7a. Does your organisation offer financial incentives to employees that
recommend a candidate who is then hired?

O Yes No

[If 7a = ‘Yes']
7b. Are employee recommendations or referrals scored favourably in the
recruitment process?

O Yes No

[If 7a = ‘Yes']
7c. What do you know (if anything) about the socioeconomic background
of those who join your organisation due to a recommendation from a
current employee?

(250 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

8. Please provide a link to the recruitment pages on your website:

City of London Corporation Jobs

9a Do any of your entry routes have minimum academic requirements?

Yes No Sometimes We do not offer these
Degree O O Il
apprentice Criteria

set by

ESFA

47

Page 190


https://jobs.cityoflondon.gov.uk/

Apprentice (level O GCSE O
5/ SCQF 8 and requirements[]
below)

School leaver O O
Graduate O O
Experienced hires O O

[If 9a = ‘Yes’ or ‘Sometimes’ to any]

9b. Please detail below the average minimum academic requirements for roles
at your organisation (where relevant) and the rationale behind them. Please

specify whether the rationale has been set by you as the employer, the training
provider, a regulator, or elsewhere:

Please only differentiate different levels of apprenticeships and graduate schemes
where the minimum grade requirements differ.

For levels where your organisation does not have minimum grade requirements,
please write 'none' in the minimum grade requirements column.

Role

Minimum grade requirements

Rationale

Degree apprentice

ESFA set educational
requirements to selected
apprenticeships

Apprentice (level 5/
SCQF 8 and below)

Varies. Selected apprenticeships
require evidence of English and
Maths GCSE Grade C/5
equivalent

This is a national requirement set
by the apprenticeship levy.

School leaver

Click or tap here to enter text.

Click or tap here to enter text.

Graduate

2.2 or higher

This is consistent with the
approach other firms take to
recruiting graduates.

Experienced hires

10a. Do you collect data on the number of successful applicants

meeting/exceeding your minimum grade requirements?

48

Page 191



[If 10a = ‘Yes']

10b. Please tell us how many of your applicants in the past year met the

minimum requirements and how many exceeded the minimum grade

requirement:

Please insert numbers only*

Total intake

Number that met but did not

exceed the minimum
requirements

Number that exceeded the
minimum requirements

requirements but did so with

Number that did not initially
the use of contextual

meet the minimum
recruitment or other similar

measures

Degree
apprentices (level
6/7 or SCQF 9 and
above)

Click or tap here
to enter text.

Click or tap here
to enter text.

Click or tap here
to enter text.

Click or tap here
to enter text.

Apprentices (level
5 or SCQF 8 and
below)

Click or tap here
to enter text.

Click or tap here
to enter text.

Click or tap here
to enter text.

Click or tap here
to enter text.

School leaver

Click or tap here
to enter text.

Click or tap here
to enter text.

Click or tap here
to enter text.

Click or tap here
to enter text.

Graduate

Experienced hires

Click or tap here
to enter text.

Click or tap here
to enter text.

Click or tap here
to enter text.

Click or tap here
to enter text.

11a. Are candidates’ academic grades considered in context?

O Yes - using a contextualised recruitment tool e.g. RARE, REALRating etc

Yes - informally or using our own scoring system

Page 192

49



] No - grades are not considered in context

] We don't look at candidates’ grades

[If 11a = either ‘Yes’ option]
11b. If a candidate's academic grades are looked at, when and how is this
information used in the application process?

(200 words)

Our standard process for recruitment is that we consider grades in context, and will
ask for these or relevant skills and experience for the role. This gives us a holistic
picture of the candidate and encourages those who may have lower grades or gaps
in qualifications but still have relevant experience and capabilities.

In the process of selecting candidates for entry-level apprenticeships, our focus remains on
supporting individuals with lower levels of education, specifically GCSE and below. This
approach ensures equitable opportunities for candidates from diverse educational
backgrounds, aligning with our commitment to fostering inclusivity and accessibility within
our organisation.

For vacancies that are challenging to fill, we may extend consideration to applicants with A
levels. However, it is important to note that candidates with higher levels of education are
not considered for entry-level apprenticeships. This strategic decision is aimed at
maintaining consistency in our selection process and optimizing opportunities for individuals
with varying educational experiences to thrive within our apprenticeship programs.

By adhering to these selection criteria, we uphold our commitment to providing a supportive
and inclusive environment for apprenticeship candidates, fostering their growth and
development as they embark on their professional journeys with us.

[If 11a = either ‘Yes’ option]
11c. Do you have evidence that this approach has improved the proportion of
candidates from lower socioeconomic backgrounds who are successful?

O Yes No

[If 11c = ‘Yes’]

11d. If yes, please provide data showing the increase in the number of
candidates from a lower socioeconomic background who were hired as a result
of using contextual recruitment.

Click or tap here to enter text.

50

Page 193



12. Has your organisation assessed whether there is a correlation between a
candidate’s grades and their performance in role? If yes, please explain your
findings.

(300 words)
N/a

13a. Please indicate below if the following information is visible to the hiring
manager/panel considering the application at any stage of the recruitment
process.

Please select yes only if the information is visible to the hiring manager/panel. If this
information is visible to others such as those in HR, but not the hiring
manager/panel, please select No.

Yes No
Candidates’ names ]
Candidates’ school / college attended for the majority of key stage 4 | []
and key stage 5S5 studies
Candidates’ grades (school — and university attainment where U]
appropriate)
Candidates’ university (where appropriate, and recognising courses U]
that include relevant professional qualifications may need to be
included)
Candidates’ hometown O

[If any 13a are selected]

13b. If any of the above characteristics are visible during the recruitment
process, please explain at which stage they become visible and the rationale
for this.

(200 words)

Candidate name is visible from shortlisting stage and functions as the current
application identifier. Candidate grades are visible as part of shortlisting stage. We

51

Page 194



are planning to move to anonymised recruitment in due course as part of a systems
update. This will enable us to have blind recruitment and selection.

Candidates are asked to refer to the Job Description and Person Specification and
give details of all relevant work-related or professional memberships and
qualifications. If they do not have required qualification or professional membership,
candidates are asked to give details of the relevant equivalent experience held in
the supporting statement section of the application form.

Candidate address is visible from shortlisting.

14a. Do you flag students with certain socioeconomic background
characteristics in your recruitment process?

O Yes No
[If 14a = ‘Yes’]
14b. If yes, what information is flagged?
Tick all that apply.
Ol Parental occupation
] Applicant was eligible for free school meals
O Applicant attended state school
O Applicant attended non-selective state school
O Neither of the applicants’ parents/guardians attended university
Ol Applicant attended secondary education in an area of high deprivation or a social mobility
cold spot
O Applicant was on a social mobility programme
Other - please specify: Click or tap here to enter text.
[If 14a = ‘Yes’]

14c. What did you do to support applicants who were flagged? Select each
type of support that was used in at least one instance.

Tick all that apply.

O Second-look

O Coaching provided

52

Page 195



O Mentoring provided

] Buddying provided

O Other - please specify:

Click or tap here to enter text.

[If 14a = ‘Yes’]
14d. Please fill in the table below for the 2024 Index reporting period.

]
w K 5
- 3 © =]
g 9 E °
S c ° 4 ° )
<Y ] 2 ] S ]
o o t - 0 E E w = ]
[ ] - o 'S o " [] = o
- o) [l o 2 = Y Y= O T
(=] o)) [] [o) ] [] (9] b (] [o) ]
- © - o = -~ E = ~ c .=
g |, /8, £ &8 % & | E=
E S 8 EQ | 53 £ S 8 £ S 9
=] » C = - B > = o = - B
£ 88 | E=z 8z £ 29 | = 23
© € = c O €T © € o S [
+ Q P C c = + c
o S o S o 3 @ <) 3
- z& P8  z8 |8 zZz: | P z 8
Graduate n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Degree Click Click Click Click Click Click Click Click
apprentices (level | ortap or tap or tap or tap or tap or tap or tap or tap
6/7 or SCQF 9 and | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto
above) enter enter enter enter enter enter enter enter
text. text. text. text. text. text. text. text.
Apprentices (level | Click Click Click Click Click Click Click Click
5 or SCQF 8 and ortap |ortap |ortap |ortap |ortap |ortap |ortap | ortap
below) hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto
enter enter enter enter enter enter enter enter
text. text. text. text. text. text. text. text.
School leaver Click Click Click Click Click Click Click Click
or tap or tap or tap or tap or tap or tap or tap or tap
hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto
enter enter enter enter enter enter enter enter
text. text. text. text. text. text. text. text.
Experienced hires | Click Click Click Click Click Click Click Click
or tap or tap or tap or tap or tap or tap or tap or tap
hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto | hereto
enter enter enter enter enter enter enter enter
text. text. text. text. text. text. text. text.

Page 196

53



15a. Do you provide training and guidance to staff to make it clear that
candidates should be hired based on the skills and competences required for
the job, and not on other aspects that are irrelevant to job performance?

Yes O No

[If 15a = ‘Yes’]
15b. If yes, please explain what training is provided and copy and paste the
guidance given to hiring managers.

(300 words)

Face to face training is offered to any staff who recruit any new staff. This includes
the process to be undertaken, candidate experience, bias free recruitment and best
practice around organising interview panels and shortlisting. Staff must have
completed this training before they can undertake recruitment. There is also an
elLearning package for refresher training for recruitment for staff to undertake if
they have not recruited for a while.

16a. Does your organisation operate any system of taking a 'second- look' at
candidates from lower socioeconomic backgrounds if they are set to be
rejected after the initial sift?

O Yes No

[If 16a = ‘Yes']
16b. Please provide details of what you do and what difference it has made:

(150 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

17a. Where an applicant is required to travel to appear in person (e.g.
interview, assessment centre) do you...

O Account for travel time, starting later or finishing earlier to enable people to travel at
reasonable times if they are not based near the office

Provide accommodation for those who do not live locally

Pay for relevant travel costs

54

Page 197



] Provide financial reimbursement for loss of earnings or any additional costs

] No in person element

Other - please specify: Offer flexible scheduling to meet their needs

[If 17a ‘Pay for relevant travel costs’ = ‘Yes’]
17b. If you pay for travel costs, please indicate which of the following options

apply:

l Means tested, please specify the criteria:

Not means tested

O
| Paid upfront/booked for the student
O

Reimbursed following travel

18. In interviews, do you ensure that only standardised questions are asked
and that there is a standardised scoring system for these?

Yes O No

19a. Which of the following types of questions are asked during interview for
each entry level:

Please see here for an explanation of the types of interview questions.

Types of question | Apprenticeships | School Leaver Graduate Experienced
hires

Stren?th based O 0 0

questions

Competency. 0

based questions

Exper.lence B B u

questions

Technical questions | [ O ]

Motlv?tlon u

questions

55

Page 198


https://info.lse.ac.uk/current-students/careers/information-and-resources/interview-assessment-centre-psychometric/types-of-interview-questions#:~:text=Types%20of%20interview%20questions%201%20Competency%20questions%20The,6%20Situational%20judgement%20...%207%20Brain%20teasers%20

Othe_r, please B B O B
specify:

N/A- we do not

offer this entry a a O
route

19b. Please explain the rationale for the types of questions chosen and provide
a copy, where available, of the guidance given to hiring managers on selecting
interview questions:

(300 words)

To ensure consistency and fairness, interview questions will be phrased to avoid bias and
all candidates will be asked competency-based questions (i.e., questions related to the
criteria on the job and person specification). Probing follow up questions and/or questions
relating to the information provided by the individual on their application form may also be
asked as necessary. Care will be taken, however, to avoid questions being asked that could
be construed as being discriminatory (e.g., questions about personal circumstances that are
unrelated to the job).

Where it is proposed to use tests or assessment centres within the selection process, the
manager should consult with People & HR regarding the assessment process. Tests should
be relevant to the post, fair to all candidates and based on the essential criteria. They
should be applied equally to all candidates with reasonable adjustments being made for
candidates with disabilities. All individual results should be recorded in the recruitment
papers and collective results should be retained centrally.

20a. Does your organisation ask applicants for feedback on the recruitment

process?
L] Yes, successful applicants
L] Yes, unsuccessful applicants
No

[If 20a = ‘Yes’]
20b. Do you analyse the feedback by socioeconomic background?

] Yes, successful applicants

(| Yes, unsuccessful applicants

56

Page 199



[If 20c = ‘Yes’]
20c. What are your findings? Please provide details for data from both
successful and unsuccessful applicants, where this is recorded.

(200 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

21. Does your organisation provide feedback to unsuccessful applicants? If yes,
at what stage feedback is provided and share broadly the level of detail of this
feedback.

(200 words)

Feedback is provided to unsuccessful candidates who have declared a disability and
indicated they would like to be considered under the guaranteed interview scheme.

Feedback is provided to unsuccessful candidates after interview. Structure of the
feedback is to refer to interview notes and give a summary of what the candidate
did well and what could have been improved.

22a. Does your organisation monitor its recruitment process to identify
whether there are stages of the recruitment process where there are unequal
rates of success by socioeconomic background?

] Yes No

[If 22a = ‘Yes']

22b. Please detail here which stages have been identified as barriers, and what
actions have been taken to rectify this, and what difference these changes
have made:

(300 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

57

Page 200



23a. Have you analysed whether those from lower socioeconomic backgrounds
who are either successful or unsuccessful in your recruitment process are
disproportionately a particular gender or ethnicity?

O Yes No

[If 23a = ‘Yes’]
23b. If yes, please give details of what you found and what actions you have
taken as a result of your findings:

(300 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

58

Page 201



Section 4:
Routes into the employer

Please indicate if your organisation will be submitting answers to Section 4: Routes
into the employer

Yes - we will be submitting answers to Section 4: Routes into the employer

U] No - we will not be submitting answers to Section 4: Routes into the employer

If no, please state the reason why you are not submitting answers to this section:
(150 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

1. Does your organisation offer internships? (N.B please see the employer

guidance for a definition of internships).

O Yes No

[If 1 Internships = ‘Yes’]
2. How many paid and unpaid internships were offered in the 2024 reporting

period?
Number of interns

Total number of interns n/a

appointed

Unpaid n/a

Paid expenses only n/a

Paid National Minimum Wage n/a

only

Paid Living Wage or higher n/a

59

Page 202



[If 1 Internships = ‘Yes’]
3. Please select the statements that best describe the selection process for
your internships:

All our internships are advertised externally with clear information about the timeframe,
pay and role description.

Our internships all have a rigorous, consistently applied selection process

Some of our internships have a rigorous selection process and some are offered
informally (such as to family and friends of employees or clients / stakeholders)

] All our internships are offered informally (such as to family and friends of employees or
clients / stakeholders)

[If 1 Internships = ‘Yes’]
4a. Are any of your internships ring-fenced for candidates from lower
socioeconomic backgrounds?

O Yes No - n/a

[If 4a = ‘Yes']

4b. Please provide details on ring-fenced internship(s) (e.g. name of
programme, whether it is run with a charity partner, whether it is publicly
advertised as ring-fenced for those from lower socioeconomic backgrounds,
how many places, the age group, length):

(200 words)
n/a
[If 4a = “Yes’]

4c. What criteria do you use?

(Please click all that apply)

O Candidates from a lower socioeconomic background (based on parental/guardian
occupation)

Candidates eligible for free school meals at any time during secondary education

Candidates’ parents/guardians did not attend university

Candidates live in a social mobility cold spot

60

Page 203



Candidates attended a non-selective state school

Candidates are care-experienced

Candidates were on one of our social Click or tap here to enter text.
mobility programmes, please state

which:
O Other - please specify: Click or tap here to enter text.
[If 4a = Yes’]

4d. Please tell us how many internship places you hosted overall, and how
many places were ring-fenced. If you hosted one intern and their place was not
ring-fenced please enter 1 and 0 below. If you hosted two interns, of which
one was a ring-fenced place, please enter 2 and 1 below.

(if your internships are ring-fenced based on a number of diversity characteristics,
please provide the number that met your socioeconomic eligibility criteria, rather
than the overall number of places available on the Programme).

The total overall number of internship places | n/a
offered by your organisation for its latest
intake

The total number of internships ring-fenced n/a
for candidates from lower socioeconomic
backgrounds in the latest intake

The total number of internship places ring- n/a
fenced for care-experienced candidates

[If 1 Internships = ‘Yes’]
5. Do you provide regular development feedback to your interns on their
performance?

O Yes No - n/a

If yes, please describe any processes you have in place to provide feedback to

interns.

Click or tap here to enter text.

61

Page 204



[If 1 Internships = ‘Yes’]
6. Are interns provided with a reference following their internship?

O Yes

No - n/a

[If 1 Internships = ‘Yes’]

7. Where collected, please provide below the data for your internships:

o
g 5
) © o 2
c + - .Z ©
o (1] o £ -
"] T o T
(] c E= 2 E
(] [%} [
— © 0 o =
s = o ! Ry
" g 7] c )
[7)] 1 o -
£ 3 £ o L < S
o 3 0 0 5 E © >
e ° Y= 3 © -
c ° 7T = S o ‘n
o] — = o c ()] E (1] -
o - T u © - ° v o
- o © bS] _.g (7] c n >
o - £ o T o o [ S 'E
& 9 e s S = o b < =
o 2 &2 3 0 = ® O 3
+ £ 0 o w 2 nw © w 2
o 5 c 3= c 3 c < c £
c c = - o = U = 9
[7] k4 Q [T [T =}
[} - = O C 2 U - +
5 g £% 9 £ £ 2 £ 2
@ P 283 L E L% L2
2024 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
reporting
period
intake
2023 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
reporting
period
intake
2022 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
reporting
period
intake
2021 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
reporting
period
intake
8a. Did you offer apprenticeships in the 2024 Index reporting period?
62

Page 205



[If 8a = “Yes’]

8b. Do you offer any of the following apprenticeships? If yes, please complete
the number of apprenticeships in each category for the 2024 Index reporting

period.

Apprenticeship type

Number of apprenticeships

Apprenticeships as part of a school leaver No
programme

Apprenticeships for new starters 50
Apprenticeships for current employees 133
N/A we do not provide apprenticeships Ol

[If 8= any answer except ‘N/A we do not provide apprenticeships’]
9. Please provide data on the number offered in each nation for the 2024

reporting period:

Nation Number of apprenticeships

England 300 (offered)

Northern Ireland Click or tap here to enter text.

Scotland Click or tap here to enter text.

Wales Click or tap here to enter text.

[If 8= any answer except ‘N/A we do not provide apprenticeships’]
10. Where known, please provide below the data for your apprenticeships:

63

Page 206



2024 Index Reporting Period

$
5 | 3 g 5
) =
] s = — ©
[ [ 9 =2
n o] (0] (7] <))
© ) é h
@ LS5 8 S £
Q O TS Y c c
Y] - o
= 3 £ ° © et
c 8328 ~« ° g2
o = 0 o o =
i u (] Y - T U
o 9 28 32 E c w0
) g ES 2 B2 8 g .2
© ° °o® S| =E B < 't
S 4 22 Tg © 32 5
5 g E 2<% 258 8 22
- 2 < o v £ 8| U L 3 ]
] = i o £ 20 ¥ £ 5 £ 5
] c c S c 5 c & S ®
g 3 = £ | 2883 g2 g% g3
5 z 3 2 | &gt 23| 2, | 2
© - 0 © =]
¥ 2 c ) oG 2 s 8 c = (g
2 2 8 2 | 288 £ =% | 85
Level 6/7 49 8% 92% Not Not Not Not
or SCQF 9 recorde | recorde | recorde | recorde
and above d d d d
(Degree
apprentice
ships)
Level 4/5 60 2% 98% Not Not Not Not
or SCQF recorde | recorde | recorde | recorde
7/8 d d d d
Level 3 or 54 57% 43% Not Not Not Not
SCQF 6 recorde | recorde | recorde | recorde
d d d d
Level 2 or 20 70% 30% Not Not Not Not
SCQF 5 recorde | recorde | recorde | recorde
d d d d
2023 Index Reporting Period
64

Page 207



- | = 3
6 ~ 8 T 5
- 8 < 9 e
0B [ [ S
nw 8 ] 0 o
c O ) é h
@ .25 & S £
g -1 c o
= 3 £ ° © et
c o 2 2 S g2
g s | w§E 3 : o s
g § g£¢ 25 3§ 23
© ) s w5 2¢F £ -
\la 3 t K] -% v o © ; =
5 g E 2<% 258 8 22
5 3 x o o E S| o= S 3 S G
0 € ] o £ 25 €18 2 8 B £
] c c S c 5 c & S ®
7] E} = 5 g 073 0 g 05 o
£ < 3 o s 9% o9 g @ 8%
o 2 o "% e oG5 o= S o o c
3 g S ] o C o s 8 c = (g
z [ X X 38 RE X B X5
Level 6/7 10 50% 50% Not Not Not Not
or SCQF 9 Recorde | Recorde | Recorde | Recorde
and above d d d d
(degree
apprentice
ships)
Level 4/5 Clickor | 15 67% 33% Not Not Not Not
or SCQF tap here Recorde | Recorde | Recorde | Recorde
7/8 to enter d d d d
text.
Level 3or | Clickor | 43 62% 38% Not Not Not Not
SCQF 6 tap here Recorde | Recorde | Recorde | Recorde
to enter d d d d
text.
Level 2 or | Clickor | 4 100% 0 Not Not Not Not
SCQF 5 tap here Recorde | Recorde | Recorde | Recorde
to enter d d d d
text.
2022 Index Reporting Period
65

Page 208



s
5. S g 5
) =
] s = — ©
U @m [ 9 =
n o] (0] (7] <))
] ) é h
" 25 8 5 2
Q O TS Y c c
0 o
= 3 £ ® ° ] =
c 8328 ~« ° 8 2
g 7] - = 0 ] 9 @
o @ © 9| 3| E T ¢ =
o g E¥ 2 5.3 ] o >
© ) o &8 &5l = E t St
s r4 2.2 g o 3 35
5 g E 2<% 258 8 22
5 3 x o o E S| o= S 3 S G
] € i} o £ 2o ¥2 2 0 £ 5
- c c c S c 5 c = S w
5 z £ g | g8F g3 gg | g
5 z 3 2 | g2 83| 85| 8¢
© - 0 © =]
8 o c ) [ s 3 - c 3
2 2 8 2 =98 S| 8% | &%
Level 6/7 Clickor |5 100% 0 Not Not Not Not
or SCQF 9 | tap here recorde | recorde | recorde | recorde
and above | to enter d d d d
(degree text.
apprentice
ships)
Level 4/5 Clickor | 3 33% 67% Not Not Not Not
or SCQF tap here recorde | recorde | recorde | recorde
7/8 to enter d d d d
text.
Level3or | Clickor | 27 96% 4% Not Not Not Not
SCQF 6 tap here | Click or recorde | recorde | recorde | recorde
to enter | tap here d d d d
text. to enter
text.
Level 2or | Clickor |8 100% 0 Click or | Click or | Click or | Click or
SCQF 5 tap here tap here | tap here | tap here | tap here
to enter to enter | to enter | toenter | to enter
text. text. text. text. text.

2021 Index Reporting Period

66

Page 209



0
c | = 2 g
6~ 8 g 5
T 8 = - [
[ [ 9 =2
n o] (7] (7] <))
S el ¢ < )
0 . = 0 2 =] 2
Q O TS Y c d=)
= 3w 3 © g
< 235 ¢« T 8 2
g ) ] ] [ ‘»
o @ " 9 3 E T ¢ =
o 9 E¥ S 5.3 9] o >
© 2 o ® S = E o] £ ¢
5 = €22 Tg © 3 5
= ) £ g5 98 0 g 2
- 2 = o v ES v L 3 L o
0 € S o E 2 o ¥ 1 B 9 B B
5 e E 2 553 5% 52 58
£ E 3 2 E3E 5% &% &%
o = o % a0 G5 o= o) o c
° ‘6’ < ¢ S R C & C 5
4 [ P-3 P-3 X8 a RE X h X3
Level 6/7 5 60% 40% Not Not Not Not
or SCQF 9 recorde | recorde | recorde | recorde
and above d d d d
(degree
apprentice
ships)
Level 4/5 3 0 100% Not Not Not Not
or SCQF Click or recorde | recorde | recorde | recorde
7/8 tap here d d d d
to enter
text.
Level 3or | Clickor | 42 95% 5% Not Not Not Not
SCQF 6 tap here record recorde | recorde | recorde
to enter Not d d d
text. recorde
ded
Level 2 or Clickor | 4 10% Not Not Not Not Not
SCQF 5 tap here recorde | recorde | recorde | recorde | recorde
to enter d d d d d
text.
11. Are all your apprentices paid the National Minimum Wage or
National Living Wage as appropriate?
Please only select an option if all apprentices are paid at that level.
O Paid National Minimum Wage (apprentice rate)
O Paid National Minimum Wage (standard rate)
67

Page 210



] Paid Living Wage (apprentice rate)

Paid Living Wage (standard rate) or higher (London living wage L2 London living wage
+2% level 3)

] Paid National Minimum Wage (apprentice rate)

12. Does your organisation offer a school leaver programme?

] Yes No
[If 12= ‘Yes’]
13. Where known, please provide below the data for your school leaver
programme:
3
c
§_ | %
[¢]
° B ) c -
. © O £ S g
9 8 ¢ o+
2 =0 5 © ®
0O © ¥ N © o+
- C ) Q 1)
) c 3 2 - ke o ¢
$ ez | & = 23
o 3
2 s 23 S E £ 8 $%
c - U ¢ 0 .2 ©c = w
K v w 8 @ w £ w g w €
bt r2) - 0 .= = 9 = 0 = @
o v o T [T 9 o Q
g r > 2 = > 8 > 9 > T
= [ T £ G c - c © © ;
o < 9 6 3 3 3 A 8 35
o 5 2 6 =2 o o ¢ > = =
< c o9 g S o .2 olm
g 3 €88 2 £t | 5§
12 [ X Qa R E X3 a5
2024 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
reporting
period
intake
2023 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
reporting
period
intake
2022 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
reporting
period
intake

Page 211

68



2021
reporting
period
intake

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a n/a

[If 12= ‘Yes']

14. For your school leavers, do you know/ publish any of the following

Known Published We do not
request
Yes | No | Yes |No | thisinthe
recruitment
process
The average A- O O O What are the average A-
Level/Highers / Level/Highers/ BTEC grades or
BTEC grades or equivalent?
equivalent of (200 words)
successful hires
Click or tap here to enter text.
The average O O O What are the average
GCSE/National 5 GCSE/National 5 grades or
grades or equivalent?
equivalent of (200 words)
successful hires
Click or tap here to enter text.

[If 12= ‘Yes']

15. Are all your school leavers paid the National Minimum Wage, or National
Living Wage as appropriate or higher? Please only select an option if all school
leavers are paid at that level.

O Paid National Minimum Wage only

O Paid Living Wage or higher

N/A- we do not offer school leaver programmes

69

Page 212



16. Does your organisation offer a graduate scheme?

O Yes No
[If 16= ‘Yes’]
17. Where known, please provide below the data for your graduate
programme:
()]
5_ | <
T8 8 % i<
0w 3 S K 3
0o 9 o S
2 S 0 L Y
" 2 ] s 2
0 52 B = c c
5 3% 5 o £ 2
_g O = © = T g ‘n
- D v o £ (7] b
o c X O - T 2 9
o o £ 8 ¢ 5 E s 8 2
o 3 c a8 = 5 £ £ 5
9] 2 Eu?P o © 3 35
£ 7] w £ 6 [ [7, - n <
S 2 s 3 gz g3 g8
8 £ T el c 2 s 2 T
c 3 5 073 3 o 35 =
c - VB T = T a T &
] - c 9 ¢ c u © c O
& © o 9 7] o T'U I 3 - C
3 2 95 & o8 o= o 5
« - X8 2 R E 3 XD
2024 Will Will Will Will Will Will
reporting commence | commence | commence | commence | commence | commence
period in in in in in in
intake September | September | September | September | September | September
2024 2024 2024 2024 2024 2024
2023 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
reporting
period
intake
2022 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
reporting
period
intake
2021 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
reporting
period
intake

Page 213

70



[If 16= ‘Yes’]

18a. Does your organisation accept degrees from any UK university for its

graduate scheme?

Yes O No

[If 18a = ‘Yes’]

18b. How many different UK universities were represented in the
following graduate intakes?

For example, 25 UK universities. Please insert numbers only

Number of graduates hired

Number of universities
represented

2024 Index reporting period

Will commence in September
2024, Data should be
available after onboarding

Will commence in September
2024, Data should be
available after onboarding

2023 Index reporting period n/a n/a
2022 Index reporting period n/a n/a
2021 Index reporting period n/a n/a

[If 16= ‘Yes’]
19a. Do you know/publish any of the following?
Known Published We do not request
this in the
Yes No Yes No recruitment process
The most O O O
common
universities
attended by
successful hires
The most a O O O
common UK
degree

71

Page 214



disciplines of
successful hires

The most
common degree
classifications

The average A- [

Level/Highers /
BTEC grades or
equivalent of

successful hires

The average O

GCSE/National 5
grades or
equivalent of
successful hires

[If 19a ‘The most common universities attended by successful hires’ = ‘Known’]

19b. What are the top five most common universities attended by successful

hires and the % of successful hires who attended these universities?

Position | University name % of successful hires who
attended this university

1 n/a n/a

2 n/a n/a

3 n/a n/a

4 n/a n/a

5 n/a n/a

Page 215

72



[If 19a ‘The most common UK degree disciplines of successful hires’ = ‘Known’]

19c. What are the top five most common degree disciplines of successful hires

and the % of successful hires who studied these disciplines?

Position | Degree discipline % of successful hires who
studied this discipline

1 n/a n/a

2 n/a n/a

3 n/a n/a

4 n/a n/a

5 n/a n/a

[If 19a ‘The most common degree classifications’ = ‘Known’]

19d. What are the % of successful hires who achieved these each of the below

degree classifications?

Degree % of successful hires achieving this classification
classification
First n/a
2:1 n/a
2:2 n/a
Third or below n/a
[If 16= ‘Yes’]

20. Please supply a breakdown of applications and acceptances for your UK

graduate entry intake in the reporting periods below for which you have data.

For the avoidance of doubt, this should only include UK universities.

Please insert numbers only

Russell group universities*

All other UK universities

73

Page 216



Data not Number of | Number Data not Number of | Number
collected Applicants | accepted collected Applicants | accepted
2024 Graduate Graduate Graduate Graduate Graduate Graduate
Index schemeto | schemeto | schemeto | schemeto | schemeto | scheme to
reporting | commence | commence | commence | commence | commence | commence
period in in in in in in
September | September | September | September | September | September
2024.Data | 2024. Data | 2024. Data | 2024. Data | 2024. Data | 2024. Data
should be should be should be should be should be should be
available available available available available available
after after after after after after
onboarding | onboarding | onboarding | onboarding | onboarding | onboarding
2023 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Index
reporting
period
2022 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Index
reporting
period
2021 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a
Index
reporting
period

*Please see the list of Russell group universities here

Page 217

74


https://russellgroup.ac.uk/about/our-universities

Section 5:
Data collection

Please indicate if your organisation will be submitting answers to Section 5: Data

collection
Yes - we will be submitting answers to Section 5: Data collection
U] No - we will not be submitting answers to Section 5: Data collection

If no, please state the reason why you are not submitting answers to this section:
(150 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

1. Does the data you are submitting for Section 5 relate to the whole of
your UK workforce?

Please only submit data relating to employees (not contractors).

Yes O No O Don’t know

[If 1a = ‘No’]
1b. Please explain which departments, functions, locations or level(s) of
seniority the data relates to.

(200 words)
All departments that full under City Corporation . This includes:

e Corporate Departments(Chamberlain's, Communications and External
Affairs, People and HR, City Surveyor’s, Corporate Strategy & Performance,
Comptroller and City Solicitors, Town Clerk’s Department, )

e Institutions — Barbican Centre, City Bridge Foundation, City Junior School,
City of London Police (Civilians), City of London School for Girls, Freemen’s
School Guildhall School For Music and Drama. These departments are based
at their respected locations

e Services — Community and Children's Services, Environment, Innovation and
Growth

75

Page 218



City Corporation is based across many sites including the Guildhall, Open Spaces
(Various including Epping Forest), Mansion House, the Old Baily and Heathrow.

The data will be based on all levels of seniority at City Corporation

2a. Does your organisation administer an annual or regular diversity survey?

Yes ] No

[If 2a = ‘Yes']
2b. Is response to the survey compulsory (always with an option for “prefer
not to say” and “l do not know”)?

] Yes No

3a. Please indicate below which of the following data points your organisation
is collecting for unsuccessful applicants, new hires and current employees:

Please note, it is not generally expected that organisations will collect data in all of
these categories.

Unsuccessful New hires Current We do not
applicants employees collect this data

Type of school

O O
attended

Type of school
attended with
'state school'
broken down into
selective and non-
selective

Occupation of
parent/guardian

Eligibility for free
school
meals/pupil
premium

76

Page 219



Whether or not
their
parents/guardians
attended
university

If 3a = "We do not collect this data’ for all options]
3b. If you are not currently collecting information for any of these groups, do
you have plans in place to do so? Please include timescales.

(150 words)

We have started collecting socio-economic data for current employees but we are
not collecting the socio-economic data for applicants. We are in the process of
reviewing the selection criteria and questions for the collection of all diversity data,

including Socio Economic data for applicants and current employees.

4a. Where data is collected, please provide the percentage completion rate for
each question for the reporting periods below.

Your completion rates should include people who have answered ‘prefer not to say’.
Please only provide data for employees, and do not include data for contractors.

2024 Index reporting period

Please insert number (e.g. 78% = 78)

% completion

% completion new

% completion current

unsuccessful hires employees
applicants
Type of school N/A 21% 16.5%
attended
Type of school N/A Of the 21% completed | Of the
attended with 16.5%
'state school' Selective 7.88% completed
broken down into Non-selective —
selective and non- 64.85% Selective
selective (by -11.57%

attainment)

77

Page 220



Non-

Selective-
62.3%
Parental/guardian | N/A 20.3% 16%
occupation
Eligibility for free N/A 20.87% 16.48%
school meals/pupil
premium
Whether or not N/A 20.75 16.5%
their

parents/guardians
went to university

2023 Index reporting period
Please insert number (e.g. 78% = 78)

% completion

% completion

% completion

unsuccessful new hires current
applicants employees
Type of school attended N/A 24.42% 14.89%
14Type of school Click ortap | N/A Out of the Out of the
attended with here to 24.42% 14.89%
'state school' enter text. completed completed
broken down into
selective and non- Selective Selective -
selective (by 10.99% 13.11%
attainment)
Non-Selective Non Selective
68.06% 67.73%
Parental/guardian occupation N/A 23.66% 14.44%
Eligibility for free Click ortap | N/A 23.79% 14.79%
school meals/pupil | here to
premium enter text.

Page 221

78



Whether or not
their
parents/guardians
went to university

Click ortap | N/A
here to

enter text.

24.17%

14.84%

2022 Index reporting period
Please insert number (e.g. 78% = 78)

% completion % completion new % completion
unsuccessful hires current employees
applicants

Type of school N/A 12.7% 11.33%

attended

Type of school N/A Of the 12.7% Of the 11.33%

attended with 'state Completed completed

school' broken down

into selective and Selective 11.29% Selective 13.90%

non- selective (by

attainment) Non-Selective 70.97% | Non-Selective 68.56%

Parental/guardian N/A 12.5% 10.96%

occupation

Eligibility for free N/A 13.32% 11.33%

school meals/pupil

premium

Whether or not their | N/A 12.91% 11.27%

parents/guardians

went to university

2021 Index reporting period

Please insert number (e.g. 78% = 78)

79

Page 222



% completion % completion new % completion
unsuccessful hires current employees
applicants

Type of school N/A 7.84% 9.12%

attended

Type of school N/A Of the 7.84% Of the 9.12%

attended with 'state Completed Completed

school' broken down

into selective and Selective 8% Selective 14.59%

non- selective (by

attainment) Non Selective 72% Non Selective 67.90%

Parental/guardian N/A 7.84% 8.76%

occupation

Eligibility for free N/A 8.15% 9.05%

school meals/pupil

premium

Whether or not their | N/A 8.15% 9%

parents/guardians

went to university

5. What proportion of employees answered ‘prefer not to say’ or ‘l don’t
know’ in the 2024 Index reporting year?

2024 Index reporting period
Please insert number (e.g. 78% = 78)

% of new hires
who responded

% of current
employees who

% of current
employees who

% of new hires
who responded

‘prefer not to responded responded ‘I ‘l don’t know”
say’ ‘prefer not to don’t know’
say’
Type of school 1.5% 0.91% N/A N/A
attended
Type of school 1.5% 0.91% N/A N/A
attended with

Page 223

80



'state school'
broken down into
selective and non-
selective

Parental/guardian | 1.53% 1.53% N/A N/A
occupation

Eligibility for free | 0.61% 0.74% N/A N/A
school
meals/pupil
premium

Whether or not 0.31% 0.95% N/A N/A
their

parents/guardians
went to university

6. Please fill in details below, up to and including your UK Board/Management

Committee.

Key

UK Board/Management Sit on the leadership team and or report to the CEO

Committee:

Senior: Those in the most senior roles by grade / band or reporting directly to
this group and/ or leading large teams. May also include high level
specialist roles.

Middle: With developing professional experience, working under some
supervision or autonomously on smaller projects.

Junior: Undertaking closely supervised work, with little or no supervisory
responsibility, including entry level roles.

81

Page 224



) c
o 3 2 .2
3 c ) t ®
o < T .C ﬁ 9 a
(9] = c T (7] g — c
9 S §3¢8 3 - 8 gz
Q ; - 3 © c < o c
P _g 3 20 4 g o £ 29
g ° 223 ; : 53 | bz
= - © Y=
L > o £ 3 o o o E v 8
—_ o v 9 [ 9 ™ <
[} Q O .= ° ° - o >
> £ o EEG® c £ — o 0 =
K - > ‘; ° Q c Q o O V- = = £
] £ eceo t £ 2 L g $E2
- 6 € g 635 ® c 5 3 3 - E
T o £ O » 895 © - 2 0 ) -
oD T 5 0 2 o [ =2 Y T 9 9
] 3 © < Q2 n 3 < S & 2 © S <>
5 - o * + ‘0 ©® O + ¥ 5 v 9 L=
nw 3 T3 X258 -3 X h X E eSS
UK 10 (data is 10% 70% 60% 11% 60%
Board/Man | incomplete
agement at present)
Committee
Senior 40(data is 20% 75% 63% 20% 56%
incomplete
at present)
Middle 319(datais | 13% 73% 61% 13% 38%
incomplete
at present)
Junior 352(datais | 17% 85% 74% 18% 28%
incomplete
at present)

7a. Does your organisation collect data on the socioeconomic

background of any non-executive directors?

O Yes

O No

N/A we do not have any non-executive directors
[If 7a = ‘Yes’]

7b. Please provide the below data in relation to your non-executive directors,

where known.

Criteria

Percentage

Page 225

82



% that are from a lower socioeconomic Click or tap here to enter text.
background (based on parental/guardian
occupation)

% that attended a state school Click or tap here to enter text.

% that attended a non-selective state school Click or tap here to enter text.

% eligible for free school meals/pupil premium | Click or tap here to enter text.

% that were the first generation in their family
to attend university

8. Does your workforce data show any differences in different parts of the
organisation or job roles by socioeconomic background? Where this is the case,
what action have you taken in response to this?

There is currently insufficient data on socioeconomic background to identify
differences in job roles by socioeconomic background. However, we are aware that
there are pockets of areas more widely in our society where differences in job roles
exist and we will be working across the organisation to consider prioritised activity
on the basis of contextual organisational need as we continue to improve our data
collection.

9. Do you review data on the socioeconomic profile of your workforce against
national benchmarks, and against peer organisations where possible - e.g.
through a sector consortium focused on socioeconomic background?

O Yes No

10a. Is data on the socioeconomic profile of your workforce published

externally?
] Yes (please provide a link): | Click or tap here to enter text.
No

83

Page 226



[If 10a = ‘Yes’]
10b. Please indicate below which data points are published:

O

% that are from a lower socioeconomic background (based on parental/guardian
occupation)

% that attended a state school

% that attended a non-selective state school

% eligible for free school meals/pupil premium

Oojo|o|o

% that were the first generation in their family to attend university

11. Is your socioeconomic background data presented to your UK

Board/Management Committee?

Yes O No

Page 227

84



Section 6:
Pay, progression and retention

Please indicate if your organisation will be submitting answers to Section 6: Pay,
progression and retention.

Yes - we will be submitting answers to Section 6:
Pay, progression and retention

U] No - we will not be submitting answers to Section
6: Pay, progression and retention

If no, please state the reason why you are not submitting answers to this section:
(150 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

1a. Do you measure your Class Pay Gap?

Ol Yes, and we follow the best practice guidance published in October 2023 (link)
Ol Yes, but we take a different approach compared with the one outlined above
O No
No, but we intend to in the next year

[If 1a = “Yes’]

1b. If yes, do you publish your findings?

Ol Yes (please provide a link): | Click or tap here to enter text.
No
[If 1a = ‘Yes’]

1c. Do you have targets for closing your Class Pay Gap?

] Yes (please provide a link): | Click or tap here to enter text.

O No

85

Page 228


https://tsmf.sharepoint.com/sites/SMF-External/Shared%20Documents/Forms/AllItems.aspx?id=%2Fsites%2FSMF%2DExternal%2FShared%20Documents%2FAdvocacy%20%26%20Campaigns%2FLevelling%20The%20Playing%20Field%20%2D%20A%20practical%20guide%20for%20calculating%20your%20socioeconomic%20pay%20gap%2Epdf&parent=%2Fsites%2FSMF%2DExternal%2FShared%20Documents%2FAdvocacy%20%26%20Campaigns&p=true&ga=1

[If 1c = “Yes’]
1d. Are these targets published externally?

Yes

No

U] We have internal targets and public Click or tap here to enter text.

targets. Please specify (150 words):

2a. Does your organisation routinely offer variable pay depending on individual
or collective performance?

O Yes No

[If 2a = “Yes’]
2b. Please explain which roles have variable pay depending on individual or
collective performance and the rationale for this.

(200 words)

Although variable individual and collective performance pay is not currently
routinely offered across the organisation (with a small number exceptions), a
priority programme of work underway as part of our first ever People Strategy
2024-2029. This is entitled Ambition 25, and involves a review of our entire system
of job descriptions to implement a manageable number of succinct and outcome
focused role profiles that objectively defines each role’s purpose, responsibilities,
accountabilities, knowledge, skills, and experience within a job family structure. We
will create a new pay structure and job evaluation system that evaluates and
grades roles in a way that simplifies regrading and promotion processes to
acknowledge job growth, performance, and exceptional contribution in a more
equitable and objective way. We will develop a total reward approach to pay,
recognising contribution and offering flexibility and choice through a benefits portal
that includes a range of recognition mechanisms. This is a significant programme of
work that has begun this year, and that crosses submission year boundaries. The
programme will create a flexible, sustainable, equitable, and transparent reward
and recognitions system for our people, creating action plans to address pay gaps,
and developing mechanisms to identify and address any other pay inconsistencies.

3. Does your organisation have proactive succession planning procedures
in place?

Yes O No

86

Page 229



4a. Does your organisation analyse the below data by socioeconomic

background?
Yes | No | Is this data If provided, please | This is not
published? provide a link to applicable in
the data: our
organisation
Retention O O Click or tap hereto | O
enter text.
Progression O O Click or tap hereto | O
enter text.
Appraisal grades a a Click or tap hereto | O
(Performance) enter text.
Professional O O Click or tap hereto | O
exams/qualifications enter text.
Take up of training O (O Click or tap hereto | O
enter text.
Preparing teams to pitch | [ O Click or tap hereto | O
for work with prospective enter text.
clients
Work allocation O O Click or tap hereto | O
enter text.
Bonus allocation O O Click or tap hereto | O
enter text.
Take up of flexible ] ] Click or tap hereto | O
working options enter text.
Take up of hybrid O O Click or tap hereto | O
working enter text.
Perception of workplace O O Click or tap hereto | O

culture

enter text.

Page 230

87



Employee job satisfaction O O Click or tap hereto | O
enter text.

Promotion expectations O O Click or tap hereto | O
enter text.

Take up of mentoring O O Click or tap hereto | O
enter text.

[If 4a = “Yes’ for ‘Retention’]

4b. Please outline what your data on retention by socioeconomic background
shows and what actions you have taken to address the findings and the
difference any changes made if any:

(250 words)

Whilst we collect and currently analyse this data, we are taking the necessary steps
to continue to increase our declaration rates to enable better and more reliable
analysis: current disclosure rates are not sufficient for making reliable targeted
interventions at this stage, should this be relevant or needed.

[If 4a = “Yes’ for ‘Take up of Hybrid working’]

4c. Please outline what your data on take up of hybrid working by
socioeconomic background shows and what actions you have taken to address
the findings and the difference any changes made if any:

(250 words)

n/a

[If 4a = “Yes’ for ‘Bonus allocation’]

4d. Please outline what your data on bonus allocation by socioeconomic
background shows and what actions you have taken to address the findings
and the difference any changes made if any:

(250 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

88

Page 231



[If 4a = “Yes’ for any option]

4e. Have you analysed whether those from lower socioeconomic backgrounds
who may experience unequal outcomes are also disproportionately from a
background with a protected characteristic e.g. gender or ethnicity?

O Yes No
[If 4e = “Yes’]
4f. Please tell us what you have found:
(300 words)

We currently have insufficient socioeconomic data available to analyse
intersectional elements of other EDI protected characteristics. We will be able to
analyse this data once we have sufficient reporting of socioeconomic background
within the organisation. Initiatives are in place and underway to turn this around
over the course of this year.

5a. Have you (or a third party) analysed your workforce data to understand
whether there are unequal progression rates in your organisation by
socioeconomic background?

O Yes No
[If 5a = ‘Yes’]
5b. Briefly outline your methodology and your findings
(300 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

[If 5a = “Yes’]
5c. What actions have you taken in response to these findings

(200 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

89

Page 232



6a. Have you examined the role of internal sponsors within your organisation
(i.e. senior staff who support the career progression of more junior staff) to
see whether junior staff from lower socioeconomic backgrounds receive a
comparable level of sponsorship or work allocation to those from more
advantaged backgrounds?

O Yes No

[If 6a = “Yes’]
6b. If yes, please give details of what you have found, whether any changes
were made, and what differences you have seen as a result:

(300 words)

Although the response to 6a.in Section 6 (internal sponsoring) is no, City of London
Corporation has embarked on a pilot scheme that incorporates both mentoring and
reverse mentoring which will be rolled out more widely across the entire
organisation in 2024/25 and which includes our most senior leaders working with
more junior staff to support career progression, confidence, and network building.
As yet, it is too soon to measure the difference these schemes will make.
Additionally, although the role of sponsors at an individual staff level is not in
formally in place at City Corporation, each staff network within the organisation
benefits from two senior leaders as sponsors who actively guide and support the
members of the network. These arrangements are well established, and they have
made a demonstrable difference in encouraging the voices of the staff EDI networks
to expand their memberships, to be heard, and to positively influence culture and
system change. Finally, all staff network Chairs benefit from a specified work
allocation of their time that enables them to spend dedicated time supporting the
career progression of all staff, including those in the social mobility network (detail
in section 8), to progress their careers.

7a. Does your organisation specifically target any of the following activities at
those from lower socioeconomic groups:

Please provide detail of each one clicked.

We are looking here for activities specifically targeted at those from lower
socioeconomic groups, as opposed to activities targeted at women or non-white
employees.

20

Page 233



Yes No Please provide detail

Buddying/mentoring/sponsorship O Mentor Connect

scheme

Support with passing the required O Functional Skills
qualifications

Workshops/Masterclasses/Training | [ ] Click or tap here to enter text.

(e.g. on work skills)

A network of employees from O Social Mobility Network
similar backgrounds

Mentoring/leadership programmes O Pilot mentoring scheme underway;
to encourage progression leadership programme to support
management development

Flexible working arrangements, ] Flexible Working

like part-time positions or job

shares

Reverse mentoring O Reverse Mentoring (for young
employees)

[If 7a = “Yes’ to any option]
7b. Please describe the impact of these schemes, with particular reference to
their impact on progression and retention.

(200 words)

We are founding member of the Mentor Connect initiative, in collaboration with
various London Councils in the Heads of OD Network. Mentor Connect is a unique
opportunity to connect, learn, and grow with participants from different London
councils.

This scheme provides an opportunity for staff to accelerate their professional
growth and achieve their career goals. Through mentoring by senior professionals,
staff may realise career aspirations, address development needs and progress
within the workforce — helping us retain talent.

91

Page 234



We champion flexible working and have a policy that is designed to promote a
positive approach to working arrangements that supports employees from different
socio-economic backgrounds may need working patterns based upon personal
responsibilities.

Launching in June 2024, the Social Mobility staff network aims to empower and
advocate for individuals from low socio-economic backgrounds, raising awareness
about the importance of socio-economic diversity and providing opportunities for
training and support.

The Young Employees Network recently launched a five-month reverse mentoring
programme, allowing senior leaders to learn from early careers starters, and
enabling young employees to share ideas and perspectives. The scheme contributes
to the inclusivity and diversity of the organisation, and supports progression and
retention through learning

8. Are the criteria your organisation use to determine pay, pay levels and
opportunities for progression accessible and available to your employees? If
yes, please explain how.

Determining pay, pay levels, and providing accessible progression opportunities is
linked directly to the Ambition 25 programme of work (see question 2b). This work
includes the development of career path maps based on job families, including
access to apprenticeships for existing employees, secondments, and shadowing
opportunities to inform progression and promotions. Additional related work
includes the introduction of an annual manual process (ultimately automated with
the new Enterprise Resource Planning system connecting finance and people data)
to undertake a workforce planning exercise that enables us to understand our
current and future progression and succession planning needs, including identifying
and addressing skills gaps, understanding critical roles, and improving recruitment
and progression processes and timelines. As a unique and complex organisation
that incorporates work across public, private, and third sector elements, City
Corporation offers unique and unparalleled opportunities for our employees to
access career and progression opportunities across a wide array of professions and
organisation types. The work underway that will be underpinned by Ambition 25
will improve clarity and transparency that enables our people to develop in their
current roles and to access and progress into future roles anywhere across City
Corporation.

92

Page 235



9. Do you have processes in place to ensure that work allocation and
distribution is based as objectively as possible on skills and competence? If
yes, please explain these processes — and how they achieve outcomes that
guard against disadvantaging those from lower socioeconomic backgrounds.
(200 words)

Here we are particularly interested in processes you have to ensure that employees
from lower socioeconomic backgrounds have equal access to profile-raising internal
projects and work with prestigious clients/accounts.

Our Ambition 25 project is currently reviewing the roles and responsibilities that are
included across over 2500 job descriptions within the organisation. This will result
in a replacement of these with a smaller number of approximately 500 role profiles
that will enable increased visibility to our leaders and staff across the organisation
of what is included within these role profiles. The project will make it easier to
identify skills and competencies that would be necessary for any employee to
develop their career and progress through the organisation. Coupling this project
with improving data availability over time on socioeconomic backgrounds will
enable us to identify any processes that exist that may disadvantage those from
lower socioeconomic backgrounds and will provide us with the opportunity to pay
particular attention to ensuring opportunities and work allocations are equitable for
all.

10a. Does your organisation have strategies in place for improving retention
and/or progression for those from under-represented socioeconomic
backgrounds?

Yes O No

[If 10a = ‘Yes']
10b. Please provide a copy of the documentation where this is stated and
indicate page numbers of relevant pages:

Relevant pages: (e.g. p.7 — 11)*

Document Title Page Number(S)
Reference 1 Social Mobility Strategy 2018- 2-13

2028
Reference 2 People Strategy 26-47
Reference 3 Equality Objectives n/a - website

93

Page 236


https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/assets/Business/social-mobility-strategy-2018-28.pdf
https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/assets/Business/social-mobility-strategy-2018-28.pdf
https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/assets/about-us/plans-and-policies/people-strategy-2024-29.pdf

11a. Upon completion of a school leaver programme/apprenticeship, can these
employees progress at the same rate as a graduate hire?

Yes

O No

] N/A we do not offer these entry routes
[If 11a = ‘Yes’]

11b. If yes, please provide data to demonstrate the progression rates of school
leavers and/or apprentices in comparison to graduates.

(300 words)

Upon completion of their apprenticeship, apprentices are provided with avenues for
advancement, including progression to a higher level of apprenticeship or application for a
permanent role within the organisation. While the average apprentice achiever typically
secures a salary one grade below that of a graduate, they have the opportunity to continue
their professional and personal development through the next level of apprenticeship,
thereby advancing along a structured development pathway. Notably, 80% of apprenticeship
achievers successfully secured roles, with a pay grade commensurate with their qualifications
and experience. This achievement underscores the effectiveness of our apprenticeship
programs in facilitating career progression and supporting the transition of apprentices into
permanent roles within the organisation

(Please provide evidence for any or all routes where this applies)

12a. If someone on an apprenticeship, graduate scheme, or school leaver
scheme does not pass any sponsored exams, do they have to pay for retakes?

O Yes
No
O N/A we do not offer these entry routes

94

Page 237



[If 12a = ‘Yes’]
12b. At what point do they need to pay?

U] At first retake

U] After first retake

U] Other - please state (required): Click or tap here to enter text.
[If 12a = ‘Yes’]

12c. Is it made clear in recruitment materials that employees are required to
pay for retakes of sponsored exams?

O Yes, please provide a link to where Click or tap here to enter text.
this information is provided:

O No

13a. Do you monitor drop out rates by socioeconomic background for your
apprenticeships, graduate schemes, or school leaver schemes?

Yes No
Apprenticeship O
Graduate O

School leavers

[If 13a = yes to any]
13b. If yes, what did you find, what action did you take on the findings and
what difference did these actions make?

(200 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

95

Page 238



14a. Does your organisation implement exit fees for graduates, apprentices,
and school leavers who do not complete their scheme or role with you?

Employers operating such schemes require graduates to sign contracts that
stipulate that those who depart during the set period have to reimburse training

costs.
Yes No
Apprenticeship O
Graduate O
School leavers O

[If 14a = Any ‘Yes’]
14b. Is this practice clearly included in your job role adverts?

O Yes O No

[If 14a = Any ‘Yes']
14c. Why do you implement this practice?

O To recoup the costs of training
O To deter graduates from leaving
O Other - please state (required): Click or tap here to enter text.

15a. Do you offer retention bonuses to employees?

O Yes No

[If 15a = ‘Yes’]
15b. Have you explored the proportion of employees receiving retention
bonuses who are from a lower socioeconomic background?

] Yes, please provide the % of employee in receipt of a retention bonus who are from a
lower socioeconomic background.

No

Page 239

96



16a. Do you conduct exit interviews with employees when they leave your
organisation?

Yes- we conduct exit interviews internally

] Yes- we commission a third party to undertake confidential interviews

O No
[If 16a = ‘Yes']
16b. Do you analyse the findings from your exit interviews by socioeconomic
background?

Yes O] No
If 16a = ‘Yes’]
16¢c. Please explain your findings and the changes you have made as a result.
(400 words)

We have recently started to collect this information as part of our exit interview
process. We anticipate meaningful trend data and findings to develop over time,
and intend to monitor and analyse these more fully as soon as this becomes
possible.

97

Page 240



Section 7:
Culture and internal advocacy

Please indicate if your organisation will be submitting answers to Section 7: Culture
and internal advocacy

Yes - we will be submitting answers to Section 7: Culture and internal advocacy

U] No - we will not be submitting answers to Section 7: Culture and internal advocacy

If no, please state the reason why you are not submitting answers to this section:
(150 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

1a. What steps have you taken to explore whether employees from lower
socioeconomic backgrounds feel that the culture of your workplace is
welcoming to them?

We have conducted a survey specifically relating to socioeconomic background.
We have conducted a general diversity survey and analysed the results by socioeconomic
background.

Other, please specify:

O We have not yet taken steps to explore whether employees from lower socioeconomic
backgrounds feel that our culture is welcoming.

City of London Corporation runs or hosts a large number of events, and this can be
a huge change for us as they often require a high level of formality.

We have a cross-corporate EDI and Events working group that has two priorities as
follows:

- Accessibility in event design to reflect the requirements of a diverse
audience, giving consideration to, for example, dress code, timings, event

content and catering.

- Event guidance to support guests attending a City event for the first-time
outlining protocol, dress codes, event formats, and table settings.

98

Page 241



1b. If you conducted a survey, please provide a list of the questions that were

asked in relation to socioeconomic background, or that were analysed by

socioeconomic background.

The all-staff survey has taken place over April-May 2024 and the results will be

analysed and action plans created in June-July 2024. This is the first time we have

included questions on social mobility.

What was the occupation of the main earner in your
household when you were aged about 14?

[ Clerical or intermediate occupation
U In full-time education

[ Unemployed

[ Professional occupation

I Retired

[ Routine, semi-routine manual or
service occupation

[ Senior, middle or junior manager or
administrator

[ Small business owner

[ Technical or craft occupation

[ This question does not apply to me
1 don’t know

O prefer not to say

Which type of school did you attend for the most
time between ages of 11 and 16?

1 A state-run or state-funded school

O Independent or fee-paying school

[ Independent or fee-paying school,
where | received a bursary covering 90%
or more of my tuition

[ Not applicable

[ 1don’t know

O Prefer not to say

If you finished school after 1980 in the UK, were you
eligible for free school meals at any point during your
school years?

L] Yes

I No

LI Not applicable (finished school before
1980 or went to school overseas)

1 don’t know

[ Prefer not to say

929

Page 242




1c. Please give details of your findings and the actions you have taken as a
result of these.

(300 words) Please tell us how this was done, what was found, and what
difference it made. Click or tap here to enter text.

City Corporation have included socio-economic background questions along with
questions on all protected characteristics for the first time in our April-May 2024
all-staff survey (hosted by an external supplier partner). Results of the staff survey
will be analysed once the survey closes on 17 May 2024. While the survey provides
assurances of anonymity for all who complete it, including these questions will
provide a set of helpful anonymised baseline data to have positive and proactive
conversations about why the questions were included and the value and
importance of sharing socio-economic data to inform action planning to increase
socio-economic diversity across the organisation.

Socio-economic background questions are new to many staff. A continuing
communications campaign in conjunction with other programmes of work within our
new People Strategy to develop a positive culture will be required over the course
of the months and years to come to build the trust necessary for individuals to want
to share this information with the organisation. We are at the start of this part of
our journey.

2a. Does your organisation offer diversity awareness training with a particular
focus on social mobility?

We're looking here for training specifically focused on diversity of socioeconomic
background, as above.

] Yes No

[If 2a = “Yes’]
2b. If yes, do you offer distinct training on social mobility specifically?

Ol Separate modules or sessions focused on social mobility
L] Covered as part of a broader diversity & inclusion session, for example unconscious bias
training

100

Page 243



3a. Does your organisation offer diversity training specifically to managers and
leaders focused on diversity of socioeconomic background?

O Yes No

[If 3a = ‘Yes']
3b. What is covered in the training? Does the additional training cover typical
signals of socioeconomic status such as accent?

(300 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

[If 3a = ‘Yes']
3c. What percentage of managers/leaders have participated in this training?

Click or tap here to enter text.

4. Do departmental/section/team managers routinely receive reports on the
socioeconomic diversity of the team(s) for which they are responsible?

] Yes No

5a. Do you have a member of staff who is specifically responsible for your
organisation’s approach to social mobility?

Yes O No

[If 5a = ‘“Yes’]
5b. Please specify their name and position:

Name:* Dionne Corradine
Job title:* Chief Strategy Officer (role will divert to Equalities Director once
recruited)

101

Page 244



6. Who is the most senior person within your organisation accountable for the
organisation's approach to social mobility?

Name:* Dionne Corradine
Job title:* Chief Strategy Officer (role will divert to Equalities Director once
recruited)
Job level

O Board Member

X

Executive Team (e.g. CEO, COOQ)

President/Vice President

Head of Department

Managing Partner/Managing Director

Partner/Director

Senior Manager

Olojo|jo|o|o

Manager

7. Does your organisation have a staff network specifically focused on social
mobility/socioeconomic background?

Yes O No

8a. Do you encourage employees to share their social mobility stories within
the organisation to raise awareness and help others to feel more comfortable
at work, for example through blogs or organising a social mobility week?

Yes O No
[If 8a = ‘Yes’]
8b. Please give details:
(200 words)

The City Corporation’s Social Mobility Network (detail in section 8) launched this
year, and is planning a series of events to encourage staff to raise awareness about
socio economic diversity. This includes:

102

Page 245



e Lunch and launch of the Network to coincide with Social Mobility Awareness
Day which is scheduled to take place on 13* June 2024. This includes the
production of lanyards and badges designed to encourage staff to share their
social mobility stories, while championing socio-economic diversity.

e In Conversation with ColL leaders from low-socio-economic backgrounds,
online talk planned to take place Autumn/Winter 2024.

e Ongoing campaign titled “Personal Sensitive Information” which is designed
to encourage staff to submit their socio-economic diversity data.

9a. Does your organisation have any targets relating to socioeconomic
background or diversity?

] Yes No

[If 9a = “Yes’]
9b. If yes, please click the area(s) these targets relate to:

Applicants by socioeconomic background (at entry level)

Success rates of applicants by socioeconomic background (at entry level)

Applicants by socioeconomic background (at all levels)

(I A A R A

Success rates of applicants by socioeconomic background (at all levels)

Overall workforce diversity

O Workforce diversity disaggregated by occupational area

Workforce diversity disaggregated by seniority

Progression gaps by socioeconomic background

Other — please specify (150 words):

Click or tap here to enter text.

[If 9b = ‘Yes’ to any option]
9c. Are these targets monitored at Board level?

] Yes No

103

Page 246



[If 9b = ‘Yes’ to any option]
9d. Are your targets published externally?

U] Yes, please provide a link: Click or tap here to enter text.

No

U] We have internal targets and public targets. Please specify (150 words):
[If 9a = ‘No’]

9e. If your organisation does not have any targets related to socioeconomic
diversity and inclusion, are targets being considered?

Yes O No

[If 9e = ‘No’]
9f. Have targets ever been considered?

] Yes O No
[If Of = “Yes’]
99. If targets have been considered as an option and rejected, please explain
why:
(200 words)

Targets are being considered as part of the ambitions set out in our People Strategy
2024-29, and are also linked to our Equality Objectives 2024-29.

Our first People Strategy launched in April 2024 and covers the next five years.
Public reporting will take place bi-annually to our Corporate Services Committee
beginning in 2024/25. Starting with a review of 2023/24 data, targets will be
established in all areas of EDI where we have sufficient data for 2024/25 and each
year thereafter. In areas such as socioeconomic status where reporting is still low,
we will be working to increase confidence across the organisation for disclosure to
be able to establish a sufficient evidence base of data to create targets.

As referred to earlier, at the end of March 2024 we published our Equality
Objectives 2024-29, of which socio-economic diversity is one. We are now in the
process of developing workstreams and plans to achieve these objectives.

Our ambitions include:
- Continuing to use our influence to advance socio-economic diversity across
the City, building on the success of the Socio-Economic Diversity Taskforce
report and its recommendations

104

Page 247



- Collaborating with a variety of communities to enable opportunities for those
from lower socio-economic backgrounds to get in, get on, and belong in the
City Corporation

- Continuing to measure our performance as an employer across the eight
areas set out in the Social Mobility Index

- Closer working across City Corporation family to tackle barriers collectively
and holistically for underrepresented groups.

Progress against our ambitions will be regularly reported at Board level, as well as
to our EDI sub-committee of elected Members — all of whom will provide scrutiny
and oversight of delivery. Papers for this are (and will be) in the public domain.
Development of work to progress the Objectives is in early stages and will continue
over the course of the next five years.

105

Page 248



Section 8:
External advocacy

Please indicate if your organisation will be submitting answers to Section 8:
External advocacy

Yes - we will be submitting answers to Section 8: External advocacy

U] No - we will not be submitting answers to Section 8: External advocacy

If no, please state the reason why you are not submitting answers to this section:
(150 words)

Click or tap here to enter text.

1. Have clients or other organisations that you work with demanded action on
improving the diversity of your workforce in relation to:

The word 'clients' can be used synonymously with customers, recipients or service

users
Gender
Race
Socioeconomic background
Other (please fill in): | Disability
O Our clients have not communicated their preferences

2a. Do you work with any clients to improve their approach to employer-led
social mobility?

Yes O No

[If 2a = ‘Yes’]

2b. Please give details below including any actions your clients have taken in
relation to social mobility as a result of your work together and the difference
they have made:

(200 words)

106

Page 249



City Corporation was commissioned by HM Treasury and the Department for
Business, Energy and Industrial Strategy in 2020 to lead a taskforce to improve
socio-economic diversity at senior levels in UK financial and professional services.
City Corporation convened over 80 FPS organisations across the UK, and ran until
2022. The outputs from the Taskforce included the first sector-wide data collection
on socio-economic diversity at senior levels, a business case report which explored
the business benefits of increasing socio-economic diversity at senior levels in UK
FPS, a recommendations report that sets out what employers, sector bodies,
regulators and the government can do to boost socio-economic diversity, and the
launch of an independent membership body.

Progress Together continues this work. City Corporation is one of 12 founding
partners of Progress Together, a membership body that aims to drive socio-
economic diversity at senior level across UK financial services. City Corporation
provides essential funding and in-kind support to Progress Together, and sits on
their advisory board. City Corporation continues to champion the need for greater
socio-economic diversity at all levels across UK FPS and creates opportunities to
profile and support Progress Together to deliver this.

3a. Do you encourage your suppliers to take any actions regarding social

mobility?
For example, by asking about it in tender documents or during the procurement
process
Yes O No
[If 3a= ‘Yes']

3b. Please give details of the specific social mobility actions you ask them to
take, examples of these being implemented, and the result:

(200 words)

The City’s Responsible Procurement Commitment for work-related opportunities
(commitment five) asks suppliers to promote social mobility through work. Work
related opportunities statistics from our impact report:

e 7/ apprentices supported, including engineering and business administration
through our contracts

107

Page 250


http://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/responsibleprocurement
http://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/responsibleprocurement

20 people supported through other work-related opportunities, including
internships and graduates

92 Young people supported through a digital skill-boosting programme
encouraging social mobility and entry into the technology sector with two
suppliers on a major project

1 T-Level Construction placement from City of Westminster College on a major
project

The City’s Social Value Menu (commitment six) promotes social mobility including
provision of CV Workshops, careers fairs, outreach programmes and industry events to
promote social mobility. At the London Careers Festival three supplier supported by:

A Software Provider engaged students at the Guildhall providing hands-on
experiences with their HoloLens, inspiring students to explore technology

A Large Consultancy Firm: ‘a Day in the Life of a Consultant' workshop to 20
students offered insights into technology-focused school-leaver programmes
spotlighting unconventional career paths

A Construction provider hosted a workshop at the Guildhall on 'Careers in
Construction', showcasing the diverse roles available. They hosted students on
one of their construction sites, offering a glimpse into the live environment.

4a. Does your organisation take part in any social mobility initiatives across

your sector or industry?

Yes O No

[If 4a = “Yes’]
4b. If yes, please give details of the initiatives you’re working on, who you are

working with, and the difference they have made.

Initiative/ Please describe the initiative | Please explain the impact of
partnership or partnership, including: the initiative, including data
name who is involved, the to demonstrate the
initiative’s aim and the initiative’s impact where
target group. relevant:
Initiative/ Progress Progress Together was They have created a
partnership 1 | Together created to drive socio- collaborative peer network
108

Page 251



economic diversity at senior
level across UK financial
services. As mentioned above,
the City Corporation is a
founding partner and
continues to fund PT.

that has shared best practice,
collected data, given advice
on internal programmes, etc.
Members represent over 1/3
of the FS sector across the UK
an employee base of more
than 364,000.

They have insights backed by
academic rigour into the
impact of socio-economic
diversity on financial services,
including their Shaping Our
Economy report

Initiative/
partnership 2

New Financial

New Financial is a think tank
that, among other focus areas,
brings businesses together to
improve EDI. They work with
different sectors across the
industry — investors, issuers,
banks, and policymakers, with
a focus on capital markets.
They are the delivery partner
for HMT’s Women in Finance
Charter.

New Financial provides their
members with practical and
relevant insights into the
challenges facing their
business and the wider
industry. They produce
reports, toolkits and hold
events related to EDI and act
as a convening force across
the sector.

Initiative/
partnership 3

City Surveyors
Department
internal
diversity drive

New London Architecture
—the department’s original
Equalities Action Plan was
based on best practice
developed by the NLA.
Their three themes of
Recruitment, Progression
and Advocacy are still in
use

Chartered Institute of
Building — the department
engaged with the equalities
lead in the CIOB to review
the departmental EEDI
action plan and receive
feedback and suggestions
for enhancement

Not restricted to social
mobility, but including it,
the City Surveyors
department has been
learning good practice on
equalities from external
peers (historically this is a
sector that has lacked
diversity more generally).
The Department has
unique pressures because
of its skills requirements
that are not replicated in
other parts of the business
and wishes to recruit and
retain potential candidates
from all backgrounds

109

Page 252


https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fnla.london%2Fdiverse-leaders-pledge&data=05%7C02%7CSiyka.Radilova%40cityoflondon.gov.uk%7C10951bbb7c5e4c0a05e808dc65bcc79f%7C9fe658cdb3cd405685193222ffa96be8%7C0%7C0%7C638497108683997168%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=WBOTDKUbSdy3LVP1HUqYweV%2BmmgxpHxAjC4tO7dYCRk%3D&reserved=0
https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fnla.london%2Fdiverse-leaders-pledge&data=05%7C02%7CSiyka.Radilova%40cityoflondon.gov.uk%7C10951bbb7c5e4c0a05e808dc65bcc79f%7C9fe658cdb3cd405685193222ffa96be8%7C0%7C0%7C638497108683997168%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=WBOTDKUbSdy3LVP1HUqYweV%2BmmgxpHxAjC4tO7dYCRk%3D&reserved=0

5a. Aside from any work with young people covered in Section 1: Schools
outreach and work with young people and Section 3: Recruitment and selection,
do you work with any charity partners to improve social mobility?

Examples of such work could include charity fundraising, advocacy and
campaigning work.

Yes O No

[If 5a = ‘Yes’]
5b. If yes, please provide details on the work your organisation does with
charity partners:

(200 words)

Through the Community Infrastructure Levy Neighbourhood Fund, we fund the “We
Can Be” project delivered by the Lord Mayor’'s Appeal. This encourages women
and girls from disadvantaged backgrounds to consider City Careers. Through the
Combined Education charity, we fund Birbeck University to provide bursaries for
students from disadvantaged backgrounds to access higher education. We also
fund Goldsmiths Universities Equity Awards Scheme which provides means-tested
bursaries supporting Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic students at Goldsmiths to
achieve their full potential by removing financial and other barriers.

6a. Does your organisation share the changes it has made to improve
socioeconomic diversity and inclusion with other organisations - including
evidence of impact?

Yes O No

[If 6a = “Yes’]
6b. Please give details including any specific examples where you feel sharing
what you have has led to other organisations changing their practices:

(300 words)

The City Belonging Project is a new initiative to build a more inclusive and
connected Square Mile, supporting and improving the links between diversity
networks, and ensuring that the City’s institutions and events are more open to our

110

Page 253



communities than ever before. One role of City Corporation is to bring the City

together: more than half a million people from every imaginable community who

work, live, inspire and innovate within a few minutes of one another. Through the

City Belonging Project, and in collaboration with partners we want to achieve the
this by:

Ensure our events, activities and spaces are more inclusive and better
promoted to members of our community, especially those in diversity
networks.

Use our convening power to bring together groups and individuals from
across the City to create and incubate new inter-company networks.

Promote the growth of new and existing diversity groups at workplaces of all
sizes, signposting to partners with specialist expertise to support their
development.

Ensure that cultural events and activities across the Square Mile are better
advertised and promoted, and facilitate the creation of new events that
directly serve the needs of our community.

Help to provide a warm welcome for new starters in the City, and do
whatever we can to introduce them to the Square Mile and its community.

Promote democratic engagement within the City, encouraging those from
under-represented groups to stand in City elections and get involved in the
civic life of the Square Mile

7. Does your organisation share reporting data or best practice with any of the

following?

Local Government

Devolved Government (where applicable)

UK Government

Social Mobility Commission

Media

Oojojo|o|o|o

Other, please specify

X

None of the above

111

Page 254



8a. Does your organisation share any information about your work to improve
social mobility outside your organisation through any of the following?

(Please click all that apply)

Social media

Participating in or holding external events
] Advertising or marketing campaigns
Specific annual diversity report

Corporate reporting

Il Other, please specify Member reports

Click or tap here to enter text.

[If 8a = “Yes’ to any option]
8b. Please give details on who you share information with and why, including
any specific examples:

(300 words)

Our social media promotes our projects and planned activities, and we share
information specific to the project or initiative with students, learners, apprentices,
educators, parents and guardians, community groups, policy makers, journalists and
the wider public wherever possible. For example, for the Careers Festival we reach
out on social media targeting exhibitors to present at the festival and teachers/
schools to sign-up and attend.

Sharing information about our work with a view to equality, inclusion, and diversity
through social media ensures we reach and engage diverse audiences effectively.
By targeting specific groups such as students, educators, parents, community
organisations, policymakers, and the general public, we can foster a more inclusive
society and drive meaningful change. Through strategic use of social media
campaigns, webinars, challenges, and resource sharing, we amplify our impact and
promote the values of EEDI in education.

As previously mentioned it is our intention to publish progress against our
ambitions for both our Equalities Objectives, our People Strategy 2024-29 and
Corporate Plan 2024-29. All of these will be available in the public domain. As
part of the reporting on the Equalities Objectives we aim to look at how we can
report on our wider impact in delivering the objectives.

112

Page 255



As part of our Public Sector Equality Duty we publish an annual staff diversity
report - our Equality Information: Equality Information Report 2023

(cityoflondon.gov.uk)

Pay gap data is also reported annually (the Equalities & Inclusion Monitoring
report): Appendix 1 - Annual Equalities and Inclusion Monitoring Report March

2022.pdf (cityoflondon.gov.uk) — please note an improved and updated version of
this will be available in July 2024.

We are improving and expanding relevant equalities (including social mobility)
datasets for these reports, to learn and analyse year on year change. Data are also
published by central government and benchmarked against other local authorities.

9. Finally, please use this space to include any additional information about
your work which you feel has not already been covered in the questionnaire,
particularly any innovative practices. This could include details of any new
initiatives or concrete plans for changes in the coming year. Please do not use
this space to repeat anything you have included elsewhere in the submission

Our Social mobility Objective (Objective 4) in full:

Our public commitment to Socio-Economic Diversity (Objective 4) states:
Someone’s socio-economic background should not limit their potential to flourish.
Activities (cognisant with the Social Mobility Index recommendations for
improvement) may include:

e Continue to use our influence to advance socio-economic diversity across the
City, building on the success of the Socio-Economic Diversity Taskforce
report and its recommendations.

e Collaborate with a variety of communities to enable opportunities for those
from lower socio-economic backgrounds to get in, get on, and belong in the
City Corporation.

e Continue to measure our performance as an employer across the eight areas
set out in the Social Mobility Index.

Link to our Equality Objectives: Equality and inclusion - City of London

Link to our Corporate Plan 2024-29: Our Corporate Plan 2024-29 - City of London

113

Page 256


https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/assets/about-us/plans-and-policies/equality-information-report-2023.pdf
https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/assets/about-us/plans-and-policies/equality-information-report-2023.pdf
https://democracy.cityoflondon.gov.uk/documents/s189340/Appendix%201%20-%20Annual%20Equalities%20and%20Inclusion%20Monitoring%20Report%20March%202022.pdf
https://democracy.cityoflondon.gov.uk/documents/s189340/Appendix%201%20-%20Annual%20Equalities%20and%20Inclusion%20Monitoring%20Report%20March%202022.pdf
https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/about-us/plans-policies/equality-inclusion
https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/about-us/plans-policies/our-corporate-plan

Link to our People Strategy 2024-29: Our People Strategy 2024-29 - City of
London

Link to the Responsible Procurement: Responsible Procurement policy - City of

London

Further Information on our new Social Mobility Network

City Corporation launched The Social Mobility Network in 2024. The purpose of the
network is to represent and advocate for colleagues from less-privileged
backgrounds to achieve their development goals, collectively share their
experiences and support one another to make a difference and build a stronger,
more inclusive, and socio-economically diverse culture at City Corporation .

The key aims of the Social Mobility Network are as follows:

e Empower colleagues from less-privileged backgrounds to achieve their
development goals and identify barriers and perceived barriers in the
workplace which might be holding them back.

e Provide a safe space for colleagues from low socio-economic backgrounds to
collectively share their experiences and support one another.

e Advocate and enable for the recruitment and retention of individuals from
low socio-economic backgrounds.

e Enhance the resources, training, and networking opportunities available to
individuals from low socio-economic backgrounds.

Some of the programmes of work this staff network is implementing which was not
mentioned in the previous sections of this submission include:

e A programme of events which includes training on accent bias, networking
and imposter syndrome which will empower staff to embrace their socio-
economic diversity.

e Speed networking event this is designed to bring staff from different socio-
economic backgrounds together.

e Cross collaboration project with Learning and Development during February
2025 to coincide with National Apprenticeships which focuses on telling the
stories of apprentices and recognising their lives experiences of work.

City Corporation and support for Care Leavers

114

Page 257


https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/about-us/plans-policies/our-people-strategy
https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/about-us/plans-policies/our-people-strategy
https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/supporting-businesses/business-support-and-advice/responsible-business/responsible-procurement-policy
https://www.cityoflondon.gov.uk/supporting-businesses/business-support-and-advice/responsible-business/responsible-procurement-policy

City Corporation recently signed up to the London Care Leaver Compact. This
supports promoting opportunities for Care Leavers across London. As part of this
work, we have

e Increased access to apprenticeship opportunities for Care Leavers
e Prioritised their eligibility for our Housing

e Paid for their annual bus passes

e Supported meeting the costs of their Council Tax

All this work supports our commitment to ensuring that we treat Care Leavers as if
it were a protected characteristic and in doing so, support them to achieve better
education, health and wellbeing outcomes and enhancing their social mobility
opportunities.

Detail of the projects funded by the City Premium Grant

For the current period, the Education Board distributed £2,162,293 of City Premium
Grant funding for extracurricular activities across the City Family of Schools.
Projects included the following:

e ‘EAL Flash Academy’: Designed to support primary learners who are new to
English or have English as a second language, to learn social and curriculum
vocabulary, grammar, phonics, and handwriting. The project saw
improvements in oracy confidence, written communication and school
engagement.

e ‘Boxing Therapy’: Aimed to reduce the number of exclusions and negative
peer interactions through pioneering boxing based therapy. The pastoral
team noted that this initiative had a notable impact on reducing student
anxiety and improved motivation and wellbeing.

e ‘Enrichment’: Funding made additional enrichment opportunities available to
students, including music tuition, an Outward Bound residential, Duke of
Edinburgh Scheme, additional studies and female empowerment sessions.
The project resulted in 50 music scholars in year 8 continuing to play an
instrument, all year 12s successfully achieving the Bronze Duke of Edinburgh
qualification, and Outward Bound participants reporting positive Page 49
impact on their confidence, resilience and leadership skills.

e ‘lvy League Programme - US SAT Preparation’: Bespoke SAT support was
provided for students applying to lvy League and other competitive U.S.
universities. As a result, 9 students applied to US universities, with 2

115

Page 258



students receiving offers to Stanford and NYU, whilst one was waitlisted for
Princeton.

o ‘KS4 Pre-Apprenticeship Academy’: Secondary learners most at risk of, or
who are going through the process of permanent exclusion received
additional support with the primary aim of reducing permanent exclusions in
KS4 across CoLAT. The project has seen an improvement in attendance and
all year 11 students applying for post-16 qualifications.

‘Debate Mate’: Learners and teachers engaged in a 17-week programme
developing debating and oracy skills, as well as their critical thinking and
confidence. Following the project, pupils took part in two debates in the Urban
Debate League, winning one of them. Additionally, two pupils won Best Speaker
awards at the City Schools Debating Day, and successfully reached the finals.

116

Page 259



Please contact employerindex@socialmobility.org.uk if you have any queries regarding

the Index or your feedback

S_CIAL EMPLOYER

MOBILITY INDEX
F_UNDATION' 2024

Page 260




	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Equity, Equality, Diversity, and Inclusion (EEDI) Work and Priorities
	6 Social Mobility Index Report
	Appendix 1 - 2024 City Corporation Social Mobility Employer Index Submission

	7 Gender, Ethnicity, and Disability Pay Gaps (March 2023 Snapshot)
	Appendix 1 - City of London Corporation Pay Gap Report 2024: Snapshot Date: 31 March 2024


